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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

. Jeffrey A. Meyers 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commissioner 603-271-4501 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4501
Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Lisa M. Morris www.dhhs.nh.gov

Director .

June 10, 20198

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
exercise a renewal option and amend an existing agreement with the vendors listed below in bold, to
provide Family Planning Services by increasing the price limitation by $884,958 from $2,915,402 to
$3,800,360 and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2021, effective upon
Governor and Executive Council approval. 52% Federal Funds, 48% General Funds.

Vendor Vendor Current Increased Revised
Name Number Location (Modified) | (Decreased) | Modified G&C Approval
Budget Amount Budget
Coos County | 155327- . O: 11/08/2017
Family Health B0O1 Berlin, NH ¢ ?1 57,270 $157,270 $314,540 Item #21A

Lamprey Health 177677- 0: 11/08/2017

Nashua, NH $462,602 $462,602 $925,204

Care R0O1 Item #21A
Manchester .
Community 157274- Manchester, _‘ $265,086 $265,086 $530,172 O: 11/08/2017

B001 NH Item #21A

Health Center
Community -

Action Program 177203- ‘ O: 11/08/2017
- Belknap B003 Concord; NH $431,864 |- $0 $0 | ltem #21A
Merrimack : A01: 08/14/2018

Counties, Inc.
O: 11/08/2017
Concord .
Hospital, Inc. 1737061513 Concord, NH $259,008 $0 $0 | Item #21A

Family Health AQ01: 08/14/2018
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Center
Equality Health 257562- : O: 11/08/2017
Center 8001 Concord, NH $179,800 $0 $0 ltemn #21A
Joan G.
. 175132- Greenland, O: 11/08/2017
Lovering Health ROO1 NH $222,896 $0 $0 ltem #21A
Center .
Planned
Parenthood of 177528- O: 11/08/2017
Northern New RO02 Portiand, ME | $548,000 %0 %0 jem #21A
England
White Mountain .
Community | 'LT0" | Conway, NH | $188,786 $0 so | O 11/08/2017
Health Center
Mascoma
Community TBD Canaan, NH $200,000 $0 $0 | O: 11/08/2017
Health Care, Inc.
Total $2,915,402 | $884,958 | $3,800,360

Funds are anticipated to be available in the accounts included in the attached fiscal details for
State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation-and adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office.

See attached fiscal details.
EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue to allow the New Hampshire Family Planning Program
to offer a comprehensive and integrated network of family planning programs and partners statewide who
provide essential services to vulnerable populations. Reproductive health care and family planning are
critical public health services that must be affordable and easily accessible within communities throughout
the State.

Approximately 3,075 individuals will be served from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2021.

The original agreement, included language in Exhibit C-1, that allows the Department to renew
the contract for up to two (2) years, subject to the contlnued availability of funding, satisfactory
performance of service, parties’ written authorization and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council. The Department is*in agreement with renewing services for the two (2) remaining years at this
time.

Partnering with health centers in both rural and urban settings ensures that access to affordable
reproductive health care is available in-all areas of the State. Family Planning Program services reduce
the health and economic disparities associated with lack of access to high quality, affordable health care.
Women with lower levels of education and income, uninsured wornen, women of color, and other minority
women are less likely to have access to quality family planning services than their more highly educated
and financially stable counterparts. Young men are less likely to have access to and receive family
planning services than women. Ser\nces provided under these agreements are not duplicated elsewhere
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in the State as there is no other system for affordable, comprehensive reproductive health care services.

This project period will bring a heightened focus on vulnerable populations, including: the-
uninsured, adolescents, LGBTQ, those needing confidential services, refugee communities, and persons
at risk of unintended pregnancy and/or sexually transmitted infections due to substance abuse.

The contracted vendors are performing and meeting their contractual obligations and
performance requirements. Family planning services allow men and women to prevent unintended
pregnancies and adequately space births for improved maternal and infant outcomes. Family planning
also gives individuals the opportunity to increase personal advancements in careers and education. Each
vendor provides contraception, sexual transmitted disease testing and treatment, basic'infertility services,
annual primary care services and other services including breast and cervical cancer screenings, and
confidential teen health services. This program allows individuals to decide if and when they would like
to have children which leads to positive health outcomes for infants, women, and families.

The effectiveness of the services delivered by the vendors listed above will be meésured through
monitoring the following performance measures:

e The percent of clients in the family planning caseload who respectively were under 100% Federal
Poverty Level (FPL), were under 250% FPL, were males, and under twenty (20) years of age.

» The percent of clients served in the family planning program that were Medicaid recipients at the
time of their last visit.

e The proportion of women un{der_ twenty-five (25) screened for Chlamydia and tested positive.

e The percent of family planning clients of reproductive age who receive preconception
counseling.

v
e The percent of women aged 15-44 at risk of unintended pregnancy that is provided a most
effective (sterilization, implants, intrauterine devices or systems (IUD/IUS)) or moderately

- effective (injectable, oral pills, patch, ring, or diaphragm) contraceptive method.

e The percent of family planning clients less than eighteen (18) years of age who received education
that abstinence is a viable method of birth control. )

¢ The percentage of family planning clients who received STD/HIV reduction education.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the sustainability of New
Hampshire’s reproductive health care system will be negatively impacted. Not authorizing this request
could remove the safety net of services that improve birth outcomes, prevent unplanned pregnancy and
reduce health disparities which could increase health care costs for the State’s citizens.

Area served: Statewide
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Source of Funds: 52% Federal Funds from the Office of Population Affairs; US Department of
Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, and 48% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

effrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is lo join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



05-95-90-902010-5530 HEALTH AND SOQCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH & COMMUNITY SERVICES,
FAMILY PLANNING PROGRAM
CFDA®93.217 FAINZFPHPA00G407
Community Action Program - Belknap Merrimack Counties, Inc.

52% Fodera!l and 48% Genoral
Vandor 1D #177203-B003

Current ModIfied

Job Number Budget

Fiscal Year |Class/Account| Class Title

Increased;
{Decroased)
Amount

Rovised Modified
Budget

Contracts for
|Program
Services

, 2018 102-500731 80080203 $170.618|

$0

$170.618

Contracts for
Program
Services

2019 102-500731 90080203 $170,618

$0

$170.618

Contracts for
|Program
Services

2020 102-500731 90080206

$0

$0

Contracts for
|Program
Services

2020 102-500731 90080207

30

80

Contracts for
Program
Services

2021 102-500731 90080206

$0

$0

Contracts for
Program
Services

2021 102-500731 90080207

$0

$0

Subtotal: $341,236

$0

$341,236

Concord Hospital Vendor ID #177653-B011

Curront Modified

Class Title Budget

Fiscal Year Class/Account Job Number

Increased
{Decreased)
Amount

Contracts for
Program
Services

2018 102-500731 50080203 $96,517

$0

Revised Modified
Budget

$06,517

Contracts for
Program
Services

2019 102-500731 90080203 $86.517

$0

$06.517

Contracts for
Program
Services

2020 102-500731 80080206

$0

$0

Contracts for
Program
Services

2020 102-500731 90080207 )

$0

$0

Contracts for
|Program
Services

2021 102-500731 90080206

50

$0

Contracts for
Program
Services

2021 102-500731 90080207

$0

$0

Subtotal: $193,034

$0

$193,034




Coos County Family Heaith Center

Vendor 1D #155327-B001

Fiscal Year

Class/Account

Class Title

Current Modified

Job Number Budget-

Increased
{Decroased)
Amount

2018

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080203 $66,274

$0

Revised Modifled
Budget

$66.274

2018

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080203 $66,274

$0

$66,274

2020

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080206

$31,922

$31,922

2020

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080207

$34,352

$34,352

2021

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080206

$31.922

$31,922

2021

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080207

$34,352

$34,352

Subtotal; - $132,548

$132,548

$265,096

Equality Health

Center

Vendor 1D #257562-B001

Fiscal Year

Class/Account

Class Title

Current Modifled

Job Number Budget

Increased
(Decreased)
Amount

2018

102500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080203 $78,400

$0

Revised Modified
Budget

$78.400

2019

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080203 $78,400

$0

$78.400

2020

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080206

$0

$0

2020

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080207

$0

$0

2021

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080206

$o

50

2024

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080207

$0

$0

Subtotal:

$156,800

$0

$156,800




Joan G. Lovering Hoalth Care

* Vendor ID #175132-R001

Fiscal Year

Class/Account

Class Title

Current Modified

Job Number Budget

Increased
{Decroased)
Amount

2048

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

, 90080203 599,948

$0

Revised Modified
Budget

$99,848

2019

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080203 §96,548

$0

$96,948(

2020

102-500731

Contracis for
Program
Services

90080206

$0

$0

2020

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

50080207

. %0

50

2021

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

80080206

$0

50

2021

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

80080207

$0

$0|

Subtotal: $199,896

$0

$199,896

Lamproy Health

Care

Vandor 1D #177677-R001

Fiscal Year

Class/Account

Class Title

Current Modified

Job Number Budget

Increased
(Decreased)
Amount

2018

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080203 $201,582

$0

Rovised Modified
Budget

$201,582

2018

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080203 $201.582

S0

$201.582

2020

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080206

.$97,005

$97,095

2020

102-500731

Contracts for
|Program
Services

90080207

$104,487

$104 487

2021

102-500731

Contracts for
|Program
Services

90080206

$97,095

$97,095

2021

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080207

$104 487

$104,487

$403,164

$806,328




Manchester Community Health Center

Vandor ID #157274-8001

k Increased
Fiscal Year |Class/Account| Class Tive | . Job Number Curront Modified {Docroased) Revised Modifiod
Budget Amount Budget
Contracts for
2018 102-500731 Program 20080203 $1089,825 : $109,925
Services $0
Contracts for
2019 102-500731 |Program 90080203 $109.925 $100,925
Services $0
Contracts for
2020 102-500731 Program 90080206 $52,547 $52, 047
Services
Contracts for
2020 102-500731 Program 00080207 $56,978 $56,978
Services
Contracts for
2021 102-500731 Program 90080206 $52,947 $52,047
Services
Contracts for
2021 102-500731 _ |Program 80080207 $56,978 $56,078
Services
Subtotal: $219,850 $219,850 $439,700|




White Mountain Community Health Centor

Vendor ID #174170-R001

Fiscal Yoar

Class/Account

Class Title

Job Number

Current Modlifled
Budget

Increased
{Docroased)
Amount

2018

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

0080203

$83,108

Revised Modifled
Budget

$83,108

2019

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080203

$83,108

$0

$63,108

2020

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080208

50

$0

2020

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080207

$0

S0

2021

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

290080206

$0

$0

2021

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Searvices

90080207

$0

50

Subtotal:

$166,216

$0

$166,216

Planned Parenthood of Northern New England

100% General F

unds

Vendor 1D #177528-R002

Fiscal Year

Class/Account

Ciags Title

Job Number

Current Modified
Budget

Increased
{Decreased)
Amount

Revised Modified
Budget

2018

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080213

$274,000

$0

$274,000

2019

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080213

$274,000

$0

$274,000

2020

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080213

$0

$0

2021

102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90080213

$0

$0

Subtotal:

$548,000

50

$548,000

AU 5530 TOTALS:

$2,360,744

$755,562

$3,116,306




TRANSITICNAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, AND TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

CFDA# 93.558 FAIN# 1801NHTANF

100% Federal Funds

FUNDER: US DHHS Administration for Children and Families

Community Actlon Program - éelknap Maerrimack Counties, Inc. Venord ID #177203-B003

05-95-45-450010-61486 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF

Incroased
Fiscal Year ]Class/Account| Class Title Job Number Current Modified (Decroased) Revised Modified
Budget Am Budget
ount
| Payment for
2018 502-500891 Providers 45030203 545,314 %0 $45.314
Payment for
2019 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $45314 $0 545314
Payment for
2020 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $0 £0
Payment for
2021 502-500891 Providers 45030203 0 $0
Subtotal: $90,628 $0 $50,628
Concord Hospital Vendor ID #177653-B011
Increased '
Flscal Yoar |Class/Account] Ciass Titie Job Number Current Modifled {Decreased) Revised Modified
Budget Budget
Amount
Payment for
2018 502-500891 _ Providers 45030203 $33,032 $0 $33,032
Payment for y
2019 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $33,032 $0 $33.032
Payment for
2020 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $0 $0
: Payment for
2021 §02-500891 Providérs 45030203 $0 $0
Subtotal: $66,064 $0 $56,064
Coos County Family Health Center Vendor [D #155327-B001
Increased .
Fiscal Yoar |Class/Account| Class Title Job Number Current Modified {Docreased) Revised Modiflad
Budget Budget
Amount
Payment for
2018 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $12.361 50 $12,361
Payment for
2019 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $12,361 50 $12,361
Payment for ,
2020 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $12,381 $12,361
Payment for .
2021 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $12,361 $12.361
Subtotal: $24,722 $24,722 $49,444

.



Equality Health Center

Vendor ID #257562-8001

Increasad
Fiscal Year |Class/Account] Class Title Job Nurnber Current Modified (Docroaseq). | ovised Modified
Budget Budget
Amount
Payment for
2018 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $11,500 $0. $11,500
Payment for
2019 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $11,500 0 $11,500
Payment for
2020 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $0 $0
Payment for
2021 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $0 %0
Subtotal: $23,000 $0 $23,000
Joan G. Lovering Health Care Vendor ID #175132-R001 :
. Increased
Fiscal Year |Class/Account| Class Title Job Number Current Modified (Docreasad) Revised Modified
Budget A Budget
mount
Payment for
2018 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $11,500 0 $11,500
Payment for
2019 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $11,500 %0 $11.500
Payment for
2020 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $0 $0
Payment for
2021 502-500891 Providers 45030203 50 $0
Subtotal: sza'ooo $0 s23.°°°
Lampray Health Care . Vendor ID #177677-R001 .
Increased
Fiscal Yoar |ClassiAccount| Class Title Job Number Current Modified (Decreased) Revised Modified
Budget Budget
Amount
. Payment for
2018 §02-500891 Providers 45030203 $29,719 $0 $29,719
Payment for-
2019 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $29,719 50 $29.719
Payment for :
2020 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $29,719 $29.719
Payment for
2021 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $29,719 $29,719
Subtotal: $59,438 $59,438 $118,876
Manchestar Community Health Center Vendor ID #157274-B001
Increased
Fiscal Year |ClassiAccount| Class Title Job Number Current Modifiad (Decreased) Revised Modified
Budget Budget
Amount
Payment for
2018 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $22,618 %0 $22,618
Payment for
2019 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $22.618 $0 $22,618
Payment for
2020 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $22.618 $22618
Payment for !
2021 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $22,618 $22,618
Subtotal: “5.236 “5,236 s90.‘72




White Mountain Community Health Center

Vendor ID #174170-R001

Incroased
Fiscal Yoar |Class/Account| Class Title Job Number c"""Bm Modified (Decroasod) Revised Modifiod
udget Budget
Amount .
Payment for
2018 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $11,285 $0 $11,285
Payment for
2019 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $11,285 $0 $11,285
Payment for .
) 2020 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $0 $0
Payment for
2021 502-500891 Providers 45030203 $0 $0
Subtotal: $22,570 $0 $22,570
AU 6145 TOTAL: $354,658 $129,396 $484,054
TOTALS: $2,715,402 $884,958 $3,600,360




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services Contract

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the Family Planning Services Contract

This 1** Amendment to the Family Ptanning Services contract (hereinafter referred to as “Amendment #17)
is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "Department”) and Coos County Family Health, (hereinafter referred to as
"the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 54 Willow Street, Berlin, NH 03570.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on November 8, 2017 (ltem #21A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General
Provisions Paragraph 4, the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of the contract
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #1 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$314,540 ' '

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:
603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A Amendment #1, Scope
of Services.

6. Delete Attachment A, Clinical Services Guidelines in its entirety and replace with Attachment A,
Amendment #1, Clinical Services Guidelines.

7. Delete Attachment B, Title X Family Planning Information and Education Guidelines in its entirety
and replace with Attachment B, Amendment #1, Family Planning Information and Education
Guidelines.

8. Delete Attachment C, Family Planning Workplan in its entirety and replace with Attachment C,
Amendment #1, Family Planning Workplan

9. Delete Attachment D, Family Planning Performance Measure Definitions in its entirety and replace

Coos County Family Health Amendment #1
RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-03-A01 Page 1 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services Contract

with Attachment D, Amendment #1, Family Planning Performance Measure Definitions.

10. Delete Attachment E, NH Title X Family Planning Program Data Elements in its entirety and
replace with Attachment E, Amendment #1, NH Title X Family Ptanning Program Data Elements.

11. Delete Attachment F, Reporting Calendar in its entirety and replace with Attachment F,
Amendment #1, Reporting Calendar.

12. Delete Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment and replace with Exhibit B,
Amendment #1, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

Coos County Family Health Amendment #1
RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-03-A01 Page 2 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services Contract

This amendment shall be effe_ctive upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

iy Y0 0

Date Name: Lisa Morris
Title: Director

Coos County Family Health

/2 /\"\ »J\Zs (maﬁo
R/ T\ o

Acknowle ement of Contractor's signature;

, County of 005 on l&l hq , before the

undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or sattsfactonly proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

ry Public or Justice of the Peace

Linda Glanchelle., Gevutive Assistant

Name and Title of Notary or’Justice of the Peace

LINDA BLANCHETTE, Notary Public

i A
My Commission Expires: My Commission Expires August 8, 2023

Coos County Family Health Amendment #1
RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-03-A01 Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services Contract

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

6Je fe0r Ao 7 G~
Date Name: fisa m.&.@(miﬂ
Title: Speciod AUW"“G
| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
Coos County Family Health Ameandment #1

RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-03-A01 Page 4 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1.

1.2.

The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

2. Purpose

2.1,

The purpose of the family planning services is to reduce the health and economic
disparities associated with lack of access to quality family planning services in both
urban and rural areas of the State.

3. Terminology

CDC - Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

BPHCS - Bureau of Population Health and Community Services
DHHS or Department — Department of Health and Human Services
DPHS - Division of Public Health Services

FPAR — Family Planning Annual Report

FPER- Family Planning Encounter Record

FPL — Federal Poverty Level

FPP — Family Planning Program

HIV — Human Immunodeficiency Virus

HPP — Health Protection Plan

IEC/BCC - Information, Education, Communication/Behavior Change Communication
LARC - Long Acting Reversible Contraceptives

STD - Sexual Transmitted Disease

Title X = The Federal Title X Family Planning Program is part of the Title X of the Public
Health Service Act (Public Law 91-572 Population Research and Voluntary
Family Planning Programs). It is the only federal grant program dedicated

Coos County Family Health Exhibit A, Amendment #1 Contractor Inltials={"

RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-03-A01 Page 1 of 5 Date q.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #1

solely to providing individuals with comprehensive family planning and
reproductive health services.

4. Scope of Services

4.1. The Contractor shall provide clinical services, STD and HIV counseling and testing,
health education materials and sterilization services to low-income women,
adolescents and men (at or below two-hundred-fifty (250) percent FPL) in need of
family planning and reproductive health care services. This includes individuals who
are eligible and/or are receiving Medicaid services, are covered under the New
Hampshire Health Protection Plan (HPP) or are uninsured individuals.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide family planning and reproductive health services to a
minimum of eight hundred (800) users annually.

4.3. The Contractor is required to make reasonable efforts to collect charges based upon a
sliding fee scale from clients without jeopardizing client confidentiality.

4.4. Clinical Services — Requirements:

4.4.1.

44.2.

443.

44.4.

4.4.5.

The Contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal and State guidelines,
including the New Hampshire Family Planning Clinical Services Guidelines.

The Contractor shall comply with their own established internal protocols,
practices and clinical family planning guidelines when providing services. The
Contractor shall make available upon request a copy of the protocols to the
Department

The Contractor shall maintain and make available to the Department the New
Hampshire Family Planning Clinical Services Guidelines (Attachment A)
signature page (signed by all MDs, APRNs, PAs, and nurses; anyone who is
providing direct care and/or education to clients) for review within thirty (30) days
of Governor and Council approval and annually as instructed by the Department.
Any staff subsequently added to Title X must also sign prior to providing direct
care and/or education.

All family planning medical services shall be performed under the direction of a
physician (Medical Director) with special training or experience in family
planning in accordance with 42 CFR §59.5 (b)(6).

The Contractor shall have at least one (1) clinical provider proficient in the
insertion and removal of Long Acting Reversible Contraception (LARC).

4.5. STD and HIV Counseling and Testing - Requirements:

4.5.1. The Contractor providing STD and HIV counseling and testing shall comply with
the most current CDC Sexually Transmitted Diseases Treatment Guidelines and
any updates.

4.5.2. Staff providing STD and HIV counseling must be trained utilizing CDC
models/tools. {Z
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4.6. Health Education Materials:

4.6.1.

46.2.

4.6.3.

The Contractor providing health education and information materials shall have
those materials reviewed by an advisory board, consisting of five (5} to seven (7)
representatives (for example, a Board of Directors would be allowed to serve this
purpose), to provide feedback on the accuracy and appropriateness of such
materials, prior to their release.

The Contractor shall ensure the materials are consistent with the purposes of
Title X and are suitable for the population and community for which they are
intended. '

The Contractor shall provide health education and information materials that are
consistent with Title X clinical services. The materials shall be developed and
approved in accordance with the requirements in the Title X Family Planning
Information and Education (I&E) Advisory and Community Participation
Guidelines/Agreement (see Attachment B). Examples of material topics include:

4.6.3.1. Sexually transmitted diseases (STD), contraceptive methods, pre-

4.6.4.

4.6.5.

conception care, achieving pregnancy/infertility, adolescent reproductive
health, sexual violence, abstinence, pap tests/cancer screenings,
substance abuse services, mental health.

The Contractor shall submit annually a list of Advisory Board approved
Information and Education (I&E) materials that are currently being distributed to
Title X clients. This list shall include but is not limited to: the title of I&E material,
subject, publisher, date of publication, and date of board approval.

The Contractor shall utilize Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)
funds on a monthly basis to support outreach and promotional activities.

4.7. Sterilization Services:

4.71.

The Contractor providing sterilization services shall adhere to all federal
sterilization requirements as outlined in the Federal Program Guidelines,
Sterilization of Persons in Federally Assisted Planning Projects and subsequent
revisions or amendments related to these federal requirements in accordance
with 42 CFR §50.200 et al.

4.8. Confidentiality:

4.8.1.

The Contractor shall have safeguards to ensure client confidentiality.
Information about an individual receiving services may not be disclosed without
the individual's documented consent, except as required by law or as may be
necessary to provide services to the individual, with appropriate safeguards for
confidentiality. Information may otherwise be disclosed only in summary,
statistical or other form that does not identify the individual in accordance with
42 CFR §59.11.

5. Work Plan
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5.1.  The Contractor shall develop and submit a final Title X Family Planning Work Plan
(See Attachment C), for Year One (1) of the Agreement to the Department for approval
within thirty (30) days of Governor and Council Approval.

5.2. The Contractor shall report Title X Family Planning Work Plan outcomes and
review/revise the work plan annually and submit by August 31%to the Department for
approval.

6. Staffing

6.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient staffing to fulfill the roles and responsibilities
that support activities of this Agreement. The Contractor shall:

6.1.1. Provide sufficient qualified staff to perform the required services as specified in
the Contract and maintain a level of staffing necessary to perform and carry out
all of the functions, requirements, roles and duties of the Contract in a timely
fashion.

6.1.2. Contractor staff shall be supervised by a qualified Medical Director, with
specialized training and experience in family planning in accordance with
Section 4.4.4.

6.1.3. The Contractor shall ensure that all staff has appropriate training, education,
experience and orientation to fulfill the requirements of the positions they hold
and must verify and document that this requirement has been met.

6.1.3.1. This includes keeping up-to-date records and documentation of all
individuals requiring licenses and/or certifications.

6.1.3.2. All such records shall be available for Department inspection upon
request.

6.2. The contractor shall notify the Department of any newly hired staff person essential to
carrying out the contracted services in writing and include a copy of the individual's
resume, within one month of hired.

6.3. The Contractor shall notify the Department, in writing, when:
6.3.1. Any critical position is vacant for more than one month.

There is not adequate staffing to perform all required services for more than one
month.

7. Performance Measures

7.1. The Contractor shall set FP performance indicator/measure targets, within thirty (30)
days of the effective date of this Agreement (See Attachment D).

8. Reporting Requirements

Coos County Family Health Exhibit A, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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8.1. The Contractor shall collect and report general data consistent with current Title X
(Federal) requirements (see Attachment E, FPAR Data Elements), utilizing the data
system currently in use by the NH FPP. The Department will provide notification thirty
{30) days in advance of any change in Title X data elements.

8.2. One (1) day of orientation/training shall be required if the Contractor is unfamiliar with

the Family Planning Annual Report (FPAR) data system currently in use by the NH
FPP.

8.3. Federal Reporting Requirements:

8.3.1. Annual submission of the Family Planning Annual Report (FPAR) is required of
the Contractor for purposes of monitoring and reporting program performance
(45 CFR §742 and 45 CFR §923). The Contractor shall submit the current
required data elements for the FPAR electronically through a secure platform on
an ongoing basis, no less frequently than the tenth (10™) day of each month, to
the Family Planning Data System vendor (currently John Snow Inc.).

8.4. State Clinical Reporting Requirements:

8.4.1. The Contractor is required to collect and submit the Performance Indicators and
Performance Measures (see attached FP Performance Indicators and
Performance Measures Definitions, Attachment C) via Data Trend Tables (DTT)
and work plans to the Department on an annual basis on August 31% or as
instructed by the Department.

9. Deliverables

The Contractor shall adhere to the attached Family Planning Reporting Calendar
(Attachment F).

10. Meetings and Trainings

10.1. The Contractor shall attend meetings and trainings at the direction of the Department
that shall include but are not limited to a minimum of two (2) Family Planning Agency
Directors’ Meetings facilitated by the FPP per calendar year.

10.1.1. The Contractor shall designate at least two (2) family planning clinical staff to
participate in the yearly STD training webinar and ensure all family planning
clinical staff watch a recording of the webinar no later than 30 days from the live
webinar event. This training can be used for HRSA Section 318 eligibility
requirements, if applicable.

Coos County Family Health Exhibit A, Amendment #1 Contractor Initlals'z
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Family Planning Clinical Services Guidelines

1. Overview of Family Planning Clinical Guidelines:

A. Title X Priority Goals:
1. To deliver quality family planning and related preventive health services, where
evidence exists that those services should lead to improvement in the overall health of
individuals.

L

To provide access to a broad range of acceptable and effective family planning

methods and related preventive health services. The broad range of services does not
include abortion as a method of family planning.

3. To assess client’s reproductive life plan as part of determining the need for family
planning services, and providing preconception services as appropriate.

B. Delegate Requirements:
1. Provide clinical medical services related to family planning and the effective
usage of contraceptive methods and practices.

2. Follow-up treatment for significant problems uncovered by the history or
screening, physical or laboratory assessment or other required (or
recommended) services for Title X family planning patients should be provided
onsite or by appropriate referral per the following clinical practice guidelines:

Providing Quality Family Planning Services — Recommendations of CDC
and US OPA, 2014 (or most current):

http://www.cdc.gov/immwr/pdf/rr/rr6304.pdf

With supporting guidelines from:
US Medical Eligibility Criteria for Contraceptive Use 2016, CDC (or most
current): https://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/volumes/65/rr/rr6503al . htm

U.S. Selected Practice Recommendation for Contraceptive Use, 2016 (or most
current); http://dx.doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.rr6504a1

CDC STD & HIV Screening Recommendations, 2016 (or most current)
http://www.cdc.gov/std/prevention/screeningReccs.htm

CDC Sexually Transmitted Diseases Treatment Guidelines, 2015 (or most
current): https://www.cdc.gov/std/tg2015/tg-2015-print.pdf

Coos County Family Health Attachment A, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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CDC Recommendation to Improve Preconception Health and Health Care,
2014 (or most current): https://www.cdc.gov/preconception/index.html
Guide to Clinical Preventive Services, 2014. Recommendations of the U.S.
Preventive Services Task Force:
http://www.ahrq.gov/professionals/clinicians-providers/guidelines-
recommendations/guide/index.html

American College of Obstetrics and Gynecology (ACOGQG), Guidelines and
Practice Patterns

American Society of Colposcopy and Cervical Pathology (ASCCP)

Other relevant clinical practice guidelines approved by the BPHCS/US
DHHS.

3. Necessary referrals for any required services should be initiated and tracked per
written referral protocols and follow-up procedures for each agency.

The standard package of services includes:

¢ Comprehensive family planning services including: client education and
counseling; health history; physical assessment; laboratory testing;

¢ Cervical and breast cancer screening;

o Infertility services (Level [} (medical history including reproductive history,
sexual health assessment, physical examination, and referral for further
diagnosis as needed),

¢ Pregnancy diagnosis and counseling regarding prenatal care and delivery;
infant care, foster care, or adoption; and pregnancy termination;

¢ Services for adolescents;

e Annual chlamydia and gonorrhea screening for all sexually active women less
than 25 vears of age and high-risk women > 25 years of age;

s Sexually transmitted disease (STD) and human immunodeficiency virus
(HIV) prevention education, testing, and referral;

e Sexually transmitted disease diagnosis and treatment;

¢ Provision and follow up of referrals as needed to address medical and social
services needs.

4. Assurance of confidentiality must be included for all sessions where services are
provided.

5. Each client will voluntarily review and sign a general consent form prior to
receiving medical treatment or contraceptive methods(s).

6. Required Trainings:

Coos County Family Health Attachment A, Amendment #] Contractor Initials
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.Sexually Transmitted Disease training: all family planning clinical staff members

must either participate in the live or recorded webinar session(s) annually.

Family Planning Basics (Family Planning National Training Center): all family
planning clinical staff must complete and maintain a training certificate on file.
https://www fpntc.org/resources/family-planning-basics-elearning

Title X Orientation, Program Requirements for Title X Funded Family Planning
Projects: all family planning staff (administrative and clinical) must complete and
maintain a training certificate on file. https.//www.fpntc.org/resources/title-x-

orientation-program-requirements-title-x-funded-family-planning-projects

I1. Family Planning Clinical Services

Determining the need for services among female and male clients of reproductive age
by assessing the reason for visit:

¢ Reason for visit is related to preventing or achieving pregnancy:

Contraceptive services

Pregnancy testing and counseling
Achieving pregnancy

Basic infertility services
Preconception health

Sexually transmitted disease services

e Initial reason for visit is not related to preventing or achieving pregnancy (acute care,
chronic care management, preventive services) but assessment identifies the need for
services to prevent or achieve pregnancy

s Assess the need for related preventive services such as breast and cervical cancer
screening

The delivery of preconception, STD, and related preventive health services should not
be a barrier to a client receiving services related to preventing or achieving pregnancy.

A. Comprehensive Contraceptive Services (Providing Quality Family Planning

Services — Recommendations of CDC and US OPA, 2014: pp 7 - 13):

The following steps should help the client adopt, change, or maintain contraceptive

use.

1. Ensure privacy and confidentiality
2. Obtain clinical and social information including:

Coos County Family Health Attachment A, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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Contraceptive use including condom use

Allergies

Recent intercourse

Recent delivery, miscarriage, or termination

Any relevant infectious or chronic health conditions

Other charactenstics and exposures that might affect medical criteria
for contraceptive method

For Men:

Use of condoms

Known allergy to condoms

Partner contraception

Recent intercourse

Whether partner is currently pregnant or has had a child, miscarriage,
or termination

The presence of any infectious or chronic health condition

The taking of a medical history should not be a barrier to obtaining condoms.

b) Pregnancy intention or reproductive life plan. Ask questions such as:

L
*
®

Do you want to become a parent?

Do you have any children now?

Do you want to have {more) children?

How many (more) children would you like to have and when?

¢) Contraceptive experiences and preferences

d) Sexual

* & & & @

health assessment including:

Sexual practices: types of sexual activity the client engages in.
History of exchanging sex for drugs, shelter, money, etc. for client or
partner(s)

Pregnancy prevention: current, past, and future contraception options
Partners: number, gender, concurrency of the client’s sex partners
Protection from STD: condom use, monogamy, and abstinence

Past STD history in client & partner (to the extent the client is aware)
History of needle use (drugs, steroids, etc.) by client or partner(s)

3. Work with the client interactively to select the most effective and appropriate
contraceptive method (Appendix A). Use a shared decision making approach
presenting information on the most effective methods that meet the individual’s
priorities for contraception (based whether or not the client wants to become pregnant
within the next year, medical history, and past experience with methods).

a) Ensure that the client understands:

Coos County Family Health
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» Correct use of the method

» Non-contraceptive benefits

» Side effects

» Protection from STDs, including HIV

b) Assist client to consider potential barriers that might influence the likelihood
of correct and consistent use of the method under consideration including:
¢ Social-behavioral factors
¢ Intimate partner violence and sexual violence
e Mental health and substance use behaviors

4. Conduct a physical assessment related to contraceptive use, when warranted as per
U.S. Selected Practice Recommendations for Contraceptive Use, 2016, Appendix C.
(https://www.cdc.gov/immwr/volumes/65/rr/ir6504al appendix. htm#T-4-C.1_down).

5. Provide the contraception method along with instructions about correct and consistent
use, help the client develop a plan for using the selected method and for follow-up,
and confirm client understanding. Document the client’s understanding of his or her
chosen contraceptive method by using a:

a) Checkbox, or;

b) Written statement; or

¢) Method-specific consent form

d) Teach-back method may be used to confimm client’s understanding about
risks and benefits, method use, and follow-up.

6. Provide counseling for returning clients: ask if the client has any concerns with the
contraception method and assess its use. Assess any changes in the client’s medical
history that might affect safe use of the contraceptive method.

7. Counseling adolescent clients should include a discussion on:
a) Sexual coercion: how to resist attempts to coerce minors into engaging in

sexual activities

b) Family involvement: encourage and promote communication between the
adolescent and his/her parent(s) or guardian(s) about sexual and reproductive
health

¢) Abstinence: is an effective way to prevent pregnancy and STDs

B. Pregnancy Testing and Counseling (Providing Quality Family Planning Services —
Recommendations of CDC and US OPA, 2014: pp 13- 16):
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The visit should include a discussion about reproductive life plan and a medical
history. The test results should be presented to the client, followed by a discussion
of options and appropriate referrals.

1. Positive Pregnancy Test: include an estimation of gestational age so that appropriate
counseling can be provided.
a) Title X requires agencies to offer pregnant women the opportunity to be
provided information and counseling regarding each of the following options:
e Prenatal care and delivery
e Infant care, foster care, or adoption
» Pregnancy termination
b) For clients who are considering or choose to continue the pregnancy, initial
prenatal counseling should be provided in accordance with recommendations
of professional medical organizations such as ACOG.

2. Negative Pregnancy Test and Not Seeking Pregnancy: evaluate reason for negative
test. Offer same day contraceptive services (including emergency contraception) and
discuss the value of making a reproductive life plan.

3. Negative Pregnancy Test and Seeking Pregnancy: counsel about how to maximize
fertility.
a) If appropriate, offer Basic Infertility Services (Level I} on-site or through referral.
Key education points include:
¢ Peak days and signs of fertility
e Vaginal intercourse soon after menstrual period ends can increase the
likelihood of becoming pregnant
e Methods or devices that determine or predict ovulation
e Fertility rates are lower among women who are very thin or obese, and
those who consume high levels of caffeine
e Smoking, consuming alcohol, using recreational drugs, and using most
commercially available vaginal lubricants might reduce fertility

C. Preconception Health Services (Providing Quality Family Planning Services —
Recommendations of CDC and US OPA, 2014: pp 16- 17):

Preconception health services should be offered to women of reproductive age who
are not pregnant but are at risk of becoming pregnant and to men who are at risk
for impregnating their female partmer. Services should be administered in
accordance with CDC’s recommendations to improve preconception health and
health care.

1. For women:
a) Counsel on the need to take a daily supplement containing folic acid
b) Discussion of reproductive life plan

Coos County Family Health Attachment A, Amendment #1 Contractor [nitials

RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-03-A01
Page 6 of 12 Date _-




Attachment A, Amendment #2

¢) Sexual health assessment screening
d) Other screening services that include:

2. For Men:

Obtain medical history

Screen for intimate partner violence

Screen for tobacco, alcohol, and substance use

Screen for immunization status

Screen for depression when staff are in place to ensure an accurate
diagnosis. At a minimum, provide referral to behavioral health
services for those who have a positive screen

Screen for obesity by obtaining height, weight, & Body Mass Index
(BMI)

Screen for hypertension by obtaining Blood Pressure (BP)

Screen for type 2 diabetes in asymptomatic adults with sustained BP >
135/80 mmHg ( refer to PCP)

a) Discussion of reproductive life plan
b) Sexual health assessment screening
c) Other screening services that include:

Obtain medical history

Screen for tobacco, alcohol, and substance use

Screen for immunization status

Screen for depression when staff-assisted depression supports are in
place to ensure accurate diagnosis, effective treatment, and follow-up
Screen for obesity by obtaining height, weight, & BMI

Screen for hypertension by obtaining BP

Screen for type 2 diabetes in asymptomatic adults with sustained BP >
135/80 mmHg

D. Sexually Transmitted Disease Services (Providing Quality Family Planning Services

— Recommendations of CDC and US OPA, 2014: pp 17- 20):

Provide STD services in accordance with CDC’s STD treatment and HIV testing

guidelines.

1. Assess client:

a) Discuss client’s reproductive life plan
b) Obtain medical history

c) Obtain sexual health assessment

d) Check immunization status

2. Screen client for STDs

Coos County Family Health
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a)} Test sexually active women < 25 years of age and high-risk women > 25 years
of age yearly for chlamydia and gonorrhea

b) Provide additional STD testing as indicated

c) Screen clients for HIV/AIDS in accordance with CDC HIV testing guidelines
which include routinely screening all clients aged 13-64 years for HIV
infection at least one time. Those likely to be high risk for HIV should be re-
screened at least annually or per CDC Guidelines.

3. Treat client if positive for STD and his/her partner(s) in a timely fashion to prevent
complications, re-infection, and further spread in accordance with CDC’s STD
treatment guidelines. Re-test as indicated. Follow NH Bureau of Infectious Disease
Control reporting regulations.

4. Provide STD/HIV risk reduction counseling.

IIL. Guidelines for Related Preventive Health Services (Providing Quality
Family Planning Services — Recommendations of CDC and US OPA,
2014: p. 20):

A. For clients without a PCP, the following screening services should be provided on-
site or by referral in accordance with federal and professional medical
recommendations:

1. Medical History
2. Cervical Cytology
3. Clinical Breast Examination or discussion

4. Mammography

5. Genital Examination for adolescent males to assess normal growth and development
and other common genital findings.

IV. Summary (Providing Quality Familv Planning Services —
Recommendations of
CDC and US OPA, 2014: pp 22- 23)

A. Checklist of family planning and related preventive health services for women:
Appendix B
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B. Checklist of family planning and related preventive health services for men:
Appendix C

V. Guidelines for Other Medical Services

A. Postpartum Services

Provide postpartum services in accordance with federal and professional medical
recommendations. In addition, provide comprehensive contraception services as described
above to meet family planning guidelines.

B. Sterilization Services

Public Health Services Guidelines on Sterilization of Persons in Federally Assisted Family
Planning Projects (42 CFR Part 50, Subpart B, 10-1-00 Edition) must be followed if
sterilization services are offered.

C. Minor Gynecological Problems

Diagnosis and treatment are provided according to each agency’s medical guidelines.

D. Genetic Screening

Initial genetic screening and referral for genetic counseling is provided to clients at risk for
transmission of genetic abnormalities. Initial screening includes: family history of client and
partner.

VI. Referrals

Agencies must establish formal arrangements with a referral agency for the provision of
services required by Title X that are not available on site. Agencies must have written
policies/procedures for follow-up on referrals made as a result of abnormal physical exam or
laboratory test findings. These policies must be sensitive to client’s concerns for
confidentiality and privacy.

If services are determined to be necessary, but beyond the scope of Title X or the state
program clinical guidelines, agencies are responsible to provide pertinent client information
to the referral provider (with the client’s consent) and to counsel the client on her/his
responsibility to follow up with the referral and on the importance of the referral.

Coos County Family Health Attachment A, Amendment #} Contractor Initials <
RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-03-A01 ]
Page 9 of 12 Date v

\



Attachment A, Amendment #2

When making referrals for services that are not required under Title X or by the state
program clinical guidelines, agencies must make efforts to assist the client in identifying
payment sources, but agencies are not responsible for payment for these services.

3

VII. Emergencies

All agencies must have written protocols for the management of on-site medical
emergencies. Protocols must also be in place for emergencies requiring transport, after-hours
management of contraceptive emergencies and clinic emergencies. All staff must be
familiar with emergency protocols.

VIII. Resources

+ US Preventive Services Task Force (USPSTF) http://www uspreventiveservicestaskforce.org.

¢ National Guidelines Clearinghouse (NGCH) http://www.guideline.gov.

e American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP), Bright Futures, Guidelines for Health Supervision
of Infants, Children, and Adolescents, 4% Edition.

https://brightfutures.aap.org/Bright%20Futures%20Documents/BF4 Introduction.pdf

e American Medical Association (AMA) Guidelines for Adolescent Preventive Services (GAPS)
http://www .uptodate.com/contents/guidelines-for-adolescent-preventive-services

¢ USDHHS Centers for Disease Control (CDC), STD Treatment Guidelines
http://www.cdc.gov/std/treatment/.

e American College of Obstetrics and Gynecology (ACOG) Practice Bulletins and Committee
Opinions are available on-line to ACOG members only, at hitp.//www.acog.org. Yearly on-line
subscriptions and CD-ROMs are available for purchase through the ACOG Bookstore.

¢ American Society for Colposcopy and Cervical Pathology (ASCCP) http://www.ascep.org.

e American Society for Reproductive Medicine (ASRM} http:/www.astm.org.
¢ American Cancer Society. http://www.cancer.org/.

¢ North American Society of Pediatric and Adolescent Gynecology http:.//www.naspag.org/.

s Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality http://www.ahrg.gov/clinic/cpgsix.htm.
¢ Partners in Information Access for the Public Health Workforce http:/phpartners.org/guide html.

s “Emergency Oral Contraception,” ACOG, ACOG Practice Bulletin, No 152, September, 2015.
For article, see: “ACOG Recommendations on Emergency Contraception Am Fam Physician.
2010 Nov 15;82(10):1278. Armstrong C.
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o  ACOG Committee Opinions represent an ACOG committee's assessments of emerging issues in
obstetric and gynecologic practice. Committee_QOpinions provide timely guidance on ethical
concerns, new practice techniques and controversial topics. Published in the ACOG journal,
Obstetrics and Gynecology, Committee Opinions are peer reviewed regularly to guarantee
accuracy. www.acog.org/Resources-And-Publications/Committee-Opinions-List.

o Compendium of Selected Publications contains all of the ACOG Educational Bulletins, Practice
Bulletins, and Committee Opinions that are current as of December 31, 2006, This valuable
resource contains all the relevant documents issued by ACOG and its committees with a complete
subject index for easy reference. Note — All ACOG materials can be purchases by calling 1-800-
762-2264 or through the Bookstore on the ACOG Web site:

hitp://www.acog.org/Resources_And_Publications.

e US Medical Eligibility for Contraceptive Use, 2016.
http://www.cdc.gov/reproductivehealth/UnintendedPregnancy/USMEC. . htm

e AIDS info (DHHS) http://www.aidsinfo.nih.gov/.

e American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP), Policy Statement: “Contraception for Adolescents”,

September, 2014. http://pediatrics.aappublications.org/content/early/2014/09/24/peds.2014-2299

¢ U.S. Preventive Services Task Force (USPSTF), Guide to Clinical Preventive Services, 2014,
http://www.ahrg.gov/professionals/clinicians-providers/guidelines-
recommendations/guide/index.html

o Contraceptive Technology, Hatcher, et al. 21% Revised Edition.
http://www.contraceptivetechnology.org/the-book/

s Managing Contraceptive Pill Patients, Richard P. Dickey.

e  Women’s Health Issues, published bimonthly by the Jacobs Institute of Women’s Health.
http://www.whijournal.com.

e American Medical Association, Information Center http.//www.ama-assn.org/ama

e US DHHS, Health Resources Services Administration (HRSA) http://www hrsa.gov/index. html.

e “Reproductive Health Online (Reproline)”, Johns Hopkins University
http://www.reprolineplus.org.

* Emergency Contraception: www.arhp.org/topics/emergency-contraception.

¢ Condom Effectiveness: http://www.cde.gov/condomeffectiveness/index himl

Additional Webh Sites Related to Family Planning

¢ American Society for Reproductive Medicine: http.//www.asrm.org/

e Centers for Disease Control & Prevention A to Z Index, hitp://www.cdc.gov/az/b.html

Coos County Family Health Attachment A, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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Attachment A, Amendment #2

+ Emergency Contraception Web site http://ec princeton.edu/

¢ Office of Population Affairs: http://www .hhs.gov/opa

e Title X Statute http://www .hhs.gov/opa/title-x-family-planning/titie-x-policies/statutes-and-
regulations

e Appropniations Language/Legislative Mandates http.//www.hhs gov/opa/titie-x-family-
planning/title-x-policies/legislative-mandates.

e Sterilization of Persons in Federally Assisted Family Planning Projects Regulations
https://www.hhs.gov/opa/sites/default/files/d2-cfr-50-c_0.pdf

Department of Health and Human Services Regions http://www.hhs. gov/opa/regional-contacts

Coos County Family Health Attachment A, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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Attachment B, Amendment #2

Title X Family Planning Information and Education (I&E) Advisory and
Community Participation Guidelines/Agreement

To assist delegates in meeting Title X I&E advisory committee and community participation
requirements, these guidelines include the following sections:

Review and Approval of Informational and Educational Materials - Title X Requirements
I&E Advisory Committee Organization, Membership, Function & Meetings
Community Participation

Review and Approval of Informational and Educational Materials — Title X Requirements

An advisory board of five to nine members (the size of the committee can differ from these
limits with written documentation and approval from the Title X Regional Office) who are
broadly representative of the community must review and approve all informational and
educational (I&E) materials developed or made available under the project prior to their
distribution to assure that the materials are suitable for the population and community for which
they are intended and to assure their consistency with the purposes of Title X. Oversight
responsibility for the I&E committee(s) rests with the grantee. The grantee may delegate the
I&E operations for the review and approval of materials to delegate/contract agencies.

The I&E committee(s) must:
Consider the educational and cultural backgrounds of the individuals to whom the
materials are addressed;
Consider the standards of the population or community to be served with respect to such
materials;
Review the content of the material to assure that the information is factually correct;
Determine whether the material is suitable for the population or community for which it
is to be made available; and
Establish a written record of its determinations.

I&E Advisory Committee Organization, Membership, Function & Meetings

Suggestions for Committee Organization and Membership:
A community participation committee may serve as your [&E advisory committee if it
meets Title X requirements.
Check to see if your health department staff or agency upper management if there is an
existing committee that can serve as your I&E advisory committee.
Identify other health department or agency program committees with broad based
community representation that may serve as your advisory committee i.e. school-based
health centers; public health advisory; alcohol and drug programs. In-house agency staff
cannot serve as committee members.
Identify community groups, organizations or individuals broadly representative of your
community and client population.
Select five to nine members, with more than five members, you will meet the Title X
requirement without member recruitment when someone leaves the committee.

Coos County Family Health Attachment B, Amendment #1 Cantractor Initials
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Suggestions for I&E Advisory Committee Communication (Note: I&E advisory committee
meetings are recommended, but not required by Title X):
Meet on an “ad hoc” basis to review materials, meet annually, provide orientation
meetings for new committee members, or meet via conference calls.
Communicate with committee members by e-mail, phone, fax or mail for each material
review.

I&E Advisory Committee Membership Description (For committee member recruitment or
orientation, you can use this description):
Federally funded family planning agencies provide critical health services to low-income
and uninsured individuals to prevent unintended pregnancies.
The federal grant requires advisory committee review and approval of all educational
materials and information before distribution.
Advisory committees assist in evaluating and selecting materials appropriate for clients
and the community.
The family planning agency sends committee members materials, such as pamphlets,
videos, posters, or teaching tools. Members complete an I&E review form or attend a
meeting to give feedback regarding material appropriateness for the audience and
community.

Community Participation

Title X grantees and delegate/contract agencies must provide an opportunity for participation in
the development, implementation, and evaluation of the project (1) by persons broadly
representative of all significant elements of the population to be served, and (2) by persons in the
community knowledgeable about the community’s needs for family planning services. Projects
must establish and implement planned activities to facilitate community awareness of and access
to family planning services. Each family planning project must provide for community education
programs. The community education program(s) should be based on an assessment of the needs
of the community and should contain an implementation and evaluation strategy.

Community education should serve to enhance community understanding of the objectives of the
project, make known the availability of services to potential clients, and encourage continued
participation by persons to whom family planning may be beneficial. The I&E advisory
committee may serve the community participation function if it meets the above requirements or
a separate group may be identified. In either case, the grantee project plan must include a plan
for community participation. The community participation committee must meet annually or
more often as appropriate.

Suggestions for Community Participation:
Every year, schedule a meeting with your community participation committee.
To meet the Title X community participation requirement, your committee can:
o Assist with problem solving, i.e. how to increase male services; solve a “no show’
problem, or improve customer service.
o Offer feedback about your family planning program strengths and suggest areas
needing improvement.

y
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o Serve as family planning advocates to increase community awareness of the need for
family planning services and the impact of services.

NH DHHS Requirements

On a yearly basis, sub-recipients will be required to submit a comprehensive master list with the
date of review along with the educational and informational materials that are currently being
distributed or are available to Title X clients. In addition sub-recipients will be required to
provide written documentation explaining specifically how records will be maintained as well as
how old matenials will be expired.

Coos County Family Health Attachment B, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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Attachment C, Amendment #2

Title X Family Planning Program Priorities:

1.

Ensuring that all clients receive contraceptive and other services in a voluntary, client-centered and non-coercive manner in
accordance with QFP and Title X requirements with the goal of supporting clients’ decisions related to preventing or achieving
pregnancy.
Assuring the delivery of quality family planning and related preventive health services, with priority for services to individuals
from low-income families; '
Providing access to a broad range of acceptable and effective family planning methods and related preventive health services
in accordance with the Title X program requirements and the most current Quality Family Planning (QFP). These services
include, but are not limited to, contraceptive services including fertility awareness based methods, pregnancy testing and
counseling, services to help clients achieve pregnancy, basic infertility services, STD services, preconception health services,
and breast and cervical cancer screening. The broad range of services does not include abortion as a method of family
planning;
Assessing clients’ reproductive life plan/reproductive intentions as part of determining the need for family planning services,
and providing preconception services as stipulated in QFP;
Following a model that promotes optimal health outcomes for the client (physical, mental and social health) by emphasizing
comprehensive primary health care services and substance use disorder screening, along with family planning services
preferably in the same location or through nearby referral providers;
Providing counseling for adolescents that encourages the delay the onset of sexual activity and abstinence as an option to
reduce sexual risk, promotes parental involvement, and discusses ways to resist sexual coercion;
Identifying individuals, families, and communities in need, but not currently receiving family planning services, through
outreach to hard-to-reach and/or vulnerable populations, and partnering with other community-based health and social service
providers that provide needed services; and
Demonstrating that the project’s infrastructure and management practices ensure sustainability of family planning and
reproductive health services delivery throughout the proposed service area including:
o Incorporation of certified Electronic Health Record (EHR) systems (when available) that have the ability to capture
family planning data within structured fields;
o Evidence of contracts with insurance plans and systems for third party billing as well as the ability to facilitate the
enrollment of clients into private insurance and Medicaid, optimally onsite; and to report on numbers of clients assisted
and enrolled; and
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RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-03-A0¢ )
Page | of 14 Date ( C\



Attachment C, Amendment #2

o Addressing the comprehensive health care needs of clients through formal, robust linkages or integration with
comprehensive primary care providers.

New Hampshire will also consider and incorporate the following key issues within its Service Delivery Work Plan:

Incorporation of the most current Title X Program Guidelines throughout the proposed service area as demonstrated by written
clinical protocols that are in accordance with Title X Requirements and QFP.

Efficiency and effectiveness in program management and operations;

Patient access to a broad range of contraceptive options, including long acting reversible contraceptives (LARC) and fertility
awareness based methods, other pharmaceuticals, and laboratory tests, preferably on site;

Use of performance measures to regularly perform quality assurance and quality improvement activities, including the use of
measures to monitor contraceptive use;

Establishment of formal linkages and documented partnerships with comprehensive primary care providers, HIV care and
treatment providers, and mental health, drug and alcohol treatment providers;

Incorporation of the National HIV/AIDS Strategy (NHAS) and CDC’s “Revised Recommendations for HIV Testing of Adults,
Adolescents and Pregnant Women in Health Care Settings;” and

Efficient and streamlined electronic data collection (such as for the Family Planning Annual Report (FPAR)), reporting and
analysis for internal use in monitoring staff or program performance, program efficiency, and staff productivity in order to
improve the quality and delivery of family planning services.
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Attachment C, Amendment #2

AGENCY NAME:
WORKPLAN COMPLETED BY:

Goal 1: Maintain access to family planning services for low-income populations across the state.

Performance INDICATOR #1:
SFY 20 Outcome
Through June 2020, FPP delegate agencies will provide services to: la. _ Clients served
la. ___  clients will be served Ib ___ Clients <100% FPL
Ib __  clients <100% FPL will be served le. _ Clients <250% FPL
le. __  clients <250% FPL will be served Id. ___ Clients<20
1d. __ clients <20 will be served le. _ Clients on Medicaid
le. ___  clients on Medicaid will be served If. __ Clients—Male .
If. male clients will be served lg. __ Women <25 years positive for
- Chlamydia

Through June 2021, FPP delegate agencies will provide services to: SFY 21 Qutcome

la clients will be served la. ___ Clients served
. 4 < [¢]
1b clients <100% FPL will be served oo Clients <100% FPL
S— X . lc. Clients <250% FPL
le. clients <250% FPL will be served —_— i
— ) ) 1d. Clients <20
1d. clients <20 will be served — . e
-_— . e le. Clients on Medicaid
le. clients on Medicaid will be served — .
I _ te cli b p 1f. Clients — Male
T — maie clients witl be serve lg. Women <25 years positive for
Chlamydia
Coos County Family Health Attachment C, Amendment #2 Coniractor Initials
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Attachment C, Amendment #2

Goal 2: Assure access to quality clinical and diagnostic services and a broad range of contraceptive methods.

Performance Measure #5: 100% of sub recipient agencies will have a policy for how they will include abstinence in their education of
available methods in being a form of birth control amongst family planning clients, specifically those clients less than 18 years

Sub-recipient provides grantee a copy of abstinence education policy for review and approval by August 31, 2019 (or within 30
days of Governor and Council Approval).

Goal 3: Assure that all women of childbearing age receiving Title X services receive preconception care services through risk
assessment (i.e., screening, educational & health promotion, and interventions) that will reduce reproductive risk.

Performance Measure #6: By August 31, 2019, 100% of sub recipient agencies will have a policy for how they will provide STD/HIV
harm reduction education with all family planning clients.

Sub-recipient provides grantee a copy of STD/HIV harm reduction education policy for review and approval by August 31,
2019 (or within 30 days of Governor and Council Approval).

Goal 4; Provide appropriate education and networking to make vulnerable populations aware of the availability of family
planning services and to inform public audiences about Title X priorities.

Performance Measure #7: By August 31, of each SFY, sub recipients will complete an outreach and education report of the number
of community service providers that they contacted in order to establish effective outreach for populations in need of reproductive
health services.

Sub-recipient provides grantee a copy of completed SFY20 outreach & education report by August 31, 2020.

Sub-recipient provides grantee a copy of completed SFY21 outreach & education report by August 31, 2021.
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Attachmernit C, Amendment #2

Goal 5: The NH FPP program will provide appropriate training and technical assistance to assure that New Hampshire
service providers are fully aware of federal guidelines and priorities and of new developments in reproductive health and that
they have the skills to respond.

Performance Measure #8: By August 31%, of each SFY, sub recipients will submit an annual training report for clinical & non-clinical
staff that participated in family planning services and/or activities to ensure adequate knowledge of Title X policies, practices and
guidelines.

Sub-recipient provides grantee a copy of completed SFY20 annual training report by August 31, 2020.

Sub-recipient provides grantee a copy of completed SFY21 annual training report by August 31, 2021.

Clinical Performance:
The following section is to report inputs/activities/evaluation and outcomes for three out of six Family Planning Clinical Performance

Measures as listed below: v
* Performance Measure #1: The percent of all female family planning clients of reproductive age (15-44) who receive preconception
counseling

¢ Performance Measure #2: The percent of female family planning clients < 25 screened for Chlamydia infection.
e Performance Measure #4: The percent of women aged 15-44 at risk of unintended pregnancy that is provided a long-acting
reversible contraceptive (LARC) method (Implant or TUD/TUS)

Page 5 of 14 Date
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Attachment C, Amendment #2

TITLE X
INPUTS/RESOURCES ACTIVITIES PERFORMANCE PRIORITY
MEASURE OUTCOMES
(OUTPUT) (GOAL)
Performance Measure #1: Goal 3:
The percent of family planning Assure that all
clients of reproductive age who women of
receives‘ preconception childbearing
counseling. -
age receiving
SFY 20 Agency Target: T'ﬂef X
services
SFY 21 Agency Target: receive
preconception
o | care services
SEY 20;Qutcome: .| through risk
o T g ‘| assessment
\ Numerator: { (e,
Benominator: | screening,
B - | educational &
" i| health
‘SFY 21.Qutcome: . . promotion,
EVALUATION ACTVITIES T | and

Coos County Family Health
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Attachment C, Amendment #2

Numerator: " | interventions)
JDenominator: that will
reduce
reproductive
| risk.

WORKPLAN/PEREQORMANGCE{QUTCOME (To'be completediatend'of SEY) =~ =~

SFY 20 Qutcome: Insert your agency’s data/outcome resuits here for July 1, 2019-June 30, 2020

SFY 20 Outcome: %
Target/Objective Met

Numerator: %

Denominator: % Target/Objective Not Met
Narrative: Explain what happened during the year that contributed to success i.e. PDSA cycles etc. OR Explain what happened during
the year, why measure was not met, improvement activities, barriers, efc.

Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently) to achieve target/objective for SFY21

Revised Workplan Attached (Please check if workplan has been revised)

SFY 21 Qutcome: Insert your agency’s data/outcome results here for July 1, 2020-June 30, 2021

SFY 20 Outcome: %

Target/Objective Met
Numerator: %

Coos County Family Health Attachment C, Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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Attachment C, Amendment #2

Denominator: % Target/Objective Not Met

Narrative: Explain what happened during the year that contributed to success i.e. PDSA cycles etc. OR Explain what happened during
the year, why measure was not met, improvement activities, barriers, efc.

Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently) to achieve target/objective for SFY22

Coos County Family Health Attachment C, Amendment #2 Contractor Initial
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Attachment C, Amendment #2

TITLE X
INPUTS/RESOURCES ACTIVITIES PERFORMANCE PRIORITY OUTCOMES
MEASURE (GOAL)
(OUTPUT)
Performance Measure #2: Goal 3: Assure that all
The percent of female family | women of childbearing age
planning clients <25 screened | yecejving Title X services
for Chlamydia infection. receive preconception care
. services through risk
State Minimum Target: 70% assessment (i.e., screening,
SFY 20 Target: educati?nal & health
promotion, and
SFY 21 Target: interventions) that will
reduce reproductive risk.
SEY 20/Oiutcome: ____
Numerator:
‘Denominator:
SEY. 21:Qutcome:
EVALUATION ACTVITIES 3

Coos County Family Health
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Attachment C, Amendment #2

‘Numerator:
Denominator:

WORKPLAN PEREORMANGE.OUFCOME(To be.completed:at.end!ofi SEY.).

—l SFY 20 Outcome: [nsert your agency's data/outcome results here for July I 2019-June 30, 2020

SFY 20 Outcome: ____ %

Target/Objective Met
Numerator: %
Denominator: % Target/Objective Not Met

Narrative: Explain what happened during the year that contributed to success i.e. PDSA cycles etc. OR Explain what happened during the
year, why measure was not met, improvement activities, barriers, etc.

Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently) to achieve target/objective for SFY21

Revised Workplan Attached (Please check if workplan has been revised)

SFY 21 Qutcome: Insert your agency’s data/outcome results here for July 1, 2020-June 30, 2021

SFY 21 Outcome: %

Target/Objective Met
Numerator: %
Denominator: % Target/Objective Not Met
Coos County Family Health Attachment C, Amendment #2 Contractor Initial
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Attachment C, Amendment #2

Narrative: Explain what happened during the year that contributed to success i.e. PDSA cycles etc. OR Explain what happened during the
year, why measure was not met, improvement activities, barriers, elc.

Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently) to achieve target/objective for SFY22
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TITLE X
INPUTS/RESOURCES ACTIVITIES PERFORMANCE PRIORITY OUTCOMES
MEASURE (GOAL)
(OUTPUT)
Performance Measure #4: Goal 3: Assure access to a
The percent of women aged | broad range of acceptable
15-44 at risk of unintended and effective family
pregnancy that is provided a | planning methods,
long-acting reversible including LARC.
contraceptive (LARC)
method (Implant or IUD/IUS)
SFY 20 Target:
SFY 21 Target:
SFYi20{Outcoe:
“Numerator:.
<Benominator:
J‘SEM 21 Outcome:
EVALUATION ACTVITIES

Coos County Family Health
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~Numerator:
«Denominator:

; ' ) _\W.ORKEBLAN PEREORMANGE QUTGOME:(To;be completed: at end of SEY) o

SFY 20 Outcome Insert your agency's data/outcome results here for July 1, 2019-June 30, 2020

SFY 20 Outcome: %

Target/Objective Met
Numerator: %
Denominator: % Target/Objective Not Met

Narrative: Explain what happened during the year that contributed fo success i.e. PDSA cycles etc. OR Explain what happened during the
year, why measure was not met, improvement activities, barriers, etc.

Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently) to achieve target/objective for SFY21

Revised Workplan Attached (Please check if workplan has been revised)

SFY 21 Outcome: Insert your agency's data/outcome results here for July 1, 2020-June 30, 2021

SFY 21 Outcome: %%

Target/Objective Met
Numerator: % ‘
Denominator: % Target/Objective Not Met
Coos County Family Heatth Attachment C, Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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Narrative: Explain what happened during the year that contributed to success i.e. PDSA cycles etc. OR Explain what happened during the
year, why measure was not mel, improvement activities, barriers, etc.

Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently) to achieve target/objective for SFY22
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Attachment D, Amendment #2

Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1

Indicators: SFY Outcome

la.___ clients will be served la. clients served

Ib._ clients < 100% FPL will be served 1b. clients <100% FPL
tc.  clients < 250% FPL will be served lc. clients <250% FPL
1d._ clients < 20 years of age will be served 1d. clients <20years of age
le. clients on Medicaid at their last visit will be served | 1€ clients on Medicaid

If.  male clients will be served If male clients
lg. women <25 years
positive for Chlamydia

Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1 b

Indicator:  The percent of clients under 100% FPL in the family planning caseload.

Goal: To increase access to reproductive services by low-income residents.

Definition: Numerator: Total number of clients <100% FPL served.
Denominator: Total number of clients served.

Data Source: Region 1 Data System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1 ¢

Indicator:  The percent of clients under 250% FPL in the family planning caseload.

Goal: To increase access to reproductive services by low-income residents.

Definition:  Numerator: Total number of clients <250% FPL served.
Denominator: Total number of clients served.

Data Source: Region 1 Data System
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Attachment D, Amendment #2

Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1 d

Indicator:  The percent of clients under 20 years of age in the family planning caseload.
Goal: To increase access to reproductive services by adolescents.
Definition: Numerator: Total number of teens served.

Denominator: Total number of clients served.

Data Source: Region 1 Data System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1 e

Indicator:  The percent of clients served in the family planning program that were Medicaid
recipients at the time of their last visit.

Goal: To improve access to reproductive services by Medicaid clients.
Definition: Numerator: Number of clients with Medicaid as payment source.
Denominator: Total number of clients served.

Data Source: Region 1 Data System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1

Indicator:  The percent of clients who are males in the family planning caseload.
Goal: To increase access to reproductive services by males.
Definition: Numerator: Total number of male clients served.

Denominator: Total number of clients served.

Data Source: Region | Data System
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Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1 ¢

Indicator:  The proportion of women <25 screened for Chlamydia and tested positive.

Goal: To improve diagnosis of asymptomatic Chlamydia infection in the age group with
highest risk for this STD.

Definition: Numerator: Total number of women <25 that tested positive for Chlamydia.
Denominator: The total number of women <25 screened for Chlamydia.

Data Source: Client Health Records

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #1

Measure: The percent of family planning clients of reproductive age who receives preconception
counseling.

Goal: To assure that all women of childbearing age receiving Title X services receive
preconception care services through risk assessment (i.e., screening, educational &

health promotion, and interventions) that will reduce reproductive risk.

Definition: Numerator: Total number of clients of reproductive age who receive preconception
health counseling.

Denominator: Total number of clients of reproductive age.

Data Source: Client Health Records

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #2

Measure: The percent of ferale family planning clients < age 25 screened for Chlamydia
infection.

Goal: To improve diagnosis of asymptomatic chlamydia infection in the age group with
highest risk for this STD.

Definition: Numerator: Total number of chlamydia tests for female clients <25.
Denominator: Total number of female clients < age 25.

Data Source: Region 1 Data System
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Attachment D, Amendment #2

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #3

Measure: The percentage of women aged 15-44 at nsk of unintended pregnancy that is provided a
most effective (sterilization, implants, intrauterine devices or systems (IUD/IUS)) or moderately
effective (injectable, oral pills, patch, ring, or diaphragm) contraceptive method

Goal: To improve utilization of most and most effective contraceptive methods to reduce
unintended pregnancy.

Definition: Numerator: The number of women aged 15-44 years at risk for unintended pregnancy
that is provided a most or moderately effective contraceptive method.

Denominator: The number of women aged 15-44 years at risk for unintended
pregnancy

Data Source: Region 1 Data System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #4

Measure: The percentage of women aged 15-44 years at risk of unintended pregnancy that is
provided a LARC (implants or intrauterine devices or systems (IUD/IUS)} method.

Goal: ‘To improve utilization of LARC contraceptive methods to reduce unintended
pregnancy.

Definition: Numerator: The number of women aged 15-44 years at risk of pregnancy that is
provided a long-acting reversible contraceptive (LARC) method (implants or IUD/1US).

Denominator: The number of women aged 15-44 years at risk for unintended
pregnancy.

Data Source: Region | Data System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #5

Measure: The percent of family planning clients less than 18 years of age who received education
that abstinence is a viable method/form of birth control.

Goal: To improve access to a broad range of effective contraceptive methods including
abstinence to prevent unintended pregnancy, STD and HIV/AIDS.

Definition: Numerator: Total number of clients under the age of 18 who received abstinence

education.
Coos County Family Health Attachment D, Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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Denominator: Total number of clients under the age of 18.

Data Source: Client Health Records

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #6

Measure: The percentage of family planning clients who received STD/HIV reduction education.

Goal: To ensure that all clients receive STD/HIV reduction education.

Definiti(‘m: Numerator: The total number of clients that received STD/HIV reduction education.
Denominator: The total number of clients served.

Data Source:; Client Health Records

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #7

Community Partnership Report

Definition: This measure calls for face-to-face meetings with agencies or individuals intended to
increase linkages between the family planning program and key partners in the community. Outreach
efforts should include: (1) learning about the partner agency (2} informing the partner agency about
family planning services and (3) identifying areas where linkages can be established. The most
effective outreach is targeted to a specific audience and/or purpose and is directed based on identified
needs. All sites are required to make one contact annually with the local DCYF office. Please be very
specific in describing the outcomes of the linkages you were able to establish.

Agency/Individual Purpose Contact Outcome - Linkages
Partner Contacted Date Established

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #8

Annual Training Report

Coos County Family Health Attachment D, Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-03-A01
Page 5 of 6 Date r
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Attachment D, Amendment #2

Definition: This measure calls for the FP delegate to submit an annual training report for clinical &
non-clinical staff that participate in family planning services and/or activities to ensure adequate
knowledge of Title X policies, practices and guidelines.

Coos County Family Health Attachment D, Amendment #2 Contractor Initials™

RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-03-A01
Page 6 of 6 Date /20719



Attachment E, Amendment #2

New Hampshire Title X Family Planning Program

Family Planning Annual Report (FPAR)
- ata Elements:
Effective July 1, 2017

Additional Data Elements
Proposed for FPAR 2.0:

Age

Annual Household Income
Birth Sex

Breast Exam

CBE Referral

Chlamydia Test (CT)
Contraceptive method initial
Date of Birth

English Proficiency
Ethnicity

Gonorrhea Test (GC)

HIV Test — Rapid

HIV Test — Standard
Household size

Medical Services

Office Visit — new or established patient
Pap Smear

Patient Number
Preconception Counseling
Pregnancy Test

Primary Contraceptive Method
Primary Reimbursement
Principle Health Insurance Coverage
Procedure Visit Type
Provider Type

Race

Reason for no method at exit
RPR

Site

Visit Date

Zip code

Clinical Provider Identifier
Contraceptive Counseling
Counseling to Achieve Pregnancy
CT Test Result

Date of Last HIV test

Date of Last HPV Co-test

Date of Pap Tests Last 5 years
Diastolic blood pressure

Ever Had Sex

Facility Identifier

GC Test Result

Gravidity

Height

HIV Referral Recommended Date
HIV Referral Visit Completed Date
How Contraceptive Method(s) Provided at Exit
HPV Test Result

Method(s) Provided At Exit

Parity

Pregnancy Intention

Pregnancy Status Reporting
Reason for no contraceptive method at intake
Sex Last 12 Months

Sex Last 3 Months

Smoking status

Systolic blood pressure

Weight

Coos County Family Health
RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-03-A01

Pagelofl

Attachment E, Amendment #1
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Attachment F, Amendment #2

Familv Planning Reportin

alendar SFY 20-2

D ithin 30 d [G&C T
2019 Clinical Guidelines signatures
SFY 20-21 FP Work Plans

SEY 20 (July 1; 2019:-June 30, 2020).

1' " ”F\" ')‘-‘ K

Due Date:

Reportmg Reqmrement

October 4, 2019

Public Health Stenlization Records (July-September)

January 17, 2020 FP Source of Revenue for FPAR
Clinical Data for FPAR (HIV & Pap Tests)
Table 13: FTE/Provider Type for FPAR
April 3, 2020 Public Health Sterilization Records (January-March)
Late April — May (Official dates shared when | 340B Annual Recertification

released from HRSA) (http://ow.ly/NBJG30dmcF7)

May 1, 2020 Pharmacy Protocols/Guidelines

May 29, 2020 . 1&E Material List with Advisory Board Approval Dates
- Federal Scales/Fee Schedules

June 26, 2020 Cllmcal Guidelines Sl@amres (effective July 1, 2020)

SEY:21'(July 1-2020="Junc 30,2021) " #" 2

e e G IR g&-ﬁﬁh R

Due Date:

Reporting Requnrement

August 31, 2020

Patient Satisfaction Surveys
Outreach and Education Report
Annual Training Report

Work Plan Update/Outcome Report
Data Trend Tables (DTT)

October 2, 2020

Public Health Sterilization Records (July-September)

January 8, 2021

Public Health Sterilization Records (September -
December)

January 15, 2021

FP Source of Revenue for FPAR
Clinical Data for FPAR (HIV & Pap Tests)
Table 13: FTE/Provider Type for FPAR

April 2, 2021 Public Health Sterilization Records (January-March)

Late April — May (Official dates shared when | 340B Annual Recertification

released from HRSA) {http://ow.ly/NBJG30dmcF7)

May 7, 2021 Pharmacy Protocols/Guidelines

May 28, 2021 I&E Material List with Advisory Board Approval
Dates
Federal Scales/Fee Schedules

June 25, 2021 Clinical Guidelines Signatures (effective July 1, 2021)

Coos County Family Health
RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-03-A01

Page 10f2
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Attachment F, Amendment #2

August 31, 2021 . Patient Satisfaction Surveys
Outreach and Education Report
Annual Training Report

Work Plan Update/Outcome Report
Data Trend Tables (DTT)

TBD 2021 FPAR Data

All dates and reporting requirements are subject to change at the discretion of the NH Family Planning Program and
Title X Federal Requirements.

Coos County Family Health Attachment F, Amendment #1 Contractor Initial
RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-03-A01
Page 2 of 2 Date a



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

Exhibit B, Amendment #1

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8
of the Form P-37 General Provisions, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to
Exhibit A - Amendment #1, Scope of Services

2. This Agreement is funded from State General Funds and Federal Funds from the Office of
Population Affairs, CFDA #93.217, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN}),
FPHPAQ006407 and US DHHS Administration for Children and Families, CFDA #93.558,
FAIN #1701NHTANF.

3. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the Contractor's current and/or future
funding.

4. The Contractor shall submit a detailed budget to the Department for review and approval no
later than ten (10) business days from the contract effective date. The Contractor shall:

4.1. Utilize budget forms as provided by the Department.

4.2. Submit a budget for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 that does not exceed funding
availabte for each state fiscal year for Department review and approval.

4.3. Submit a budget narrative and staff list for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 in
accordance with the budgets submitted, as approved by the Department, in accordance
with Subsection 4.2, above.

4.4, Agree that budget forms, budget narratives and staff lists provided and approved by the
Department in accordance with this Section 4 shall be incorporated by reference into this
agreement no later than thirty (30) days from the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

5. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

5.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved budget line
items, as detailed in Section 4, above.

5.2. The Contractor shall submit monthly invoices in a form satisfactory to the State by the
tenth {10%) working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for
authorized expenses incurred in the previous month.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure each invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment.

5.4. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and only if sufficient funds are
available.

Coos County Family Health Exhibit B, Amendment #1 Contractor inltials

RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-03-A01 I
Page 1 of 2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

Exhibit B, Amendment #1

5.5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to: DPHScontractbiling@dhhs.nh.gov

5.6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports and deliverables identified
in Exhibit A - Amendment #1, Scope of Services.

. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or
Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have
not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits
within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years may be
made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of
the Governor and Executive Council.

Coos County Family Health Exhibit B, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-03-A01

Page 2 of 2 Date S/



State of New Hampshire

Department ofi'State
!

CERTIFICATE:

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hompshire, do hereby certify that COOS COUNTY FAMILY

|
HEALTH SERVICES, INC. is o New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on
December 14, 1979. I further certify that all fees and documents réquired b)i the Sceretary of State's office have been received

and is in good sianding as for as this office is concerned.

Busingss 1D: 63204 '
Certificate Number : 0004488016

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this Ist day of April A.D. 2019,

Dor ok

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

l o 5 = s , do hereby certify that:
{(Name of the elected Officepof the Agency; cannoibe contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of
cy Name)

2. The following is a true cop’ of Te resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

T4

(Date

) :
RESOLVED: That the @_ EO

(Title of Contract Signatory)

the Agency duly held on

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgeing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the&li day of MC%{ 2019

{Date Contract Slgned)

4, £'g Y1 G;di{)! I is the duly elected QEO
{(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

4.

STATEOFN HAMPSHIRE

County of

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ; }lsi day of MOJ{ , 20 Iq )

By ""' - C’uqFa@ MJ#—-
{Name bf Elected Officer of the Agency)

TP ART FREAADNEST

lic/Justice of the Peace)
s

(NOTARY SEAL) "

Cbrﬁrﬁissign Expires: _‘




) &
ACORD
V

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DDVYYYY)}
7/12/2018

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND,

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE 1S ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the

cortificate holder in liou of such endorsement(s).

policy{ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policles may reguire an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER
PIAI/Cross Insurance
1100 Elm Street

_gg#g\m Hellen Hill

PHONE . (603)669-3218 TA% Noj; 16031 645-4331

~MAIL

| ADDRESS: hhill@crossagency.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Manchester NH 03101 INSURER A :Philadelphia Indemnity Ing Co 18058
INSURED ‘ INSURER 8 MEMIC Indemnity Company 11030
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. INSURER G :
133 Pleasant Street INSURER O :

INSURERE :
Berlin NH 03570-2006 INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:18-1% All lines REVISION NUMBER:

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

TNER ADDL[SUER] LICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LIR TYPE OF INSURANCE NSO | WvD POLICY NUMBER MR/DD, gM?ﬂDONYYY] LIMITS
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
| DAMAGE TO RENTED
A cuamsusoe [x ] occun | PREMISES (En cocurence) | § t, 000,000
PHPX1676672 1/172018 7/1/2019 | MED EXP {Any ona parson) $ 20,000
— PERSONAL 8 ADVINJURY [ 1,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 2,000,000
POLICY & Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 2,000,000
OTHER: H
UTOMOBILE LIABILITY RNBNED SINGLE LT Ty 1,000,000
A X | ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY {Per parson) | §
AL OYINED SCHEBULED PHPX1676678 7/172018 | 7/1/2015 | BODILY INJURY (Fer accident}| §
| NON-QWNED ' PROPERTY DAMAGE P
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS {Per sccident)
Uninsured motorist Bl-single | § 1,000,000
X | UMBRELLAUAE | X | occur EACH OCCURRENCE $ 3,000,000
A EXCESS UIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 3 3,000,000
DED l X I RETENTION § 10, 000 PHUBS90712 7/1/2018 7/1/201% __ S E
WORKERS COMPENSATION 3102602240 X | PER T OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN stawre | {3
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE {3a.) NH E.L. EACH ACCIDENT s 1,000,000
-, |OFFICERAMEMBER EXCLUDED?.. _._. _E NiA . .
B |{mandstory In NH} : All officers -included 7/1/2018 | 7/1/2019 ['E. INSEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ — 1,000,000
if yes, describe under :
DESCRIFTION OF OPERATIONS bekw E.L. DISEASE - POLICY.UMIT | § 1,000,000
A | Employee Dishoneaty PHPK1676672 7/1/2018 T/1/2019 | Limit 300,000

State of NH Department of Health & Human. Services is

DESCRIPTION QF QPERATIONS { LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space is required)

included as additional insured with respects to the

CGL as per written contract. Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provislons.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

jsouthwick@dhha.state.nh.u

NH Department of Health & Human Services
Div. of Public Health Svcs

Contract & Procurement Unit

29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301-6504

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREQF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

M Guarino/JSC W -%‘:"’

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INSDO25 m0sann

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are reglistered marks of ACORD




cods county /"./\
Famlly Health

j

54 Willow Street
Berlin, NH 03570-1800
Ph: 1-603-752-3669
Fax: 1-603-752-3027

2 Broadway Street
Gorham, NH 03581-1597
Ph: 1-603-466-2741

Fax: 1-603-466-2953

133 Pleasant Street
Beriln, NH 03570-2006
Ph: 1-603-752-2040
Fax: 1-603-752-7797

59 Page Hill Road
Berlin, NH 03570-3568
Ph: 1-603-752-2900
Fax: 1-603-752-3727

MISSION OF
COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES

Cods County Family Health Services is a community-based organization providing innovative,
personalized, comprehensive health care and social services of the highest quality to everyone,
regardless of economic status.

(Mission Statement)
Board Approved 1/17/19

RESPONSE (603) 752-5679 & FAX (603} 752-3027

This institution is an equal opportunity provider, and employer.

www .coosfamilyhealth.org
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
and

REPORTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS AND UN!FORM GUIDANCE

June 30, 2018 and 2017

With Independent Auditor's Report




BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.
(the Organization), which comprise the balance sheets as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related
statements of operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

A
Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We .
conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or .
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Banguor, ME ¢ Portland, ME + Manchiesler, NH ¢ Glastonbury, CT Charleston, WY ® Phoenix, AZ
berrydunn.com



Board of Directors
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.
- Page 2

Qpinion

In.our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Organization as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the results of its operations,
.changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S., generally. -
accepted accounting principles. . :

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in ali
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September
20, 2018 on our consideration of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
apinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting ‘or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering thé Organization's mternal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

81/%«3 Ducnn Me Vel § Purden, Lt

Portland, Maine
Se_ptember 20, 2018



CO0OS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
Balance Sheets

June 30, 2018 and 2017

. ASSETS
2018 201
Currént assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,973,813 §$ 2,367,938
Patient accounts receivable, net 1,664,499 1,542,290
Grants receivable 272,269 226,011
Due from third party payers 45,000 55,000
~ Other current assets ' 80,577 87,916
Total current assets 4,036,158 4,279,155
Investments 750,000 , -
Assets limited as to use 612,624 658,415
Beneficial interest in funds held by others ‘ 26,180 19,352
Property and equipment, net ' 2,273,388 2:365,430
Total assets s 7,698.350 $ 7,322,352
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities .
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 308,377 & 276711
Accrued payroll and related expenses 738,762 828,757
Deferred revenue 31,500 -
Current maturities of long-term debt - 43,248
Total current liabilities 1,078,639 1,148,716
Long-term debt, less current maturities - 258,229
Total liabilities - 1,078,639 1,406,945
Net assets ‘
Unrestricted - . 6,496,643 5,757,854
Temporarily restricted ‘ 94,880 132,113
Permanently restricted _28.188 25,440
Total net assets 6619711 50915407
Total liabilities and net assets $_7.698,350 $_7.322,352

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-3-



COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.

‘Statements of Operations

Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Operating revenue
Patiént service revenue
Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue
Grants, contracts, and contributions
Other operating revenue
interest income
Net assets released from restriction for operations
Total operating revenue
Operating expenses
Salaries and benefits
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense
Total operating expenses
Excess of revenue over expenses

Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition

Increase in unrestricted net assets

201 2017
$10,167,944 $ 9584 827
(187,040) _ (312.981)
9,980,904  9.271.846
3,315147  3,384.250
145,677 162,991
3.586 3823
60.470 51277
13,505.784 12.874.187
9,269,273 8,782,282
3365849 3203632
249132 258.710
820 13.635
12,875,074 12.348.259
630,710 525,928
108,079 151,977
$_ 738789 $_ .677.905

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-4-



COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Unrestricted net assets
Excess of revenue over expenses - % 630,710 $ 525928
Grants received for capital acquisition 108,079 151,977
Increase in unrestricted net assets 738,789 677,905
Temporarily restricted net assets
Grants, contracts, and contributions 131,316 250,686
Net assets released from restriction for operations (60,470) (51,277)
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition {108.079) (151.977)
(Decrease) increase in temporarily restricted net assets (37.233) 47,432
Permanently restricted-net assets
Contributions 920 2,006
_ Change in fair value of beneficial interest in funds held by others 1,828 444
Increase in permanently restricted net assets 2,748 2,450
Change in net assets 704,304 727,787
Net assets, beginning of year 5915407 5,187,620
Net assets, end of year . $_.6,619.711 $_5915.407

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

\ 5.



COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC,

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

-Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided

by operating activities

Provision for bad debts

Depreciation and amortization

Contributions for long-term purposes

. Change in fair value of beneficial interest in funds held

by others :

{Increase) decrease in the following assets
Patient accounts receivable
Grants receivable
Due from third party payers
Other current assets

Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments
Capital acquisitions
(Increase) decrease in assets limited as to use
Transfer of endowment assets to perpetual trust held by others
Net cash used by investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Payments on long-term debt
Contributions for long-term purposes
Net cash used by financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest

2018

2017

$ 704304 $ 727,787

187,040 312,981
249,132 258,710
(108,999)  (153,983)

(1,828) (444)
(309,249)  (546,945)
(46,258) 445,095

10,000 (9,750)
(7,661) (41,240)
31,666 (84,984)
(89,995) 155,480
31,500 -
649,652 _1,062.707
(750,000) .
(142,090)  (253,831)
45,791 (18,057)
(5.000) -
(851,299) _ (271.888)
(301,477)  (353,946)
108,999 153,083
(192.478) _ (199.963)
(394,125) 590,856
2,367,938 _1,777.082

$_1.973813 $_2.367.938

$ 820 §

13,635

. The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018 and 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. (the Organization) is a not-for-profit corporation
orgariized in New Hampshire. The Organization is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC)
which provides outpatient health care, dental and disease prevention services to residents of Coos
County, New Hampshire through direct services, referral and advocacy.

The Organization is a non-principal participant in the National Rural ACO 13 LLC (the ACO). The
mission of the ACO is better heaith for populations, better care for individuals, and lower growth in
health care expenditures. As a participant in the ACO, the Organization intends to work with the
ACO, and other ACO participants and providers, to manage and coordinate care for Medicare fee-
for-service beneficiaries, and to be accountable for the quality, cost and overall care of its patients.
Pursuant to its operating agreement, the ACO will distribute shared savings it receives from
Medicare in a predetermined ratio to the Organization, as applicable.

Acquisition of Ronald D. Montminy, D.D.S., P.C.

On October 31, 2016, the Organization acquired a local dental practice for $85,000 to expand the
scope of the Organization's services to include dental. The acquisition price included $40,000 for
furniture and equipment and $45,000 for a non-compete for a one year period from the acquisition
date.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a
public charity, the Organization is'exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned
in accordance with its tax exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to state and
federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Organization’s tax positions and concluded
that the Organization has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to the financial statements.




COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements -

June 30, 2018 and 2017

Cash and Caéh Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with an original maturlty of three
months or less, excluding assets limited as to use.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible accounts. In
evaluating the collectability of patient accounts receivable, the Organization analyzes its past
- history and identifies trends for each funding source. Management regularly reviews data about
revenue in evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for uncollectible accounts. Amounts not
collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted are applied against the
allowance for uncollectible accounts.

"I reconciliation of the allowance for uncollectible accounts at June 30 is as follows:

2018 2017
Balance, beginning of year % 281,000 $ 182,000
Provision 187,040 . 312,981
Write-offs __{260,040) (213,981)
'Balance, end of year " $__208.000 $__ 281,000

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. All such amounts are considered collectible.

Investments

The Organization reports investments at fair value. Investments include assets held for long-term
purposes. Accordingly, investments have been classified as non-current assets on the
accompanying balance sheet regardless of maturity or liquidity. The Organization has established
policies governing long-term investments.

The Organization has elected the fair value option for valuing its investments, which consolidates
all investment performance activity within the other revenue and gains section of the statements of
operations. The election was made because the Organization believes reporting the activity as a
single amount provides a clearer measure of the investment performance.

Investment income and the change in fair value are included in the excess of revenue over
expenses, unless otherwise stipulated by the donor or State Law.




© COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2018 and 2017
Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility risks. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments

will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use include assets set aside as a reserve fund under loan agreements for
repairs and maintenance on the real property collateralizing the loans, assets designated by the
Board of Directors and donor-restricted grants and contributions.

Beneficial Interest in Funds Held by Others

The Organization is a beneficiary of an agency endowment fund at The New Hampshire Charitable
Foundation (the Foundation). Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing the fund,
property contributed to the Foundation is held as a separate fund designated for the benefit of the
Organization. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation makes distributions from the
fund to the Organization. The distributions are approximately 4% of the market value of the fund
per year, The Qrganization’s interest in the fund is recognized as permanently restricted net assets
with changes in fair value reported as permanently restricted.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Provision for
depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the related assets.

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as unrestricted net
assets, and excluded from the excess of revenue over expenses, unless explicit donor stipulations
specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions
that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to
acquire long-lived assets are reported as temporarily restricted net assets. Absent explicit donor
stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained, expirations of donor
restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets include contributions and grants for program services for which
donor-imposed restrictions have not been met. Assets are released from restrictions as
expenditures are made in line with restrictions called for under the terms of the donor.

Permanently restricted net assets include net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that
they be maintained permanently by the Organization. Generally, the donors of these assets permit
the Organization to use all or part of the income earned on related investments for general or
specific purposes.




COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018 and 2017

Donor-Restl_'icted Gifts

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to give are reported
at fair value at the date the gift is received and the conditions are met. The gifts are reported as
either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that
limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated -
time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of operations as "net assets
released from restriction.”

Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payers, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as
final settiements are determined.

340B Drug Pricing Program

The Orgamzatlon as an FQHC, is eligible to participate in the 340B Drug Pricing Program. The
program requnres drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHC's and other identified
entities at a reduced price. The Organization contracts with local pharmacies under this program.
The local pharmacies dispense drugs to eligible patients of the Organization and bill Medicare and
commercial insurances on behalf of the Organization. Reimbursement received by the pharmacies
is remitted to the Organization, less dispensing and administrative fees. Gross revenue generated
from the program is included in patient service revenue. The cost of drug replenishments and
contracted expenses incurred related to the program are included in other operating expenses.

Charity Care

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its sliding fee discount
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Organization does
not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net
patient service revenue.

Donated Goods and Services (Unaudited)

The Organization acts as a conduit for pharmaceutical company patient assistance programs. The
Organization provides assistance to patients in applying for and distributing prescription drugs
under the programs. The value of the prescription drugs distributed by the Organization to patients
is not reflected in the accompanying financial statements. The Organization estimates that the
value of prescription drugs distributed by the Organization for the years ended June 30, 2018 and
2017 was $2,183,864 and $2,756,237, respectively.

-10-



COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018 and 2017

Various program help and support for the daily operations of the Organization's Response
Program were provided by the general public of the surrounding communities. The donated
services have not been reflected in the accompanying financial statements because they do not
meet - the “criteria - for recognltnon (spemallzed skills that would be purchased if not donated).
Management estimates the fair value of donated services received but not recognized as revenues
was $132,525 and $121,692 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The
Response Program also receives donated supplies to be used for program activities. The fair
value of supplies recognized as revenues was $10,165 and $3,447 for the years ended June 30,
2018 and 2017, respectively.

Functional Expenses

The Organization provides various services to residents within its geographic location. Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows:

2018 2017
Program services $11,289,709 $10,811,394
Administrative and general 1,585,365 1,536,865
\ Total | $12,875.074 $12.348.259

"Excess of Revenue Over Expenses

The statements of operations reflect the excess of revenue over expenses. Changes in
unrestricted net assets which are excluded from the excess of revenue over expenses, consistent
with industry practice, include contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using
_contributions which, by donor restriction, were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such
assets).

Subsequént Events

For purposes of the preparat:on of these financial statements, management has considered
transactions or events -occurring through September 20, 2018, the date that the financial
statements were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated subsequent events after
that date for inclusion in the financial statements.

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable consisted of the following as of June 30:

2018 2017
Medical and dental patient accounts receivable $ 1,111,015 § 1,012,113
Contract 340B pharmacy receivable 761.484 811177
Total patient accounts receivable 1,872,499 1,823,290
Allowance for doubtful accounts {208,000) (281.000)
Patient accounts receivable, net $_1.664.499 $_1,542,290

-1 -



COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018 and 2017

Investments

Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC) Topic 820,
Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants and
also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.

The fair value hierarchy within FASB ASC Toplc 820 dlstmguushes three levels of inputs that may
be utilized when measuring fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3. Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Organization's
investments at fair value measured on a recurring basis:

Investments at Fair Value as of June 30, 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents - § 49520 $ - % - % 49,520
Corporate bonds - 400,990 - 400,990
Government bonds 299,490 - - 299,490
Total investments ' $_ 349.010 $_ 400990 $ - % 750,000

Corporate bonds are valued based on quoted market prices of similar assets.

-12-



COO0S COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2018 and 2017

Assets Limited as to Use
/

Assets limited as to use is comprised of cash and cash equivalents and consisted of the following
as of June 30:

2018 2017
Board designated: wétking capital ~ "~ $ 515736 $ 513,931
United States Department of Agriculture Rural
Development: loan agreements - 6,283
Donor restricted:
Temporarily restricted. specific purposes 94,880 132,113
Permanently restricted: endowment - 2,008 6.088
Total e $_ 612,624 $_ 658415
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consists of the following:
2018 2017
Land and improvements $ 153,257 $ 153,257
Building and improvements 3,233,370 3,233,370
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 2,129,449 1,999.035
Total cost 5,516,076 5,385,662
Less accumulated depreciation 3,242,688 3,020,232
Property and equipment, net ' $_2.273,388 $_2.365430

In 2010, the Organization made renovations to certain buildings with Federal grant funding under
the ARRA — Capital Improvement Program. In 2014 the. Organization also made renovations to
certain buildings with Federal grant funding under the ACA — Capital Development Program. In
accordance with the grant agreements, a Notice of Federal Interest (NFI) is required to be filed in
the appropriate official records of the jurisdiction in which the property is located. The NFI is
designed to notify any prospective buyer or creditor that the Federal Government has a financial
interest in the real property acquired under the aforementioned grant; that the property may not be
used for any purpose inconsistent with that authorized by the grant program statute and applicable
regulations: that the property may not be mortgaged or otherwise used as collateral without the
written permission of the Associate Administrator of the Office of Federal Assistance Management
(OFAM), Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA); and that the property may not be
sold or transferred to another party without the written permission of the Associate Administrator of
OFAM, HRSA.

-13-



- CO0S COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC,
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018 and 2017

| 6. rLine of Credit

The Organization had a $500,000 line of credit with a local bank, which automatically renews
annually in June. The line of credit is collateralized by the Organization's business assets with
interest at the prime rate plus 1.50% (6.50% at June 30, 2018). The Organization is also required
to pay 0.25% monthly on the unused portion of the line. There was no outstanding batance at June
30, 2018 and 2017. Androscoggin Valley Hospital is guarantor for the line. :

7. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:

N
(=]
—
o]
N
L)
s
-~

Note payable, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Rural
Development, payable in monthly
installments of $1,285, including interest at 3.375%, due
May 2042, collateralized by real estate. The note was paid
in full in August 2017. $ - $ 258958

Note payable, New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities
Authority, payable in monthly installments of $3,060,
including interest at 1.00%, due August 2018, collateralized .
by real estate. The note was paid in full in August 2017, - 42 519

Total long-term debt . 301,477
Less current maturities - 43 248
Long-term debt, less current maturities $___ - $__ 258229

8. Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue is as follows'

2018 017
Gross charges $ 9,310,013 $ 9,199,071
340B pharmacy revenue 2552170 2,201,231
Total gross revenue 11,862,183 11,400,302
Contractual adjustments ' (1,383,837) (1,566,748)
Sliding fee scale discounts . {310,402) _ (248.727)
' Total patient service revenle $10.167.944 $_0.584.827

-14 -
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2018 and 2017

Primary payers representing 10% or more of the Organization's'gross patient service revenue are
as follows: ' ' '

2018 2017
Medicare 33 % 33 %
Medicaid 24 % 23 %
Blue Cross ' 18 % 18 %
Harvard Pilgrim ' 12 % 12 %

The Organization has agreements with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. Laws and
regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. The Organization believes that it is in compliance with all laws and regulations.
Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and
interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and exclusion from
the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Differences between amounts previously estimated and
amounts subseguently determined to be recoverable or payable are included in patient service
revenue in the year that such amounts become known.

A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payers follows:
Medicare

The Organization is reimbursed for the care of qualified patients on a prospective basis, with
retroactive settlements related to vaccine costs only. The prospective payment is based on a
geographically-adjusted rate determined by Federal guidelines. Overall, reimbursement is subject
to a maximum allowable rate per visit. The Organization's Medicare cost reports have been
audited by the Medicare administrative contractor through June 30, 2016. :

Medicaid and Other Payers

The Organization also has entered into payment agreements with Medicaid and certain
commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations and preferred provider
organizations. The basis for payment to the Organization under these agreements includes
prospectively determined rates per visit, discounts from established charges and capitated
arrangements for primary care services on a per member, per month basis.

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its sliding fee discount
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. - The Organization estimates the
costs associated with providing charity care by calculating the ratio of total cost to total charges,
and then multiplying that ratio by the gross uncompensated charges associated with providing care
to patients eligible for free care. The estimated cost of providing services to patients under the
Organization sliding fee discount policy amounted to $392,464 and $311,485 for the years ended
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Organization is able to provide these services with a component of funds received through
local community support and federal and state grants.

-15-
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC,
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018 and 2017

Retirement Plan

The Organization has a defined contribution plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) that
cover substantially all employees. The Organization contributed $209,121 and $182,073 for the
years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Malpractice Insurance

The Organization is protected from medical malpractice risk as an FQHC under the-Federal Tort
Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional medical malpractice insurance, on a claims-
made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the FTCA. As of the year ended
June 30, 2018, there were no known malpractice claims cutstanding which in the opinion of
management, will be settled for amounts in excess of both FTCA and additional medical
malpractice insurance coverage, nor are there any unasserted claims or incidents which require
loss accrual. The Organization intends to renew the additional medical malpractice insurance
coverage on a claims-made basis and anticipates that such coverage will be available.

Concentration of Risk

The Organization has cash deposits in major financial institutions which exceed federal depositbry
insurance limits. The financial institutions have a strong credit rating and management believes the
credit risk related to these deposits is minimal.

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. The following is a summary of gross medical
and dental patient accounts receivable, by funding source at June 30, 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017
Medicare ‘ 35 % 14 %
Medicaid 17 % 29 %
Blue Cross 15 % 16 %
Harvard Pilgrim . _ 9 % 12 %
Other 24 % 29 %
100 % 100 %

The following is a summary of gross 340B pharmacy accounts receivable, by contract pharmacy at
June 30, 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017
Walmart Stores, Inc. _ - 64 % 97 %
Walgreen Co. 29 % 3 %
Other 7% - %
100 % 100 %
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COO0S COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018 and 2017

The Organization receives a significant amount of grants from the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS). As with all government funding, these grants are subject to change in
future years. For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, grants from DHHS (including both
direct awards and awards passed through other organizations) represented approximately 66%
and 70%, respectively, of grants, contracts, and contributions.

-17 -
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COO0S COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC,
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Federal Passthrough

Federal Grant/Pass-Through CFDA Contract
Grantor/Proaram Title Number Number

United States Department of Health and MHuman Services:
Dirgct: )
" Health Centers Cluster
Consolidated Health Centers (Community Health
Centers, Migrant Health Centers, Health Care for
the Homeless, and Public Housing Primary Care) ' 83.224
Affordable Care Act (ACA) Grants for New and
Expanded Services Under the Health Center
Program ' 93.527

Total Health Centers Cluster

Passthrough:
State of New Hampshire Department of Health
Human Services
Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to

the States ' 93.994 102-500731/90080000
Family Planning Services 83.217 102-500734/80080203
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 502-500891/45130203
Cancer Prevention and Control Pregrams for State,

Territorial and Tribal Organizations 93.898 102-500731/90080081

Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant
funded solely with Prevention and Public Health
Funds (PPHF) . 93.758 102-500731/90072003

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence
Injury Prevention and Control Research and State

and Community Based Programs 93.136 not available
Family Violence Prevention and Services/Domestic
Violence Shelter and Supportive Services 93.671 not available

Bi-Sfate Primary Care Association, Ing.

Grants to States to Support Oral Health Warkferce
Aclivities - 93.236 not available

Total United States Department of Health and Human Services

United States Department of Justice;
Passthrough:
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence

Sexual Assault Services Formula Program 16.017 not available
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 not available
Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies and

Enforcement of Protection Orders Program 16.590 not available

Total United States Department of Justice
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

The accompanying notes are an iﬁtegral bad of this schedule. ¢ .

Total
Federal

Expenditures

s . 644,161

1,361,384

2,005,545

7.521
39,844
11,331

17,807

43,359

12,995

65,966

- 79,162

2,283,530

28,147
142,103

5,531

175,781
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Basis of Presentation

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant activity
of Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. The information in this schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
" Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of
the Organization, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net
assets, or cash flows of Coos County Family Health Services, Inc,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.
Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal
course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Pass-through entity
identifying numbers are presented where available. Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. has
elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.

We havé audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. (the
Organization), which comprise the balance sheet as of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of
operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 20, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial-Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control} to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

i
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Board of Directors :
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal contro! and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Bersyy Disrn MeYed f Funder, 10C

Portland, Maine
September 20, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR THE MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
" OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc,

Report on Compliance for The Major Federal Program .
We have audited Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.'s (the Organization) compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2018. The
Organization's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Respons:bmty

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility ; :

Our respbnsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the Organization's major federal program
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit
of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Organization's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on'compliance for the major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's
compliance.

Opinion on the Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the

types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its
major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Bangor, ME » Portland, ME ¢ iManchester, NH ¢ Glastonbury, CT # Charleston, WV & Phoenix, AZ
berrydunn.com



Board of Directors
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the Organization's internal control over compliance with the types
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program to determine
the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance for the major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Crganization's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their _
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies; in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did ‘not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

80\43 Diinn Me Vel § Fuider, L L L

Portland, Maine
September 20, 2018
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2018

\

1. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued: .Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? O vYes M No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
“considered to be material weakness(es)? (0 Yes K&  Nonereported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? O Yes M No
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified: O Yes M No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not _
considered to be material weakness(es)? O vYes ®  Nonereported
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: ' Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR200.516(a)? . 0 Yes M No
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Health Centers Cluster
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs: ' $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? | M Yes [1 No

2. Financial Statement Findings

None

3. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
54 WILLOW STREET - BERLIN, NH 03570
752-3669
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

H. Guyford Stever, Jr., 2019 (3%)
**PRESIDENT**
Chair, Executive Committee

Dawn Cross, 2019 (1%
**VICE-PRESIDENT**

Aline Boucher, 2020 (4%
**TREASURER**
Chair, Finance/Development Committee

Pauline Tibbetts, 2020 (1*)
**SECRETARY**

Joan Merrill, 2019 (3")
** IMMEDIATE PAST PRESIDENT**
Chair, Executive Committee

Robert Pelchat, 2020 (6™)
Marge McClellan, 2020 (6)

Roland Olivier, 2020 (2™
Chair, Health Care Reform Committee

David Morin, 2020 (2"
Chair, Governance Committee

Robert Thompson, 2021 (2™
Chair, Facilities Committee

Timothy Beaulac, 2019 (1*)
Chair, Corporate Compliance Committee

Claudette Morneau, 2020 (1%
Chair, Quality Improvement Committee

Patti Stolte, 2020 (1%
Chair, Personnel Committee

Kassie Eafrati



Kenneth E. Gol‘don‘?

WORK EXPERIENCE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER: Coos County Family Health Setvices, Berlin, New FHlampshize
(2/15 - present)

* Provided administrative and strategic leadership to a Federally Qualified Health Center
serving apptroximately 12,000 patients.
‘o Work closely with the organization’s Board of Directors to establish policy and to
monitor petformance in the realms of finance, clinical quality, consumer and staff

satisfaction.
AY

ADMINISTRATOR North Country Health Consortium, Littleton, New Hampshire (8/13 —
present)

e Provide administrative leadership of the North Country Accountable Care Organization,
a newly formed non-profit entity comprised of four community health centers working
in collaboration to improve the health and well- bemg of North Countty residents.

- EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: Area Agency on Agmg for Northeastern Vermont, St. Johasbury,
Vermont (9/02 - 7/13)

* Provided administrative leadership to a private, non-profit human service agency serving
older adults and family caregivers.

* Financial management of the organization’s budget.

¢ Supervision of clinical and administrative staff.

SOCIAL SERVICES COORDINATOR: Caledonia Home Health Cate and Hospice, St
Johnsbury, Vermont (8/97 - 8/02)

¥ o Provided medical social work to individuals and families receiving home care and
hospice services.
* Supervised and coordinated the work of four master’s level staff members.
¢ Provided consultaton to medical staff regarding psycho-social issues.
* Participated in discharge planning with other social service and health agencies.

CHILD PROTECTIVE SERVICE WORKER: Vermont Department of Social & Rehabilitadon
Services, St. Johnsbury, Vermont (5/96 - 8/97)

¢ Coordinated muladisciplinary treatment teams providing services to families.

" ‘:«{%“@;Kenncth E. Gordon



Resume/Pg. 2,
* Psychosocial assessment & case planining.

s Care Managément (Medicaid reimbuisable).

o Individual and family counseling.

¢ Placement and supervision of children in foster care.
» DPreparation of court reports.

ADOPTION SOCIAL WORKER: Vermont Department of Social & Rehabilitation Services,
St. Johnsbury & Newpott, Vermont (4/90 -9/94)

* Recruitment, training and assessment of adoptive applicants.

o Placement and supervision of abused and neglected children with adoptive families.
s Counseling with birth parents considering the voluntary relinquishment of a child.
+ Consultation with casework staff regarding adoption tssues.

o Preparation of adoption homes studies and probate coutrt repotts.

FOSTER CARE COORDINATOR: Vermont Depattment of Social & Rehabilitation Services,
St. Johasbury, Vermont (12/86 - 4/90)

¢ Managed a foster cate program serving ﬁpproxirnately fifty children.
. Eis‘cal administration, program planning and evaluation.
¢ Curriculum development and in-service training,

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR: Upward Bound Project, Lyndon State College (9/85 - 12/86)

7
¢ Co-directed a college pteparatoty program for disadvantaged youth.

* Formulated program goals and evaluated outcomes.

¢ Co-authored a successful federal grant pro_posai totaling more than $400.00.

¢ Training, supervision and evaluation of staff.

¢ Academic and career counseling.

EDUCATION

MASTERS OF SOCIAL WORK (M.S.W.) May 1996. University of Vermont
e 1*year field internship: Reach Up Program, Vermont Department of Social Welfare
o 2" year clinical internship: Fletcher Allen Health Care, Inpatient Psychiatric Unit

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE (B.S.) Bchavioral Science and Special Education. May, 1984.
Lyndon State College, Lyndonville, Vermont

REFERENCES

Available upon request



Patricia A. Couture

Work History -
“1983- Present Coos Cownty Family Health Services, Berlin, NH.

1991- Present: Chief Operating Office/RN:  Responsible for the day-to-day
administration and overall activities of the clinical services in conjunction with the
Medical Director and Chiel Executive Officer. Major administrative responsibilities
include: implement and monitor quality improvement programs; hire, train, supervise and
evaluate employees; assist Chiel Executive Officer with grant proposals; assist Medical
Director with clinical policics and guidelines; perform medical record audits; implement
all clinical schedutes, and be familiar with all outpatient nursing functions. Responsible
for the overall direction, coordination and cvaluation of Nursing, Medical Records,
Pharmacy, Medical Support, Laboratory and Maintenance Services.

2011- Present: Corporate Compliance Officer: Responsible for the operation and
management ol the Compliance Program and reports 10 the CEO and Board of Directors.

1986-1991 Site Coordinator: Responsible for the coordination and evaluation of three
programs: Family Planmng,/Womcn s Health, Sexually Transmitted Diseases, and HIV
Counseling and Testing in three communities - Berlin, Lancaster and Colebrook.
Administrative responsibilities included: trained. supervised and evaluated employees;
assisted Executive Director with agency policies, procedure and protocols; and provided
commumty education. Clinical responsibilities included: patient counseling, education,
follow-up,  documentation, faboratory  serviccs, referrals and  nursing
funclions/procedures.

1983-1986 Clinical Nurse/Counsclor: Responsible lor outpatient clinical services and
Family Planning/Women's Health counseling services.

1976-1983 St. Vincent de Paul Nursing Home, Berlin, NH.

LPN Charge Nurse: Nursing responsibilities included: responsible for 29 residents,
supervised nurse’s aides, prepared verbal/writien reports, administration of medication,
complete nursing care, transcribed physician orders, and documentation; nursing process,
assessmenl. nursing diagnosis, care plan, outpatient goals, outcomes and nursing
intervenlions. .

1976-1977 Androscbggr'n Valley Hospital Berlin, NH
*Private Duty Nurse: Complete nursing care.



Education:
Granite State College
Bachelor of Science in Healthcare Administration, 2007 December
' Member of Alpha Sigma Lambda National Honor Society

New Hampshire Technical College, Berlin, NH
Associate Nursing Degree, 1989 (May)
Member of Phi Theta Kappa Honor Society

New Hampshire Vocational Technical College, Berlin, NH
Practical Nursing Diploma, 1976 (June)
Graduated with Honors

Berlin High School, Berlin, NH
Graduated 1975 :

License: .
New Hampshire Board of Nursing, Concord, NH
" Registered Nurse License, 1990 (July)
Practical Nurse License, 1976 (October)

Continued Education:
Nursing and Management Workshops, Seminars, National Conferences and Lectures.

References:
Available Upon Request



MELISSA M FRENETTE, CPA

FUNCTIONAL SUMMARY

Certified Public Accountant with over twelve years of experience in public accounting. Experienced
in training and supervising staff, managing multple on-going engagements and facilitating timely
income tax filing and reporting for firm clients. _

EMPLOYMENT
2007-Present  Coos County Family Health Services Betlin, NH
Chief Financial Officer

Oversee the general operation of the Finance and Purchasing Departments
Analyzes available data and suggests way to improve agency’s self sufficiency
Prepares budgets, reports and studies for CCFHS and all funding sources
Takes a leadership role in the annual financial audit )

Performs employee evaluations and assigns tasks as appropriate

Attends applicable board and committee meetings

Possesses a through working knowledge of cost reporting requirements

2004-2007  Malone, Dirubbo & Company/Phillips & AssociatesLincoln, NH
Senior Staff Accountant '

Conducted financial statement audits for multiple entities
Prepared audited, reviewed, and compiled financial statements
Compiled and prepared loan package information

Consulted in business entity choices

Prepared personal and business income tax returns

Prepared personal and business income tax projections
Prepared projected financial statements and cash flows
Consulted in inventory cost methods

Trained clients in use of accounting software

1995-2004 Driscoll & Company, PLLC Betlin, NH
Sénior Staff Accountant/ Qffice Manager

. EDUCATION

Supervised and trained office staff members

Managed work flow for deadline achievement

Installed and maintained accounting and tax software
Prepared audited, reviewed, and compiled financial statements
Prepared payroll tax returns '

Conducted 401(K)} plan audits and financial statements

1992-1995 Plymouth State University Plymouth, NH

B.S. Accounting, minor Mathematics
Graduated cum laude




COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES

Current Assistant Treasurer of Business Enterprise Development Corporation (BEDCO)

Former member Androscoggin Valley Economic Recovery (AVER) technology taskforce

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS

Amercan Institute of Certified Public Accountants

New Hampshire Society of Certified Public Accountants



Coos County Family Health Services

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Ken Gordon CEO $149,000 0 $0

Patricia Couture C0O0O $121,450 2.058% $2,500

Melissa Frenette CFO $119,500 0 $0




Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner -

Lisa Morris
Director

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
29 HAZEN DR.[VE, CONCORD, NH 03301:6503

603-271-4612  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4612
Fax: §03-27]-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

N3

4/4 i e

ZpN .
&L NH DIVISION OF

e

October 24, 2017

REQUESTED ACTION

Public Health Services
Improing hasitn, praventing daease. recduang ooats for il

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
enter into ten (10) agreements, of which nine (9) are retroactive, with the vendors listed .below, for the
provision of Family Planning Services in an amount not to exceed $2.915,402 6 be  efiective
retroactive to July 1, 2017 (with the exception of the agreement with new contractor, Mascoma
Communlty Health Care Inc.), upon Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2019 69.73%
‘Federal Funds, 30.27% General Funds (with the exception of Pianned Parenthood of Northern New

England - 100% General Funds).

Vendor Location Vendor # Amount
ggumnr:';:;itrngction Program - Belknap Merrimack Concord, NH 1‘77203-8003 $431.864
Concord Hospital Family Health Center Concord, NH 177653-B011 $259,008
Coos County Family Health Berlin, NH 155327-B001 $157,270
Equality Health Center - Concord, NH 257562-B001 $179.800
Joan G. Lovering Health Center Greenland, NH 175132-R001 $222,896
Lamprey Health Care Newmarket, NH | 177677-R001 $462,602
Manchester Community Health Center Manchestér, NH 157274-B001 $265,086
*Mascoma Community Health Care, Inc. Canaan, NH TBD $200,000
**Planned Parenthood of Northern New England | Colchester, VT 177528-R002 $548,000
White Mountain Community Health Center Conway, NH 174170-R001 .$188,786

Total: | $2,915,402

*New contractor - Not retroactive to 7/1/17 (Effective upon G&C approval)

**No Federal Funds (100% General Funds)



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 4

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2018 and State Fiscal Year
2019, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without further approval from Governor and Executive
Council, if needed and justified.

SEE FISCAL DETAIL ATTACHED

EXPLANATION

A portion of this request is retroactive because nine (9) of the ten (10) vendors continued to
provide Family Planning Services after their agreements expired on June 30, 2017. The nine (9)
vendors continued services to ensure contintity of clinical care for consumers while the Department
reprocured services through the Request for Applications process. The Request for Applications
process resulted.in the nine (9) retroactive  agreements and one (1) new agreement with Mascoma
Community Health Care, Inc., which will begin providing services upon Governor and Executive Council
approval,

Funds in this agreement will be used by the Department to partner with health centers to
provide comprehensive reproductive health services. Services include: contraception, pregnancy
testing and counseling, achieving pregnancy, basic infertility services, preconception health and
prevention testing, cancer screening, and treatment of sexually transmitted infections (STI) for women
and men of reproductive age. The education, counseling, and medical services available within
contracted clinic settings assist women and men in achieving their reproductive health and birth goals.
Services provided under this agreement follow all Federal Title X and State regulations. No abortion

services are provided through these Agreements.

These Agreements allow the New Hampshire Family Planning Program to offer a
comprehensive and integrated network of programs and partners statewide who provide -essential
services to vulnerable populations. Reproductive health care and family planning are critical public
health services that must be affordable and easily accessible within communities throughout the State.
For the project period of July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2019, the family planning Contractors are anticipated
" to annually serve eighteen thousand (18,000) vulnerable and low-income individuals throughout New .
Hampshire. This project period will bring a heightened focus on vulnerable populations, including: the
uninsured, adolescents, LGBTQ, those needing confidential services, refugee communities, and
persons at risk of unintended pregnancy and/or sexually transmitted infections (STIs) due to substance
abuse.

Partnering with health centers in both rural and urban settings ensures that access to affordabie
reproductive health care is available in all areas of the State. Family Planning Services reduce the
health and economic disparities associated with lack of access to high quality, affordable health care.
Women with lower levels of education and income, uninsured women, women of color, and other
minority women are less likely to have access to quality family ptanning services than their more highly
educated and financially stable counterparts. Young men are less likely to have access to and receive
family planning services than women. Services provided under these agreements are not duplicated
elsewhere in the State as there is no other system for affordable, comprehensive reproductive health
care services. ' '

The vendors were selected through a competitive bid process. A Request for Applications was
posted on the Department of Health and Human Services' Website from June 16, 2017 through August
4, 2017. In addition, a notice of the published Request for Applications was emailed to an all-inclusive
listing of family planning vendors in the State. -



ate,

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council T
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The Department received tén (10) applications. The applications were reviewed and accepted
by a team of individuals with program specific knowledge. The review included a thorough discussion
of the qualifications of the applicants (Summary Score Sheet attached) -

As referenced in the Request for Applications and in Exhibit C-1 of the contracts, the contracts
have the option to extend services for up to two (2) additional year(s), contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and
Council.

The following performance’ measures, objectives and deliverables will be used to measure the
effectiveness of the agreements: '

* The percent of clients under one hundred percent (100%) Federa Poverty Level in the
family planning caseload:; : :

¢ The percent of clients under two hundred fifty percent (250%) Federal Poverty Level in
the family planning caseload:; .

* The percent of clients less than twenty (20) years of age in the family planning caseload:

* The percent of clients served in the Family Plahning Program that were Medicaid
recipients at the time of their last visit: '

* The percent of clients who are males in the Family Planning caseload;

 The proportion of women less than -twenty-five (25) years of age screened for -
Chlamydia and tested positive: :

* The percent of family planning clients of reproductive age who receives preconception
counseling; ’ . ‘

* The percent of female family planning clients less than twenty-five (25) years ‘of age
screened for Chlamydia infection:

» The percentage of women ages fifteen (15) to forty-four (44) at risk of unintended
pregnancy that is provided a most effective (sterilization, implants, intrauterine devices
or systems (IUD/IUS)} or moderately effective (injectable, oral pills, ‘patch, ring or

_ diaphragm) contraceptive method: ' o

+.The percentage of women ages fifteen (15) to forty-four (44) years at risk of unintended
pregnancy that is provided a Long Acting Reversible Contraception (LARC) (implants or -
intrauterine devices or systems (IUDNUS)) method:;

* The percent of family planning clients less than eighteen (18) years of age who received
education that abstinence is a viable method/form of birth control;

» The percentage of family planning clients who received STD/HIV reduction education:

+ Community Partnership Report; and

¢ Annual Training Report.

Area served: Statewide

Should.Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the sustainability of New
Hampshire’s reproductive health care system may be significantly threatened. Not authorizing this
request could remove the safety net of services which improve birth outcomes, prevent unplanned
pregnancy and reduce health disparities. Not authorizing this request negatively impacts the health of
New Hampshire's reproductive population, ages fifteen (15) to forty four (44), and increases health
care costs for New Hampshire citizens.

Source of Funds: 57.02% Federal Funds from the Office of Population Affairs: US DHHS,
Administration for Children and Families, and 42.98% General Funds (with the exception of Planned
Parenthood of Northern New England - 100% General Funds).



-His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer availabie, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program

Respectfully submitted,

|sa Morrus MSSwW

o Bl

5 Approved by:

CoMmmissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



State of New Hampshire_

Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services (RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL)

4

FISCAL DETAIL SHEET

05-95-90-902010-5530 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH & COMMUNITY
SERVICES, FAMILY PLANNING PROGRAM

CFDA #93.217 :
FUNDER: Office of Population Affairs

Community Action Program — Belknap Merrimack Counties, Inc.

FAIN# FPHPAD16248

69.73% Federai and 30.27% General

Vendor 1D #177203-B003

Fiscal . ‘ Budget .-
Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number | Amount
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080203 170,618
2019 _102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080203 170,618
" Subtotal: $341,236
Concord Hospita! Vendor ID #177653-B011
Fiscal . Budget
Year CIasslAccount Class Title Job Number Amount
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080203 $96,517
2019 102-5007 31 Contracts for Program Services 90080203 $96,517
: i Subtotal: $193,034

Coos County Family Health Center

Vendor ID #155327-B001

T,zf:l Class/Account Class Title ' Job Number Erl:\(:)%?\tt

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080203 $66,274

2019 102-500731 . Contracts for Program Services 90080203 $66,274
Subtolal: $132 548

'Equality Health Center

Vendor ID #257562-B001

F\Z(:I Class/Account Class Title 'Jo_b Number Ertrﬁ:%itt

2018 102-5007 31 Contracts for Program Services 90080203 $78,400

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080203 . $78,400
Subtotal. $156,800

Joan G. Lovering Health Care

Vendor ID #175132.R001

I?sezil Class/Account Class Title Job Number | E;%%itt

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080203 $99,948

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080203 $99,948
Subtotal: $199 896

Lamprey Health Care

Vendor ID #177677-R001

FYIS::,I Class/Account Class Title Job Number E#\%%itt

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 80080203 $201,582

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080203 $201,582
: Subtotal: $403,164




Manchester Community Health Center

Vendor ID #157274-B001

Fiscal . Budget
Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount
2018. 102-500731" Contracts for Program Services 90080203 $109,925
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080203 $109,925
Subtotal: $219,850
Mascoma Community Health Center Vendor ID #TBD
Fiscal , , Budget
Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services - 90080203 $77,382
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080203 $77,382
' ' Subtotal: $154,764
White Mountain Community Health Center Vendor D #174170-R001
Fiscal | - . Budget
Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080203 $83,108
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080203 $83,108
Subtotal $166,216

Planned Parenthood of Northern New Engl'and.
100% General Funds

Vendor ID #177528-R002

ecal | Classiaccount Class Title Job Number | Sudgel

2018 .102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080213 $274,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080213 '$274,000
Subtotal: 3548,000

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, AND TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES '

CFDA# 83.558

Community Action Program — Belknap Merrimack Counties, Inc.

FAIN#Z 1701NHTANF
FUNDER: US DHHS Administration for Children and Families

100% Federal Funds

Vendor ID #177203-B003

?2“::' ‘ClasslAccount C1a§s Title Job Number E;%%itt

2018 502-500891 Payment for Providers 45030203 $45,314

2019 502-500891 Payment for Providers 45030203 $45,314
’ Subtotal: $90.628

Concord Hospital

Vendor ID #177653-B011

QZZE:I Class/Account Class Title Job Number 'Er%?)%?\tt

2018 502-500891 Payment for Providers 45030203 $33,032

2019 502-500891 Payment for Providers - 45030203 $33,032
Subtotal: $66,064




Coos County Family Health Center

Vendor ID #155327-B001

F\Z‘;?' Class/Account Class Title Job Number E:qi%i‘t

2018 | 502-500891 Payment for Providers 45030203 $12,361

2019 502-500891 Payment for Providers 45030203 $12,361
Sublotal: $24,722

Equality Health Center

Vendor ID #257562-B001

'32‘:' Class/Account plass Title Job Number E;%%itt

2018 502-500891 Payment for Providers 45030203 $11,500

2019 502-500891 Payment for Providers 45030203 $11,500
: Subtotal: $23,000

Joan G. Lovering Health Care

Vendor ID #175132-R001

I-:;sec:i Class/Account - Class Title Job Number E;?)%itt

2018 502-500891 - Payment for Providers 45030203 $11,500

2019 502-500891 Payment for Providers 45030203 $11,500
Subtotal: $23,000

_Lamprey Health Care

Vendor ID #177677-R001

?ZZ?I _ Class/Account Class Title Job Number - E;?;%itt

2018 502-500891 Payment for Providers 45030203 $29,719 |-

2019 502-500891 Payment for Providers 45030203 $29.719
Subtotal: 359,438

Manchester Community Health Center

Vendor ID #157274-B001

?ZZ?,I Class/Account "Class Title Job Number E;%%?\tt

2018 502-500891 Payment for Providers 45030203 $22618

2019 502-500891 Payment for Providers 45030203 $22618
Sublotal: $45,236

Mascoma Community Health Center

Vendor ID #TBD

FY'SeZarl, Class/Account Class Title _ Job Number AB:“%%?;
2018 502-500891 Payment for Providers 45030203 $22,618
2019 502-500891 Payment for Providers 45030203 $22618
Subtotal: $45236
White Mountain Community Health Center Vendor ID #174170-R001
ﬁ:i‘;?l Class/Account Class Title Job Number Ertr’%%?ltt
2018 502-500891 Payment for Providers 45030203 $11,285
2019 . 502-500891 Payment for Providers 45030203 311,285
' Subtotal: $22 570
TOTAL: $2,915,402




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit
Summary Scoring Sheet

e

Family Planning Services RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL _
RFA Name - RFA Number B Reviewer Names
. ‘Rhonda Siegel; Administrator II,
- DPHS Heatth Mgmt Ofc ~ ~
’ Maximum | Actual Ann Marie Mercurf, QA/QI Matermnal
Bidder Name ‘ | PassFait| Points” | Points " 2. & Child Health, DPHS
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack o Sarah McPhee, Program Planner,
1. Counties, Inc. S Pass 0 0 3. Disease ControlDPHS
2. Concord Hospital, Family Health Center. Pass 0 0 4.
3. Coos Co. Family Health Pass 0 0 5.
4, - 6.
Equality Health Center . Pass 0 0
5 Joan G. Lovering Health Care ' Pass 0 0 7.
6. ‘ ‘ 8.
amprey Health Care, Inc. Pass 0 0
£ Manchester Community Health Center Pass o 0 °
8. .
Mascoma Community Health Care, Inc. Pass 0 0
9. ’
Planned Parenthood of Northern New England : Pass 0 0
10. . . T '
White Mountain Community Health Center Pass 0 0




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
A 27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301 :
Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.nth.gov/doit

Denis Goulet
Conmmissioner

November 1, 2017

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal netification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)

. has approved your agency's request to enter into ten {10) agreements with the vendors listed in the below

table. Nine (9) contracts are retroactive (with the exception of the vendor Mascoma Community Health
Care), as described below and referenced as DolT No. 2018-001.

Vendor Name . __Amount
IC'I::‘nmunity Action Program — Belklnap Merrimack Counties, $431,864
Concord Hospital Family Health Center , $259,098
Cocs County:-Family Health $157,270
Equality Health Center $179,800
Joan G. Lovering Health Center $222,896 -
Lamprey Health Care $462,602
Manchester Commiunity Health Center $265,086
Mascoma Community Health Care $200,000
Planned Parenthood of Northern New England © $548,000
White Mountain Community Health Center $188,786
Total $2,915,402

The Department of Health and Human Services requests to enter into ten {10) agreements
to provide Family Planning comprehensive reproductive health services. Services
include contraception, pregnancy testing and counseling, achieving pregnancy, basic
infertility services, preconception health and prevention testing, cancer screening, and
treatment of sexually transmitted infections for women and men of reproductive age.
Reproductive health care and family planning are critical public health services that must
be affordable and easily accessible within communities throughout the State.

The amount of the contracts are not to exceed $2,915,402.00, nine (9) to be effective

retroactive to July 1, 2017 (with the exception of the agreement with Mascoma
Community Health Care) upon Gevernor and Council approval through June 30, 2019,

"Innovative Technologies Todoy for New Hampshire's Tomorrow”
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A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services’

submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/mh
DolIT #201 8-001

“innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject: Family Planning Services {RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-03)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior 10 signing the contract.

AGREEMENT -
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address

NH Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
) Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
Coos County Family Health 54 Willow Street
Berlin, NH 03570
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number
603-752-3669 05-95-90-902010-5530-102- June 30, 2019 $157,270

500731, 05-95-45-450010-
6146-502-500891

1.9 Conlracung Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
E. Maria Reinemann, Esq., Director 603-271-9330

1.11 tractor Signature : 1.12 Name and Tltie of Contractor Signatory
/“&\,ul l ‘/ o \_Jc.'l)o] Ghige g petrle cescd

1.13 Act\owledgemg:( Sateof N H , County of CO’)S)

On IO/-'J.’W before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or sahsl‘actonly
proven 1o b2 the person whese name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that sthe executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.
1.13.1 Signature of NMatary Public or Justice of the Peace

& Y LINDA BLANCHETTE, Notary Public

My Commission Expires September 18, 2018

e

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.14  State Aggncy Signa '
M Date: /2..7 I;'? len MURRILS, Dlﬁtbfat O‘PH’S

1.16 App[oval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

and Execution) (if applicable)

10/30/ R0+ 7

.17 Approval byt ttorney General (Form, Sub

By :
Of&t\/’ -
1.18 Approval¥y the Go{ernor‘ﬁnd Executive Council (if applicable)

By: On:

Q
3
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“Statc™), engages
contractor identificd in block 1.3 (“Contractor’™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
{“Services"),

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject 1o the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date"). '
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
10 the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7,

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hercunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.,

5.1 The contract price, method of payment; and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The Statc reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitied by N.H. RSA
807 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provisicn of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY,

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all-statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with ali applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the '
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all ]
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials
Date vo 1



Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Siate.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

§.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30}
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default s
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments (o be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State

determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at faw or in equity, or both. P

9, DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed'or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, noles, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shail be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifieen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (" Termination Report’'} describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State 1o its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS,
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State,

13, INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed 1o constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14, INSURANCE,

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its scle expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee 10 obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance: -

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and (

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
t4.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish 10 the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
- or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers' Compensation ).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers® Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers® Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by refererice. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement,

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended.
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no
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such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any pary.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do'not intend to
benefit'any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held 1o explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23, SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an criginal, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and undersiandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials
Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1.  The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2.  The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

v

2. Purpose

2.1.  The purpose of the family planning services is to reduce the health and economic
disparities associated with lack of access to quality family planning services in both
urban and rural areas of the State.

3. Terminology
CDC - Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
BPHCS - Bureau of Populatién Health and Community Services
DHHS or Department — Department of Health and Human Services .
DPHS - Division of Public Health Services
FPAR - Family Planning Annual Report
FPER- Family Planning Encounter Record
FPL - Federal Poverty Level
FPP — Family Planning Program
HIV'—= Human Immunodeficiency Virus
HPP - Health Protection Plan

IEC/BCC - Information, Education, Communication/Behavior Change
Communication -

LARC - Long Acting Reversible Contraceptives
STD - Sexual Transmitted Disease

Title X — The Federal Title X Family Planning Program is part of the Title X of the
Public Health Service Act (Public Law 91-572 Population Research and
Voluntary Family Planning Programs). It is the only federal grant program
dedicated solely to providing individuals with comprehenslve family.
planning and reproductive health services.

]

Coos County Family Health Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

Exhibit A

4. Scope of Services

4.1.  The Contractor shall provide clinical services, STD and HIV counseling and testing,
health education materials and sterilization services to low-income women,
adolescents and men (at or below two-hundred-fifty (250) percent FPL) in need of
family planning and reproductive health care services. This includes individuals who
are eligible and/or are receiving Medicaid services, are covered under the New
Hampshire Health Protection Plan (HPP) or are uninsured individuals.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide family planning and reproductive health services to a
minimum of eight hundred (800) users annually.

4.3. The Contractor is required to make reasonable efforts to collect charges based upona
sliding fee scale from clients without jeopardizing client confidentiality.

4.4, Clinical Services — Requirements:

4.41. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal and State guidelines,
including the New Hampshire Family Planning Clinical Services Guidelines.

4.4.2. The Contractor shall comply with their own established internal protocols,
practices and clinical family ptanning guidelines when providing services. The
Contractor shall make available upon request a copy of the protocols to the
Department

4.4.3. The Contractor shall maintain and make available to the Department the New
Hampshire Family Planning Clinical Services Guidelines (Attachment A)
signature page (signed by all MDs, APRNs, PAs, and nurses; anyone who is
providing direct care andfor education to clients) for review within thirty (30)
days of Governor and Council approval and annually by July 1st. Any staff -
subsequently added to Title X must also sign prior to providing direct care
and/or education.

4.44. All family planning medical services shall be performed under the direction of a
‘physician (Medical Director) with special training or experience in family
planning in accordance with 42 CFR §59.5 (b)(6).

4.5. . STD and HIV Counseling and Testing - Requirements:

4.5.1. The Contractor providing STD and HIV counseling and testing shail comply with
the most current CDC Sexually Transmitted Diseases Treatment Guidelines and
any updates

4.5.2. Staff providing STD and HiV counseling must be trained utilizing CDC
models/tools.

4.6. Health Education Materials:

The Contractor providing health education and information materials shall have those
materials reviewed by an advisory board, consisting of five (5) to seven {7)
representatives (for example, a Board of Directors would be allowed to serve
this purpose), to provide feedback on the accuracy and appropriateness of such
materials, prior to their release.

/

Coos County Family Health Exhibit A Contractor tnitials
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New Hampshire Bepartment of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

Exhibit A

4.6.1. The Contractor shall ensure the materials are consistent with the purposes of
Title X and are suitable for the population and community for which they are
intended.

4.6.2. The Contractor shall provide health education and information materials that are
consistent with Title X clinical services. The materials shall be developed and
approved in accordance with the requirements in the Title X Family Planning
Information and Education (I&E) Advisory and Community Participation
Guidelines/Agreement (see Attachment B). Examples of material topics include:

4.6.2.1. Sexually transmitted diseases (STD), contraceptive methods, pre-
conception care, achieving pregnancy/infertility, adolescent reproductive
health, sexual violence, abstinence, pap tests/cancer screenings,
substance. abuse services, mental health

46.3. The Contractor shall submit annually a list of Advisory Board approved
Information and Education (I&E) materials that are currently being distributed to
Title X clients. This list shall include but is not limited to: the title of I&E material,
subject, publisher, date of publication, and date of board approval.

4.7. Sterilization Services:

4.7.1. The Contractor providing sterilization services shalf adhere to all federal
sterilization requirements as outlined in the.Federal Program Guidelines,
Sterilization of Persons in Federally Assisted Planning Projects and subsequent
revisions or amendments related to these federal requirements in accordance
with 42 CFR §50.200 et al.

4.8 Confidentiality:

4.8.1. The Contractor shall have safeguards to ensure client confidentiality.
Information about an individual receiving services may not be disclosed without
the individual's documented consent, except as required by law or as may be
necessary to provide services to the individual, with appropriate safeguards for
confidentiality. Information may otherwise be disclosed only in summary,
statistical or other form that does not identify the individual in accordance with
42 CFR §59.11.

5. Work Plan

5.1. The Contractor shall develop and submit a final Titlé X Family Planning Work Plan
(See Attachment C), for Year One (1) of the Agreement to the Department for approval
within thirty (30) days of Governor and Council Approval.

5.2.  The Contractor shall report Title X Family Planning Work Plan outcomes and
review/revise the work plan annually and submit by August 31to the Department for
approval. ‘

Coos County Family Health Exhibit A Contractor Initlals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

Exhibit A

6. Staffing

6.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient staffing to fulfill the roles and responsibilities
that support activities of this Agreement. The Contractor shall:

6.1.1. Provide sufficient qualified staff to perform the required services as specified in
the Contract and maintain a level of staffing necessary to perform and carry out
all of the functions, requirements, roles and duties of the Contract in a timely
fashion. .

6.1.2. Contractor staff shall be supervised by a qualified Medical Director, with
specialized training and experience in family planning in accordance with

Section 4.4.4.

6.1.3. The Contractor shall ensure that all staff has appropriate training, education,
experience and orientation to fulfill the requirements of the positions they hold
and must verify and document that this requirement has been met.

6.1.3.1. This includes keeping up-to-date records and documentation of all
individuals requiring licenses and/or certifications.

6.1.3.2. All such records shail be available for Department inspection upon
request,

6.2. The contractor shall notify the Department of any newly hired staff person essential to
carrying out the contracted services in writing and include a copy of the individual's
resume, within one month of hired.

6.3. The Contractor shall notify the Department, in writing, when:
6.3.1.  Any critical position is vacant for more than ong month.

There is not adequate staffing to perform all required services for more than one
month.

7. Performance Measures

7.1.  The Contractor shall set FP performance indicator/measure targets, within thirty (30}
days of the effective date of this Agreement (See Attachment D).

8. Reporting Requirements i

8.1. The Contractor shall collect and report general data consistent with current Title X
(Federal) requirements (see Attachment E, FPAR Data Elements), utilizing the data
system currently in use by the NH FPP. The Department will provide notification thirty
(30) days in advance of any change in Title X data elements.

'8.2.  One (1) day of orientation/training shall be required if the Contractor is unfamiliar with
the Family Planning Annual Repont (FPAR} data system currently in use by the NH
FPP.

Coos County Family Health  ~ ‘ Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

Exhibit A

8.3. Federal Reporting Requirements:

8.3.1.  Annual submission of the Family Planning Annual Report (FPAR) is required of
the Contractor for purposes of monitoring and reporting program performance
(45 CFR §742 and 45 CFR §923). The Contractor shall submit the current
required data elements for the FPAR electronically through a secure platform
on an ongoing basis, no less frequently than the tenth (10™) day of each month,
to the Family Planning Data System vendor (currently John Snow Inc.).

8.4. State Clinical Reporting Requirements:

8.4.1. The Contractor is required to collect and submit the Performance Indicators and
Performance Measures (see attached FP Performance Indicators and
Performance Measures Definitions, Attachment C) via Data Trend Tables (DTT)
and work plans to the Department on an annual basis on August 31% or as
instructed by the Department: '

9. Deliverables
The Contractor shall adhere to the attached Famﬁy Planning Reporting Calendar
{Attachment F).

10. Meetings and Trainings

\
10.1. The Contractor shall attend meetings and trainings at the direction of the Department
that shall include but are not limited to a minimum of two (2) Family Planmng Agency
Directors’ Meetings facilitated by the FPP per calendar year.

Coos County Family Health Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

Exhibit 8

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Agreement is funded from State General Funds and Federal Funds from the Office of Population
Affairs, CFDA #983.217, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN), FPHPAQ16248 and US DHHS
Administration for Children and Families, CFDA #93.558, FAIN #1701NHTANF,

2. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8 of the
Form P-37 General Provisions, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A,
Scope of Services in accordance with Exhibit B-1 Budget and Exhibit B-2 Budget.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the Conltractor's current
and/or future funding.

4. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incumred in the fufillment of
this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved budget line item.

5. Payment for services shall be made as follows:

5.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly invoices in a form satisfactory to the State by the tenth
(10™ day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses
incurred in the previous month. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty
(30) days of receipt of each accurate and correct invoice for Contractor services provided
pursuant o this Agreement.

5.2. Invoices identified in Section 5.1 must be emailed to:
DPHScontractbilling@dhhs.nh.gov

6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports and deliverables identified in Exhibit A,
Scope of Services.

7.. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days from the Contract completion
date. Failure to submit monthly invoices, and accompanying documentation, could result in
nonpayment,

8. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or Federal
law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not been
completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

9. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting amounts
between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within, the price
limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between Siate Fiscal Years may be made by written
agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

%
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Exhibit B-1 - Budget
Family Planning Funds

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

BidderProgram Name: Coos County Family Heatth Services, dnc.

Budget Requesi for;
Faraty Parreng

Budgel Period: ity 1, 2017 to June 18,2110

Total Progrem Coet Contractor Share | MEich Funded by DHHS contract shars
Birect Eiact Totul Dt ndirect - Totad Otenct Totsd
1, TolM Baisravages [ 7450000 | § - 7450000 | § 2438260 B 2438200 .708.00 N 50,208.00
[ Employes Benetty s 2306800 [ § - 7386800 | 3 7 802.0G s 7,802.00 18,088 00 -1 16,084 60
3 Conswmanss - I - s - - - B .
4. Equipment. ' z R E - : - > 3
Remtal 37500 - 37500 375.00 A 373.00 - B -
Repes and Mainkenance 37500 37500 375.00 - 375,00 - - -
PurcheseDeprecizsion - - - 3 - s - . - -
3, . . 3 . . 3 . B N N
Eoucati 1,600.00 1,600.00 | 1,800.00 - |3 1,600 DO N . <
Lab . 3 . . . A . . [ .
Phermacy ~_|3 3 - : - : - B
Meckcsl 27,00000 | 3 B 27 000.00 77,000.00 B 77,500 00 - —Is
Cifice 1,408.00 - 1,400.00 1.400.00 - 1,400.00 - - 3
8. Travel 500.00 - 500.00 500 00 - »00 .00 - - ]
1. #,000.00 - 9.000.00 | § 900000 | 3 - -3 $,000.00 - - 3 -
8. Coment E; - Is - . 13 - I3 - . - - I
Telephons 173000 . 135000 |8 1,25000 ] 3 Sl 3 1,250 0 - -
Postage 250,00 I3 250.00 | 8 250.00 —Is 25000 5 -
Subscnption 1,250.00 - 1,250.00 | 8 1.250.00 A B 125000 - s .
At aevd Lag ol +,000.00 - - 100000 | § 1,000 00 - 1,000.00 -
Wnyurance 500.00 | 3 0000 | & 500.00 o0 . [ -
Bowm Exptases - - - 13 - - . - s -
%, Software 3.000.00 * 3.000.00 3,000.00 - 3,000.00 - 3 -
1. Marh etng/AC OMMWTRCRRNS 2.000.00 + 3 2 000 .00 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 -
11. St E and Trawning - - - . - $ - -
12 s - - - - - .
13, Ouher {specite actads Y - - - 3 - - - - -
. 5 - - . . . .
i ] - N . B - . - N
TOTAL [ TaT 5800 1§ 3 TATAZN00 TT40.00 - A, 50.00 28] -
indirect As A Pertent of Duwct
Exiuba 8-1 Buagat
Budget One Budget Pedod Page t



Exhibit B-2 - Budget

TANF Funds

Budget Request lor:

Budget Period:

£

BidderProoram Nane: Coes County Family Health Services, inc.

July 1, 2017 to June 30,2013

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Total Program Cost

Line Rams

Direct
Incremental

Fand

Total

ws

Toml

14,190.00

14.1#%9.00

4,825 00

2. _Empioyes Benefits

4,540.00

4,540.00

154400

3. Consultents

00 |4 Jan | 4o

4 [ Joon | s

Rental

Repsit ano Menteniance

[5 Guppes:

Educasonsl

Lat

Pharmacy

o~ [in |40

8. Trave

7.

s [0t fare o o Jum

wla
"

9. Sofware

s fom Jam

o [on ] on | v infon fon

e [n Jom | 00 | am]0n jun

I Marketing/C ommunications
11._Staft Educaiion snd Training

12. SubcomractuAgreements

13, Caher (specdic delmts mandatory):

| e

TOTAL

| en | fon

15,710.00

| 0n]on fun [an

19.718.00

TI.00

————
12,381,

T80 )

Indirect As A Percent of Dirsct

Exfubit B-2 Buoge!
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Exhibit B-3 - Budget
Family Planning Funds

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

BikierProgiam Name: Coos County Family Hesith Services, nc.

Oudget Request for:
Farndly Plarvarg

. Budget Perind: July 1, 2011 10 Juns 30,2013 -

Totel Progeam Cost Thars [ latch _ ~ Furxiad by DHH3 contract dhare
. Dirwet Tndivect Totad Dirnct [ Yoral Divact Indivect o Towd
[Line Rom Incrarsartef Fad Increnmedsl _ Poeny Incremaentsl Fieed
1. Total SsiaryWages [ 75,008.00 - S 7500800 § 3 2480000 | § - 24,800.00 $0.208.00 | 5 - s 50,208.00
2. Berefits 3 24,002.00 - Is 2000200 ) § 793800 % - 793003 1800800 | § IS 18,084 00
1. _Consutants ] - - . 3 - - . - s -
4._Equs : 3 - - f B 3 - B I .
Rerind ysor |3 - 37500 373 06 - Is 375.00 - p p
Repiis grej Mak 375.00 - 375.00 3500 - 5 175.00 - - -
[5._Supphes: . - . $ . - - . $ . .
Echutabon n 3 1,600,00 - 160000 | 35 1,800.00 - 1,800.00 . 3 . -
[T Y - . . B - - - - Is
Eharmacy - - - - ] - 3 - - - 3 .
Mecheal 27 ,000.0¢ . 2700000 | § 2700000 |8 2700000 | - - ] -
Oefica 1,400, 0¢ - 1,40000 [ 3 140000 1 8 - 140000 | $ . -
[8_Travel 5000 - 50000 | 5 500.00 | § B 500.0¢ - Is - -
7. 9.,000.0¢ - 9.00000 | § 200000 | 3§ - 9.000.0¢ - - -
8. Cument Expemes 3 : z - :__{§ = 13 : L :
Telephone 1,250.00 - 1,250.00 1,250.00 . 1,250.00 - -
Foslage - 250,00 - Is 25000 | % 250 60 p 25000 ) 3 -
“Subsenptions 1,250 06 - Is 1,250 00 1.250.00 - 1.750.00 -
Auctd and Lﬂl‘ 1,000 0 - 3 1,000 00 1,000.00 . 1,000,00 - -
[ 3 50000 |3 - 500 00 - 500.00 [ 360.00 . - .
Boan Experies 3 . 3 - 3 . - - . E] - - - -
9. Sofwars 3,000.00 . 3,000 00 3 000.00 I 300000 |3 § - -
18, Mark singuC ormmunications 2,000.00 - 3 2,000.60 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 - -
11._Stafl Edutamion and Tramwng - - - |s . - - s el I f
12. Subcomracts’AD st ments - - - + . 3
13, Other detads mandsiony) - - - - 3 - - - . -
3 . - - - -
3 . B . - H . - . -
T - - |3 . — I3 f - , B
TOTAL [0 148.610.00 - TASZT0.50 $1.238.08 . L] LI V,274.00 5 $8.174.00 |
ndirect As A Paiceni of Direct -
Extubit 8.3 Budge! In-m)z
ot AL )
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Exhibit B-4 - Budget
TANF Funds

SldderProgram Name: Coos County Femnity Heakh Services, Inc.

Budget Requast for

Oudpet Parlod: July 1, 2018 10 June 30,7013

New Hampshirs Department of Heslth and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

TANF

Youd Progrem Cost X Contractor Rhare / Meich Funded by GHAS contraci shars
Diract ndiract Total Direct Tndivect T Yot Dieact ndirect - Toce!
Lina Barn n Foeed N Icreenertsl Fhoad Fized
1. Total SalacyWages 3 1447000 | § I £ 14.470.00 | § 5.105.00 N SIS0 [ S 9,385.00 I 9.385.00
[2_Empioyee Benetts [ 1,853 .00 s 483000 (3 18100 B K 183400 [§ 2,306 00 s 2.9%0.00
3. Consumants 3 . 5 - - B - - . -
4. Equipment. L] : - - |3 : - 3 -
Rertal - 1 - S - B B -
Repak and Maimtenance - - - - . - - -
5. Supphies; - 3 - B . s . B
E dht.art o sl - - . - - -
Lab . - - 3 - 3 3
Pharm A D - - 3 - I8 3
Mescal A s - s 3 - 3
Ofice T - - I3 - |3 - T
8. Travel 3 - - - 3 - % - . 3 -
7. 3 . - - 1 - Is - P ) -
8. Cumem Expenses 3 - A B s A -
Telephona : i3 - - - -~ Is -
Postage B 18 - I s 7 H - Is
3 - —_ s -~ I - 3 s
Aute and Legsl - + $ - ] - - $ - 3 -
Insursnce - ] . 3 - 3 - 3 - H ] -
Bot € rperises - - 1s s B ) - B B -
9. Software 3 - A I - Is - - s I -
10. Mwrk CUTHTIRAPCETIONS. - - . | 3 - - - 3 - -
11._Stefi Education and Traming 3 g - B B - - - I3 -
12. hD nts - - - - - - -
13 Ochey (specatic. detaiy mandatory): - - . - - - 3 -
3 - - - . - = - - I3 -
] " N N N — N B A N B 3 N
TOTAL ¥ 71,100.00 B 13.100.60 +.133.00 ] 0.JI5.00 12,301.00 L [ESTINZ]|

tndirect As A Parcent of Direct

Exhibal 8-4 Budpet
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services

Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1.

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: if the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
stale laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contraclor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is efigible for such services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Conlractor to inefigible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Depariment may elect to:
7.1.  Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials

06727114 Page 10f5 Date 1<



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Coniractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligibie for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1, Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or coltected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such coslts and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department. ‘ . '

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipiant of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of applicalion and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services,

- "}-;:L'k'.'.r‘?-“. 5 - ‘
9. Audit: Contracior shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of

Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non

Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,

Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as

they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. .Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shal!l have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
‘understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception. :

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant 1o state laws and the regultations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
direclly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the racipient, his
aftorney or guardian.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Inilials‘g
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

11.

12,

13.

14.

135.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatscever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reporis: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form -
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitied within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disaliowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and ali the obligations of the parties hereunder {except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the.
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document elc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Depariment of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS. '

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. in connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regutations.

Equal Employment Oppeortunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment

Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and hjs 50 or

Exhibit C — Spacial Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEQP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEQP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOGP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: hitp://www.0jp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contraclors must lake reasonabie steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

{a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistieblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Conltractor employee whistieblower protections established at

41 U.5.C. 4712 by section 828 of the Nationat Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908. .

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

{c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c).inall
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise lo perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomptished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shali do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function '

19.2.  Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate .

18.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis -

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’s performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shali, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts,

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

CEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manua! which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitied by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a descriplion of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Deparlment and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract. _ , Co

. A .J.”Fzﬂ;’
FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders and policies, elc. are
referred 1o in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, elc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL.: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supptant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor [nitials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C-1

2.

CU/DHHS/011414 Page 1 0f 2 ' Date {0/ /1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement is replaced as
follows:
4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligatiohs of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or avallablllty of rundlng for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of apprapriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or medification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right
10 withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contraclor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number,
or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the following
language:
10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State,

30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,

develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement
and establishes a process to meet those needs.

-10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to

support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the State
related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing .
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services

under the Agreement are transilioned to having services delivered by another entity including
contracled providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services in the Transition Pfan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the

transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted
lo the State as described above.

Subparagraph 12 of the General Provisions of this contract, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is
amended by adding the following language:
12.1 The Contractor shall retain the ultimate responsibility and accountability for the successful completion of

the scope of services as identified in the contract.

12.2 Prior to subcontracting, the Contractor shall evalvate the subcontractor's ability to perform the

delegated function(s). This shall be accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities
and reporting responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing
sanctions if the subcontractor's performance is not adequate.

12.3 When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall:

12.3.1 Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before deiegating
the function.

Exhibit C-1 — Revisions to General Provisions Contractor Initials
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12.3.2 Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate.

12.3.3 Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis.

12.34 Provide to the Depariment an annual schedule identifying all subconiractors, delegated
functions and responsibilities and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed.

12.4 If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement, the contractor shall take corrective
action, as approved by the Depariment. ;

4. The Department reserves the right 1o renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the

continued availability. of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor and
Executive Council.

Exhibit C-1 — Revisions o General Provisions Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees 1o have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-630, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Pari || of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free warkplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee {and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material represenlation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street, .

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1.  Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a conlrolled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Maklng it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the slatement required by paragraph {(a);

1.4. Notifying the employee i in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the granl the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within len calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide nofice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicled employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Cenification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials -t
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6.  Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1.  Taking appropnate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith efiort to continue to maintain -a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs1 1,12,13,14,15 and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connectlion with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are warkplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Namef

\0/:1/;‘}— Vsbt 1

Dali / Namey
Title:
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.8.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representalive, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
"Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IvV-D
“Soctal Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
"Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to .
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shal! require that the ianguage of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction

was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this

transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

w}é/;ﬂ// ) -Ksl - 2ix )
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in.Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply wilh the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification: '

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this fransaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disgualify such person from participation in
this transaction. :

3. The certification in this clause is a malerial representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. [f it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause.or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate writlen notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary parlicipant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumslances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered

transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “"primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and

“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this ¢lause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and

Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the

attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal {contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaclion be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS,

7. The prospeclive primary parlicipant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregeoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and:

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally bossessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participantin a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals: '

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transaclions by any Federal department or agency:

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection wilh obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public fransaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
slatutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, cerlifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
‘ prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal {contract).

14, The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:
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CERTIFICATION-OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representalive as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: :

Contractor will corply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 37839d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan; '

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Seclions 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6§106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or aclivities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination; “

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equa! Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13558, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for parinerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations), and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistieblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Depariment of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contraclor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

o /)2 /et \/\c’ | k;\gx\
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Chiidren Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in'any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an enlity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, foan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: '

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,

Contractor Name:

/
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected heaith information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.
a. ‘Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Titie 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160,103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Reguiations.

d. “"Designated Record Set”shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501. ’

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation™ in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f.  “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIli, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009. .

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shali include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

J- “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

32014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials
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‘Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

“‘Secretary”shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee. .

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Instltute

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disciose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disciosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (i) an agreement from such third party to notify Business

" Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confideniiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

‘The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busingss
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

if the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shali abide by any additiona! security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made; -

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or '
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule,

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receivi‘rgPHl
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights 'of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, baoks, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten {(10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable. .

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business .
Exhibit | Contractor Initials
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(4)

()

(6)

312014

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed."

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508..

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI. :

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate -
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines tpat neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation 1o the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit i, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended. :

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowiledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

Exhibit | Contractor initid
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition: to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3} e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services (‘}A)S \ i ‘l"p.\h \.\ \;\5,&., '

The Sta ] Err?of the mctor Q
4%@(,0/&;)@ el o,

Signature of Authorized Representative Sj@qre of@ﬂfhorized Representative
LIS M0RR4 ’ "\rL\;:)DZ').L _ _ _
Name of Authorized Representative: Namé)of Authorized Representative -... ... .
DiRge4aRr. DOHS UA.\&? §ﬁcmf £ Oftas L
Title of Authorized Representative Title of AythoriZed Representative
i =y I T \U/lL/t:f
Date Date / /[
3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initiafs
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal o or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award. _

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Depariment of Health and Hurman Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporling requirements: ’

Name of entity )
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award litle descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entily
Principle place of perfformance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
. Total compensation and names of the 1op five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already avaitable through reporting to the SEC.

SLeeNOOAEWN

o

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General. Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensalion Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.41 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act. :

Contractor Name:

‘51 \ "‘;:.'2,")0(

Name’ ‘
Tille: ) Q.E

J_O/n—/n‘i—
| Date / ‘

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

[ {2 z:jgrz“
1. The DUNS number for your entity is: ﬁ

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive {1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross reyenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
coopeyalive agreements?

' NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, slop here
If the answer o #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m({a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organizalion are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: ' Amount;
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount;
Name; Amount:

CUDHHS/M 10713 Page 20t 2 Date
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DHHS INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

1. Confidential Information: In addition to Paragraph #9 of the General Provisions (P-37) for the purpose of this
RFP, the Department's Confidential information includes any and all information owned or managed by the
State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Departiment of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
or accessed in the course of performing contracted services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and
disposition is governed by state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Personal Health Information (PHI), Personally Identifiable Information (PIl), Federal Tax Information (FTI),
Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential
information. '

2. The vendor will maintain proper security controls 1o protect Depariment confidential information collected,
processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted services. Minimum expectations include;

2.1. Maintain policies and procedures to protect Depariment confidential information throughout the
information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation, transformation, use, storage and secure
destruction) regardless of the media used to store the data (i.e., 1ape, disk, paper, etc.).

2.2. Maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to contractor systems that collect, transmit, or
store Depariment confidential information where applicable.

2.3.Encrypt, at a minimum, any Department confidential data stored on portable media, e.g., laptops, USB
drives, as well as when transmitted over public networks like the Intemet using current industry
standards and best practices for strong encryption,

2.4.Ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect potentia! security events that can
impact State of NH systems and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

2.5. Provide securily awareness and education for its embloyees, contractors and sub-contractors in support
of protecting Department confidential information

2.6. Maintain a documented breach notification and incident response process. The vendor will contact the
Department within twenty-four 24 hours to the Department’s contract manager, and additional email
addresses provided in this section, of a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

2.6.1."Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45, Code of
Federal Regulations. “Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning “Computer
Security Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of Commerce.

Breach notifications will be sent to the following email addresses:

26.1.1, DHHSChieflnformationOfficer@dhhs.nh.qov

26.1.2. DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dnhs.nh.gov

2.7.1f the vendor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its sub-contractor systems), the
vendor will maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or contract
termination; and wili obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
vendor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery operations.
When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of New Hampshire data shall be rendered
unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure

Exhibit K — DHHMS Information Security Requirements Contractor Initials
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deletion, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing). The vendor will
document and certify in writing at time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the
Department upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data
has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and professional standards for’
retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the State and vendor prior to destruction.

2.8.1f the vendor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement supporting the services for
Stale of New Hampshire, the vendor will maintain a program of an infemal process or processes that
defines specific security expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirernents that at a
minimum maich those for the vendor, including breach notification requirements. ‘

3. The vendor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable State of New MHampshire and
Department system access and authorization policies and procedures, systems access forms, and computer
use agreements as part of obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will
be completed and signed by the vendor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access being
authorized.

4. If the Department determines the véndor is a Business Associate pursuanl to 45 CFR 160.103, the vendor will
work with the Department to sign and execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement {BAA) with the
Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the agreement.

3. The vendor will work with the Department at its request to complete a survey. The purpose of the survey is to
enable the Department and vendor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the vendor engagement. The survey will be completed annually, or an alternate time
frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by the vendor, or the Department may request the
survey be compleled when the scope of the engagement between the Department and the vendor changes.
The vendor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire or Department data
offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior express written consent is obtained from
the appropriate authorized data owner or leadership member within the Department.

Exhibit K — DHHS Information Security Requirements Contractor Inilials | {Ct
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services Contract

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the Family Planning Services Contract

This 1%t Amendment to the Family Planning Services contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #17)
is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State” or "Department”) and Lamprey Health Care Inc., (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor”), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 207 South Main Street, Newmarket, NH
03857. . : :

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on November 8, 2017 (Item #21A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General
Provisions Paragraph 4, the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of the contract
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #1 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$925,204.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read.
603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A Amendment #1, Scope
of Services.

6. Delete Attachment A, Clinical Services Guidelines in its entirety and replace with Attachment A,
Amendment #1, Clinical Services Guidelines.

7. Delete Attachment B, Title X Family Planning information and Education Guidelines in its entirety
and replace with Attachment B, Amendment #1, Family Planning Information and Education
Guidelines.

8. Delete Attachment C, Family Planning Workplan in its entirety and replace with Attachment C,
Amendment #1, Family Planning Workplan

9. Delete Attachment D, Family Planning Performance Measure Definitions in its entirety and replace

Lamprey Health Care Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services Contract

with Attachment D, Amendment #1, Family Planning Performance Measure Definitions.

10. Delete Attachment E, NH Titte X Family Planning Program Data Elements in its entirety and
replace with Attachment E, Amendment #1, NH Title X Family Planning Program Data Elements.

11. Delete Attachment F, Reporting Calendar in its entirety and replace with Attachment F,
Amendment #1, Reporting Calendar.

12. Delete Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment and replace with Exhibit B,
Amendment #1, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

Lamprey Health Care Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services Contract

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Y214 %LQ/QJ\

Date Name: Lisa Motris
Titte: Director

el

Date

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of NH’ , County of MWW on MMg‘,zolq.beforethe

undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directlyabove, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated aboye.

Signatureof Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Katelyn Soyphaxhot
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

KATELYN SOUPHAKHOT, Notary Public
. . State of Naw Harmpshire
My Cqmmlssmn Expires: _My Commission Expiras Noverher 14, 2023
[CP " . '

Lamprey Health Care Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services Contract

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

CJulig ﬁﬁﬁ%@

Date Name: (i cistpher G Hgha
Title: Spnioc Assiskant- Athray Ganees

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Goverrbor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)
QFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
Date . Name:
Title:
Lamprey Health Care Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #1

1.

2.

1.1.

1.2

21.

Scope of Services

Provisions Applicable to All Services
The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the Iangu

age assistance services

they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective

date.

Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may

Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to m

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New

have an impact on the
10dify Service priorities

and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance

therewith.

Purpose

disparities associated with lack of access to quality family plan
urban and rural areas of the State.

3. Terminology

CDC - Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

BPHCS — Bureau of Population Health and Community Services

DHHS or Department — Department of Health and Human Servi
DPHS - Division of Public Health Services

FPAR - Family Planning Annual Report

FPER- Family Planning Encounter Record

FPL - Federal Poverty Level

FPP — Family Planning Program

HIV = Human Immunodeficiency Virus

HPP - Health Protection Plan

The purpose of the family planning services is to reduce the health and economic

ning services in both

Ces

IEC/BCC — Information, Education, Communication/Behavior Change Communication

LARC - Long Acting Reversible Contraceptives
STD - Sexual Transmitted Disease

Title X — The Federal Title X Family Planning Program is part of the Title X of the Public

Health Service Act (Public Law 91-572 Population Res
Family Planning Programs). It is the only federal grant

Lamprey Health Care Exhibit A, Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit A, Amendment #1

solely to providing individuals with comprehensive family planning and
reproductive health services.

4. Scope of Services

4.1. The Contractor shall provide clinical services, STD and HIV counselmg and testing,
health education materials and sterilization services to Iow—mcome women,
adolescents and men (at or below two-hundred-fifty (250) percent FPL) in need of
family planning and reproductlve health care services. This mcludes individuals who
are eligible and/or are receiving Medicaid services, are covered under the New
Hampshire Health Protection Plan (HPP) or are uninsured individuals.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide family planning and reproductive health services to a
minimum of one thousand six hundred (1,600} users annually.

4.3. The Contractor is required to make reasonable efforts to collect charges based upon a
sliding fee scale from clients without jeopardizing client confi identiality.

4.4, Clinical Services — Requirements:

4.4.1. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal and State guidelines,
including the New Hampshire Family Planning Clinical Services Guidelines.

4,4.2. The Contractor shall comply with their own established mternal protocols,
practices and clinical family planning guidelines when prowdlng services. The
Contractor shall make available upon request a copy of|the protocols to the
Department.

4.4.3. The Contractor shall maintain and make available to the Department the New
Hampshire Family Planning Clinical Services Gundelmes {Attachment A)
signature page (signed by all MDs, APRNs, PAs, and nurses;, anyone who is
providing direct care and/or education to clients) for review within thirty (30} days
of Governor and Council approval and annually as mstructed by the Department.
Any staff subsequently added to Title X must also srgn prior to providing direct
care and/or education.

4.4.4, All family planning medical services shall be performed |under the direction of a
physician (Medical Director) with special training or experience in family
planning in accordance with 42 CFR §59.5 (b)(6).

4.4.5. The Contractor shall have at least one (1) clinical provuder proficient in the
insertion and removal of Long Acting Reversible Contraceptlon (LARC).

4.5. STD and HIV Counseling and Testing — Requirements:

4.5.1. The Contractor providing STD and HIV counseling and testing shall comply with
the most current CDC Sexually Transmitted Diseases Treatment Guidelines and
any updates.

452, Staff providing STD and HIV counseling must be trained utilizing COC
modelsitools.
Lamprey Health Care Exhibit A, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials //

i?FA—201B—DPHS-OS—FAM!L-OB-Am Page 2 of 5 Date




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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4.6. Health Education Materials:

The Contractor providing health education and information materials shall have those
materials reviewed by an advisory board, consisting of f ive (5) to seven (7)
representatives (for example, a Board of Directors would be allowed to serve
this purpose), to provide feedback on the accuracy and appropnateness of such
materials, prior to their release.

4.6.1. The Contractor shall ensure the materials are consistent with the purposes of
Title X and are suitable for the population and community for which they are
intended.

4.6.2. The Contractor shall provide health education and mformatuon materials that are
consistent with Title X clinical services. The materials shall be developed and
approved in accordance with the requirements in the Tltle X Family Planning
Information and Education (I1&E) Advisory and Communlty Participation
Guidelines/Agreement (see Attachment B). Examples of material topics include:

4.6.2.1. Sexually transmitted diseases (STD), contraceptive methods, pre-
conception care, achieving pregnancy/infertility, adolescent reproductive
health, sexual violence, abstinence, pap tests/cancer screenings,
substance abuse services, mental health.

46.3. The Contractor shall submit annually a list of Advisory Board approved
Information and Education (I&E) materials that are currently being distributed to
Title X clients, This list shall include but is not limited to; the title of I&E material,
subject, publisher, date of publication, and date of board approval.

4.6.4. The Contractor shall utilize Temporary Assistance for|Needy Families (TANF)
funds on a monthly basis to support outreach and promotional activities.

4.7. Sterilization Services:

4.7.1. The Contractor providing sterilization services shall adhere to all federal
sterilization requirements as outlined in the Federal Program Guidelines,
Sterilization of Persons in Federally Assisted Planning Projects and subsequent
revisions or amendments related to these federal requirements in accordance
with 42 CFR §50.200 et al.

4.8. Confidentiality:

4.8.1. The Contractor shall have safeguards to ensure client confidentiality.
Information about an individual receiving services may not be disclosed without
the individual's documented consent, except as requnred by law or as may be
necessary to provide services to the individual, with approprlate safeguards for
confidentiality. Information may otherwise be disclosed only in summary,
statistical or other form that does not identify the individ ual in accordance with
42 CFR §59.11.

5. Work Plan ,

Lamprey Health Care Exhibit A, Amendment #1 Contractor Inittals f
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5.1. The Contractor shall develop and submit a final Title X Family Planning Work Plan
(See Attachment C), for Year One (1) of the Agreement to the|Department for approval

within thirty (30) days of Governor and Council Approval.

5.2. The Contractor shall report Title X Family Planning Work Plan|outcomes and
review/revise the work plan annually and submit by August 31fto the Department for

approval.

6. Staffing

6.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient staffing to fulfill the roles and responsibilities

that support activities of this Agreement. The Contractor shall:

6.1.1. Provide sufficient qualified staff to perform the required services as specified in
the Contract and maintain a level of staffing necessary to perform and carry out
all of the functions, requirements, roles and duties of the Contract in a timely

fashion.

6.1.2. Contractor staff shall be supervised by a qualified Medlcal Director, with
specialized training and experience in family planning in accordance with

Section 4.4.4.

6.1.3. The Contractor shall ensure that all staff has appropriate training, education,
experience and orientation to fulfill the requirements of the positions they hold
and must verify and document that this requirement has-been met.

6.1.3.1. This includes keeping up-to-date records and documentatlon of all

individuals requiring licenses and/or certifi cations!

6.1.3.2. All such records shall be available for Department inspection upon

request.

6.2. The contractor shall notify the Department of any newly hired staff person essential to
carrying out the contracted services in writing and include a copy of the individual's

resume, within one month of hired.
6.3. The Contractor shall notify the Department, in writing, when:
6.3.1. Any critical position is vacant for more than one month.

There is not adequate staffing to perform all required services for more than one

month.

7. Performance Measures

7.1. The Contractor shall set FP performance indicator/measure targets, within thirty (30)

days of the effective date of this Agreement (See Attachment D).

8. Reporting Requirements

Lamprey Health Care Exhibit A, Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit A, Amendment #1

8.1. The Contractor shall collect and report general data consnstenl with current Title X
(Federal) requirements (see Attachment £, FPAR Data Elements) utilizing the data
system currently in use by the NH FPP. The Department will prowde notification thirty
(30) days in advance of any change in Title X data elements.

8.2. One (1) day of orientation/training shall be required if the Contractor is unfamiliar with

the Family Planning Annual Report (FPAR) data system currently in use hy the NH
FPP.

8.3. Federal Reporting Requirements:

8.3.1.  Annual submission of the Family Planning Annual Report (FPAR) is required of
the Contractor for purposes of monitoring and reporting program performance
(45 CFR §742 and 45 CFR §923). The Contractor shalt submit the current
required data elements for the FPAR electronically through a secure platform on
an ongoing basis, no less frequently than the tenth (10%) day of each month, to
the Family Planning Data System vendor (currently John Snow Inc.).

8.4. State Clinical Reporting Requirements:

8.4.1. The Contractor is required to collect and submit the Performance Indicators and
Performance Measures (see attached FP Performance Indlcators and
Performance Measures Definitions, Attachment C) via Data Trend Tables (DTT)
and work plans to the Department on an annual basis on August 31% or as
instructed by the Department.

9. Deliverables
The Contractor shall adhere to the attached Family Planning Reporting Calendar
(Attachment F).

10. Meetings and Trainings

10.1. The Contractor shall attend meetings and tralmngs at the drrect|on of the Department
that shall include but are not limited to a minimum of two (2) Famlly Planning Agency
Directors’ Meetings facilitated by the FPP per calendar year.

10.1.1. The Contractor shall designate at least two (2) family|planning clinical staff to
participate in the yearly STD training webinar and ensure all family planning
clinical staff watch a recording of the webinar no later than 30 days from the live
wehinar event. This training can be used for HRSA Section 318 aligibility
requirements, if applicable.

Lamprey Health Care Exhiblt A, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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Family Planning Clinical Services Guidelines

L. Overview of Family Planning Clinical Guidelines:

A. Title X Priority Goals:

1. To deliver quality family planning and related preventive health services, where
evidence exists that those services should lead to improvement in the overall health of
individuals.

L

To provide access to a broad range of acceptable and effective family planning
methods and related preventive health services. The broad range of services does not
include abortion as a method of family planning.

3. To assess client’s reproductive life plan as part of determining the need for family
planning services, and providing preconception services as appropriate.

B. Delegate Requirements:
1. Provide clinical medical services related to family planning and the effective
usage of contraceptive methods and practices.

2. Follow-up treatment for significant problems uncovered by the history or
screening, physical or laboratory assessment or other req'uired (or
recommended) services for Title X family planning patients should be provided
onsite or by appropriate referral per the following clinical practice guidelines:

¢ Providing Quality Family Planning Services — Recommendations of CDC
and US OPA, 2014 (or most current):
http://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/pdf/rr/rr6304.pdf

¢ With supporting guidelines from:
US Medical Eligibility Criteria for Contraceptive Use 2016, CDC (or most

current): https://www.cdc.gov/immwr/volumes/65/rr/rr6503al .htm

U.S. Selected Practice Recommendation for Contraceptive Use, 2016 (or most
current): http://dx. doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.rr6504a1

CDC STD & HIV Screening Recommendatlons 201 6 (or most current)
http://www.cdc.gov/std/prevention/screeningReccs. htm

CDC Sexually Transmitted Diseases Treatment Guldelmes 2015 (or most
current): https://www.cdc.gov/std/tg2015/tg-2015- print.pdf

CDC Recommendation to Improve Preconception Helalth and Health Care,
2014 (or most current): https://www.cdc.gov/preconception/index

Lamprey Health Care Attachment A, Amendment #1 Contrector Initials
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Guide to Clinical Preventive Services, 2014. Recommendations of the U.S.

Preventive Services Task Force:

http://www.ahrg.gov/professionals/clinicians-providers/guidelines-

recommendations/guide/index.html|

American College of Obstetrics and Gynecology (ACOG), Guidelines and

Practice Patterns

American Society of Colposcopy and Cervical Pathology (ASCCP)

Other relevant clinical practice guidelines approved by the BPHCS/US

DHHS.

3. Necessary referrals for any required services should be initiated and tracked per

written referral protocols and follow-up procedures for each

The standard package of services includes:

agency.

Comprehensive family planning services including: cllent education and
counseling; health history; physical assessment; laboratory testing;

Cervical and breast cancer screening;

Infertility services (Level 1) (medical history inc_ludirilg reproductive history,
sexual health assessment, physical examination, and referral for further

diagnosis as needed);

Pregnancy diagnosis and counseling regarding prenatal care and delivery;
infant care, foster care, or adoption; and pregnancy termination;

Services for adolescents;

Annual chlamydia and gonorrhea screening for all sexually active women less

than 25 years of age and high-risk women > 25 years

of age;

Sexually transmitted disease (STD) and human immunodeficiency virus

(HIV) prevention education, testing, and referral;

Sexually transmitted disease diagnosis and treatment-

Provision and follow up of referrals as needed to address medical and social

services needs.

4. Assurance of confidentiality must be included for all sessions where services are

provided.

5. Each client will voluntarily review and sign a general consent form prior to

receiving medical treatment or contraceptive methods(s).

6. Required Trainings:

o Sexually Transmitted Disease training: all family planninlg clinical staff members
must either participate in the live or recorded webinar session(s) annually.

Lamprey Health Care
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Attachment A, Amendment #1

¢ Family Planning Basics (Family Planning National Training Center): all family
planning clinical staff must complete and maintain a training certificate on file.

|
https:/www.fpntc. org[resources/famly-planmng-bas:cs-eleammg

¢ Title X Orientation, Program Requirements for Title X Funded Family Planning
Projects: all family planning staff (administrative and clmlcal) must complete and

maintain a training certificate on file. https://www.fpntc. org[resources/tltle X-
orientation-program-requirements-title-x-funded- family-planning-projects

Il. Family Planning Clinical Services

Determining the need for services among female and male clients of reproductive age
by assessing the reason for visit:

¢ Reason for visit is related to preventing or achieving pregnancy:
o Contraceptive services
* Pregnancy testing and counseling
Achieving pregnancy
Basic infertility services
Preconception health
o Sexually transmitted disease services
» [Initial reason for visit is not refated to preventing or achieving pregnancy (acute care,
chronic care management, preventive services) but assessment identifies the need for
services to prevent or achieve pregnancy
e Assess the need for related preventive services such as breast and cervical cancer
screening

The delivery of preconception, STD, and related preventive health services should not
be a barrier to a client receiving services related to preventing or achieving pregnancy.

A. Comprehensive Contraceptive Services (Providing Quality Family Planning
Services — Recommendations of CDC and US OPA, 2014: ppl7 - 13):

The following steps should help the client adopt, change, or maintain contraceptive
use:
1. Ensure privacy and confidentiality
2. Obtain clinical and social information including:
a) Medical history
For women:
e Menstrual history
» Gynecologic and obstetric history
e Contraceptive use including condom use
o Allergies
* Recent intercourse

Lamprey Health Care Attachment A, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials Yy
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For Men:

The taking of a2 medical history should not be a barrier to obtaining

. b} Pregnancy intention or reproductive life plan. Ask qu

¢) Contraceptive experiences and preferences
d) Sexual health assessment including:

Attachment A, Amendment #1

Recent delivery, miscarriage, or termination

Any relevant infectious or chronic health conqitions
Other characteristics and exposures that might affect medical criteria

for contraceptive method

Use of condoms

Known allergy to condoms
Partner contraception
Recent intercourse
Whether partner is currently pregnant or has h
or termination

The presence of any infectious or chronic hea

Do you want to become a parent?

Do you have any children now?

Do you want to have (more) children?
How many (more) children would you like to!

ad a child, miscarriage,
th condition
condoms.

estions such as:

have and when?

Sexual practices: types of sexual activity the ¢

tient engages in.

History of exchanging sex for drugs, shelter, money, etc. for client or

partner(s)

Pregnancy prevention: current, past, and futu re contraception options

Partners: number, gender, concurrency of the
Protection from STD: condom use, monogam
Past STD history in client & partner (to the ex
History of needle use (drugs, steroids, etc.) by

client’s sex partners

y, and abstinence

tent the client is aware)
client or partner(s)

3. Work with the client interactively to select the most effective and appropriate
contraceptive method (Appendix A). Use a shared decision makmg approach
presenting information on the most effective methods that mect the individual’s
priorities for contraception (based whether or not the client wants to become pregnant
within the next year, medical history, and past experience with methods).

a) Ensure that the client understands:

Lamprey Health Care
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Method effectiveness

Correct use of the method
Non-contraceptive benefits

Side effects

Protection from STDs, including HIV
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Attachment A, Amendment #1

b) Assist client to consider potential barriers that might mﬂucncc the likelihood
of correct and consistent use of the method under consideration in¢cluding:
* Social-behavioral factors
¢ Intimate partner violence and sexual violence
* Mental health and substance use behaviors

4. Conduct a physical assessment related to contraceptive use, when warranted as per
U.S. Selected Practice Recommendations for Contraceptive Use, 2016, Appendix C.
{(https:/fwww.cde.gov/mmwr/volumes/65/rr/rr6504al agpendix.htm#T-4-C.] down).

5. Provide the contraception method along with instructions about correct and consistent
use, help the client develop a plan for using the selected method and for follow-up,
and confirm client understanding. Document the client’s understandmg of his or her
chosen contraceptive method by using a:

a) Checkbox, or;

b} Written statement; or

¢) Method-specific consent form

d) Teach-back method may be used to confirm client’s understanding about
risks and benefits, method use, and follow-up.

6. Provide counseling for returning clients: ask if the client hasé any concerns with the
contraception method and assess its use. Assess any changes in the client’s medical
history that might affect safe use of the contraceptive method.

7. Counseling adolescent clients should include a discussion on:
a) Sexual coercion: how to resist attempts to coerce minors into engaging in
sexual activities

b) Family involvement: encourage and promote commulnication between the
adolescent and his/her parent(s) or guardian(s) about sexual and reproductive
health

c) Abstinence: is an effective way to prevent pregnancy and STDs

B. Pregnancy Testing and Counseling (Providing Quality Family Planmng Services —
Recommendations of CDC and US OPA, 2014: pp 13- 16):

The visit should include a discussion about reproducfive life plan and a medical
history. The test results should be presented to the client, followed by a discussion
of options and appropriate referrals.

1. Positive Pregnancy Test: include an estimation of gestational age so that appropriate
counseling can be provided.

Lamprey Health Care Attachment A, Amendment #1 ' Contractor Initials
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Attachment A, Amendment #1

a) Title X requires agencies to offer pregnant women the opportunity to be
provided information and counseling regarding each of the following options:

Prenatal care and delivery
Infant care, foster care, or adoption
Pregnancy termination

b} For clients who are considering or choose to continue the pregnancy, initial
prenatal counseling should be provided in accordance with recommendations
of professional medical organizations such as ACOG!

2. Negative Pregnancy Test and Not Seeking Pregnancy: evalue:tte reason for negative
test. Offer same day contraceptive services (including emergency contraception) and

discuss the value of making a reproductive life plan.

3. Negative Pregnancy Test and Seeking Pregnancy: counsel about how to maximize

fertility.

a) If appropriate, offer Basic Infertility Services (Level 1) on-site or through referral.

Key education points include:

Peak days and signs of fertility
Vaginal intercourse soon after menstrual period ends can increase the
likelihood of becoming pregnant
Methods or devices that determine or predict ovulation

Fertility rates are lower among women who are very thin or obese, and
those who consume high levels of caffeine
Smoking, consuming alcohol, using recreatlonal drugs, and using most
commercially available vaginal lubricants mlght reduce fertility

C. Preconception Health Services (Providing Quality Family Planning Services —

Recommendations of CDC and US OPA, 2014: pp 16- 17):

Preconception health services should be offered to women of|reproductive age who

are not pregnant but are at risk of becoming pregnant and to
for impregnating their female partner. Services should be ad

men who are at risk
ministered in

accordance with CDC’s recommendations to improve precon ception health and

health care.

1. For women:

a) Counsel on the need to take a daily supplement containing folic acid

b) Discussion of reproductive life plan
c) Sexual health assessment screening
d) Other screening services that include:
¢ (Obtain medical history
o Screen for intimate partner violence
» Screen for tobacco, alcohol, and substance use
¢ Screen for immunization status

Lamprey Health Care Attachment A, Amendment # | Contractor Initials
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2. For Men:

a) Discussion of reproductive life plan
b) Sexual health assessment screening
c) Other screening services that include:

Attachment A, Amendment #1

Screen for dcpressmn when staff are in place to ensure an accurate
dlagn05|s At a minimum, provide referral to behavioral health

services for those who have a positive screen

Screen for obesity by obtaining height, weight, & Body Mass Index

(BMI)

Screen for hypertension by obtaining Blood Pressure (BP)
Screen for type 2 diabetes in asymptomatic adults with sustained BP >

135/80 mmHg ( refer to PCP)

Obtain medical history
Screen for tobacco, alcohol, and substance use
Screen for immunization status

Screen for depression when staff-assisted depression supports are in
place to ensure accurate diagnosis, effective treatment, and follow-up
Screen for obesity by obtaining height, weight, & BMI

Screen for hypertension by obtaining BP

Screen for type 2 diabetes in asymptomatic adults with sustained BP >

135/80 mmHg

D. Sexually Transmitted Disease Services (Providing Quality Family Planning Services

= Recommendations of CDC and US OPA, 2014: pp 17- 20):

Provide STD services in accordance with CDC’s STD treatm

guidelines.

1. Assess client:

a) Discuss client’s reproductive life plan
b) Obtain medical history

¢) Obtain sexual health assessment

d) Check immunization status

2. Screen client for STDs i
a) Test sexually active women < 25 years of age and high-risk women > 25 years
of age yearly for chlamydia and gonorrhea l
b) Provide additional STD testing as indicated I
¢) Screen clients for HIV/AIDS in accordance with CDC HIV testing guidelines
which include routinely screening all clients aged 13- l64 years for HIV
infection at least one time. Those likely to be high risk for HIV should be re-

screened at least annually or per CDC Guidelines.

Lamprey Health Care
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Attachment A, Amendment #1

3. Treat client if positive for STD and his/her partner(s} in a timely fashion to prevent

complications, re-infection, and further spread in accordance
treatment guidelines. Re-test as indicated. Follow NH Burea

Control reporting regulations.

4. Provide STD/HIV risk reduction counseling.

with CDC’s STD
u of Infectious Disease

III. Guidelines for Related Preventive Health Services (Providing Quality

2014: p. 20):

Family Planning Services — Recommendations of CDC and US OPA

A, For clients without a PCP, the following screening services should be provided on-
site or by referral in accordance with federal and professnonal medical
recommendations:

2.

Medical History

Cervical Cytology

Clinical Breast Examination or discussion

Mammography

Genital Examination for adolescent males to assess normal growth and development
and other common genital findings.

1V. Summary (Providing Quality Family Planning Services —

Recommendations of

CDC and US OPA, 2014: pp 22- 23):

A, Checklist of family planning and related preventive health services for women:
Appendix B

B. Checklist of family planning and related preventive health services for men:
Appendix C

V. Guidelines for Other Medical Services

A. Postpartum Services

Lamprey Health Care
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Attachment A, Amendment #1

Provide postpartum services in accordance with federal and professi?nal medical
recommendations. In addition, provide comprehensive contraception services as described
above to meet family planning guidelines.

B. Sterilization Services

Public Health Services Guidelines on Sterilization of Persons in Federally Assisted Family
Planning Projects (42 CFR Part 50, Subpart B, 10-1-00 Edition) must be followed if
sterilization services are offered.

C. Minor Gynecological Problems

Diagnosis and treatment are provided according to each agency’s medical guidelines,

D. Genetic Screening

Initial genetic screening and referral for genetic counseling is provided to clients at risk for
transmission of genetic abnormalities. Initial screening includes: family history of client and
partner.

V1. Referrals

Agencies must establish formal arrangements with a referral agency|for the provision of
services required by Title X that are not available on site. Agencies must have written
policies/procedures for follow-up on referrals made as a result of abnormal physical exam or
laboratory test findings. These policies must be sensitive to client’s lconcerns for
confidentiality and privacy.

If services are determined to be necessary, but beyond the scope of Title X or the state
program clinical guidelines, agencies are responsible to provide pertinent client information
to the referral provider (with the client’s consent) and to counsel the‘clicnt on her/his
responsibility to follow up with the referral and on the importance of the referral.

When making referrals for services that are not required under Title X or by the state
program clinical guidelines, agencies must make efforts to assist the|client in identifying
payment sources, but agencies are not responsible for payment for these services.

VII. Emergencies

All agencies must have written protocols for the management of on-site medical
emergencies. Protocols must also be in place for emergencies requiring transport, after-hours
management of contraceptive emergencies and clinic emergencies. {All staff must be -
familiar with emergency protocols.

Lamprey Health Care Attachment A, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials %
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VIII. Resources

e US Preventive Services Task Force (USPSTF) http://www.uspreventiveservicestaskforce org.

¢ National Guidelines Clearinghouse (NGCH) http://www.guideline.gov.

*  American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP), Bright Futures, Guidelines for Health Supervision
of Infants, Children, and Adolescents, 4" Edition.

https://brightfutures aap.org/Bright%20F utures%20Documents/BF4_Introduction.pdf

¢  American Medical Association (AMA) Guidelines for Adolescent Preventive Services (GAPS)

hnp;//www,up;gdggg,ggm/cgnten;ﬂguidglines-fgr-gdglescem-preven:iv'e-sem' ces

¢ USDHHS Centers for Disease Control (CDC), STD Treatment Guidelines
http://www.cdc.gov/std/treatment/.

¢ American College of Obstetrics and Gynecology (ACOG) Practice Bulletins and Committee
Opinions are available on-line to ACOG members only, at httg://www!,acog.org. Yearly on-line
subscriptions and CD-ROMs are available for purchase through the ACOG Bookstore.

* American Society for Colposcopy and Cervical Pathology (ASCCP) http://www.asccp.org.

¢ American Society for Reproductive Medicine (ASRM) http://www.asrm.org.

* American Cancer Society. http:.//www.cancer.org/.

¢ North American Society of Pediatric and Adolescent Gynecology http://www.naspag.org/.

* Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality http://www.ahrq.gov/clinic/cpgsix.htm.

¢ Partners in Information Access for the Public Health Workforce http://phpartners.org/guide. html.

¢ “Emergency Oral Contraception,” ACOG, ACQG Practice Bulletin, ]_\[.io 132, September, 2015.
For article, see: “ACOG Recommendations on Emergency Contraception Am Fam Physician.
2010 Nov 15;82(10):1278. Armstrong C.

s ACOG Commiree Opinipns represent an ACOG committee's assessments of emerging issues in
obstetric and gynecologic practice. Committee_Opinions provide tlmely guidance on ethical
concerns, new practice techniques and controversial topics. Published in the ACOG journal,
Qbstetries and Gynecology, Committee Opinions are peer reviewed re'gularly to guarantee

accuracy. www.acgg.org[Resources-And-Publications/Committee-Op'inions-List.
¢ Compendium of Selected Publications contains all of the ACOG Educational Bulletins, Practice

Bulletins, and Committee Opinions that are current as of December 31|, 2006. This valuable
resource contains all the relevant documents issued by ACOG and its commlttees with a complete
subject index for easy reference. Note — All ACOG materials can be Qurghaseg by calling 1-800-
762-2264 or through the Bookstore on the ACOG Web site:
http//www acog org/Resources_And_Publications.
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* US Medical Eligibility for Contraceptive Use, 2016.
hitp://www.cdc.gov/reproductivehealth/UnintendedPregnancy/USMEC.htm

e AIDS info (DHHS) http://www aidsinfo.nih.gov/.

e American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP), Policy Statement: “Contraception for Adolescents”,

September, 2014, httg://pediatrics.aappublications.grg[content/early/Zbl 4/09/24/peds.2014-2299

e U.S. Preventive Services Task Force (USPSTF), Guide to Clinical Preventive Services, 2014.
Jiwww.ahrq.gov/professionals/clinicians-providers/guidelines-

recommendations/guide/index. htmil

» Contraceptive Technology, Hatcher, et al. 21* Revised Edition.
ttp://www contraceptivetechnology.org/the-book/

¢ Managing Contraceptive Pill Patients, Richard P. Dickey.

* Women’'s Health Issues, published bimonthly by the Jacobs Institute of Women’s Health.
http://www, whijournal.com.

¢ American Medical Association, Information Center http:/www ama-assn.org/ama

o US DHHS, Health Resources Services Administration {(HRSA) http://www.hrsa.gov/index.htm].
[

s “Reproductive Health Online (Reproline)”, Johns Hopkins University
http://www.reprolineplus.org.

* Emergency Contraception: www arhp.org/topics/emergency-contraception.

¢ Condom Effectiveness: http:/fwww.cdc.gov/condomeffectiveness/index.html
Additional Web Sites Related to Family Planning

» American Society for Reproductive Medicine: http://www.asrm.org/
« Centers for Disease Control & Prevention A to Z Index, http://www cdc gov/az/b.htm|

¢ Emergency Contraception Web site http://ec.princeton.edu/

» Office of Population Affairs: hitp.//www.hhs.gov/opa
¢ Title X Statute http.//www.hhs.gov/opa/title-x-famil olicies/statutes-and-

regulations

* Appropriations Language/Legislative Mandates http://www.hhs.gov/opa/title-x-family-

planning/title-x-policies/legislative-mandates.

o Sterilization of Persons in Federally Assisted Family Planning Projects Regulations

https://www hhs.gov/opa/sites/default/files/42-cfr-50-c_0.pdf
Department of Health and Human Services Regions http://www.hhs.gov/opa/regional-contacts
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Title X Family Planning Information and Education (I&E) Advisory and
Community Participation Guidelines/Agreement

To assist delegates in meeting Title X I&E advisory committee and community participation
requirements, these guidelines include the following sections:

< Review and Approval of Informational and Educational Materials - Title X Requirements
« 1&E Advisory Committee Organization, Membership, Function & Meetings
Community Participation

Review and Approval of Informational and Educational Materials — Title X Requirements

An advisory board of five to nine members (the size of the committee can differ from these
limits with written documentation and approval from the Title X Reglonal Office) who are
broadly representative of the community must review and approve all informational and
educational (I&E) materials developed or made available under the project prior to their
distribution to assure that the materials are suitable for the population and community for which
they are intended and to assure their consistency with the purposes of Title X. Oversight
responsibility for the I&E committee(s) rests with the grantee. The grantee may delegate the
I&E operations for the review and approval of materials to delegate/conyact agencies.

The I&E committee(s) must:
- Consider the educational and cultural backgrounds of the individuals to whom the
materials are addressed;
+ Consider the standards of the population or community to be served with respect to such
materials;
+ Review the content of the material to assure that the information|is factually correct;
Determine whether the material is suitable for the population or community for which it
is to be made available; and
- Establish a written record of its determinations.

I&E Advisory Committee Organization, Membership, Function & Meetings

Suggestions for Committee Organization and Membership:

+ A community participation committee may serve as your I&E advisory committee if it
meets Title X requirements.

+ Check to see if your health department staff or agency upper management if there is an
existing committee that can serve as your I&E advisory committee.

< ldentify other health department or agency program committees with broad based
community representation that may serve as your advisory co'mmlttee i.e. school-based
health centers; public health advisory; alcohol and drug programs In-house agency staff
cannot serve as committee members.

- ldentify community groups, organizations or individuals broadly representative of your
community and client population. :

+  Select five to nine members, with more than five members, you will meet the Title X
requirement without member recruitment when someone leaves the committee.
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Suggestions for I&E Advisory Committee Communication (Note: I&E advisory committee

meetings are recommended, but not required by Title X):

+ Meet on an “ad hoc” basis to review materials, meet annually, provide orientation
meetings for new committee members, or meet via conference calls.

+ Communicate with committee members by e-mail, phone, fax |or mail for each material

review.

I&E Advisory Committee Membership Description (For committee! member recruitment or

orientation, you can use this description):

Federally funded family planning agencies provide critical health services to low-income

and uninsured individuals to prevent unintended pregnancies.

- The federal grant requires advisory committee review and approval of all educational

materials and information before distribution.

+Advisory committees assist in evaluating and selecting materials appropriate for clients

and the community.

« The family planning agency sends committee members materials, such as pamphlets,

videos, posters, or teaching tools. Members complete an I&E review form or attend a

meeting to give feedback regarding material approprtatenes's for the audience and
community.

Community Participation

Title X grantees and delegate/contract agencies must provide an opportunity for participation in
the development, implementation, and evaluation of the project |(1) by persons broadly
representative of all significant elements of the population to be served, and (2) by persons in the
community knowledgeable about the community’s needs for family planning services. Projects
must establish and implement planned activities to facilitate communlt)I( awareness. of and access
to family planning services. Each family planning project must provide; for community education
programs. The community education program(s) should be based on an assessment of the needs
of the community and should contain an implementation and evaluation|strategy.

Community education should serve to enhance community understanding of the objectives of the
project, make known the availability of services to potential clients, [and encourage continued
participation by persons to whom family planning may be bcneﬁcial. The I&E advisory
committee may serve the community participation function if it meets the above requirements or
a separate group may be identified. In either case, the grantee pro;ectI plan must include a plan
for community participation. The community participation committée must meet annually or
more often as appropriate.

Suggestions for Community Participation:
+ Every year, schedule a meeting with your community participatilon committee.
- To meet the Title X community participation requirement, your committee can:
o Assist with problem solving, i.e. how to increase male ser{/ices; solve a “no show”
problem, or improve customer service.
o Offer feedback about your family planning program strengths and suggest areas
needing improvement.

Lamprey Health Care Attachment 8, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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Attachment B, Amendment #1

o Serve as family planning advocates to increase community awareness of the need for

family planning services and the impact of services.

NH DHHS Requirements

On a yearly basis, sub-recipients will be required to submit a comprehenswe master list with the
date of review along with the educational and informational materlals that are currently being
distributed or are available to Title X clients. In addition sub- recnptents will be required to
provide written documentation explaining specifically how records wil
how old materials will be expired.

F- oo w)rzmé

be maintained as well as

o At (g
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Attachmént C, Amendment #1

Title X Family Planning Program Priorities: .

Ensuring that all clients receive contraceptive and other services in a voluntary, client-centered and non-coercive manner in
accordance with QFP and Title X requirements with the goal of supporting clients’ decisions related to preventing or achieving
pregnancy.

Assuring the delivery of quality family planning and related preventive health services, with priority for services to individuals
from low-income families;

Providing access to a broad range of acceptable and effective family planning methods and related preventive health services
in accordance with the Title X program requirements and the most current Quality Family Planning (QFP). These services

‘include, but are not limited to, contraceptive services including fertility awareness based methods, pregnancy testing and

counseling, services to help clients achieve pregnancy, basic infertility services, STD services, preconception health services,
and breast and cervical cancer screening. The broad range of services does not include abortion as a method of family
planning;

Assessing clients’ reproductive life plan/reproductive intentions as part of determining the need for family planning services,
and providing preconception services as stipulated in QFP;

Following a model that promotes optimal health outcomes for the client (physical, mental and social health) by emphasizing
comprehensive primary health care services and substance use disorder screening, along with family planning services
preferably in the same location or through nearby referral providers;

Providing counseling for adolescents that encourages the delay the onset of sexual activity and abstinence as an option to
reduce sexual risk, promotes parental involvement, and discusses ways to resist sexual coercion;

Identifying individuals, families, and communities in need, but not currently receiving family planning services, through
outreach to hard-to-reach and/or vulnerable populations, and partnering with other community-based health and social service
providers that provide needed services; and

Demonstrating that the project’s infrastructure and management practices ensure sustainability of family planning and
reproductive health services delivery throughout the proposed service area including:

o Incorporation of certified Electronic Health Record (EHR) systems (when available) that have the ability to capture
family planning data within structured fields;

o Evidence of contracts with insurance plans and systems for third party billing as well as the ability to facilitate the
enrollment of clients into private insurance and Medicaid, optimally onsite; and to report on numbers of clients assisted
and enrolled; and

o Addressing the comprehensive health care needs of clients through formal, robust linkages or integration with
comprehensive primary care providers.
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Attachment C, Amendment #1

New Hampshire will also consider and incorporate the following key issues within its Service Delivery Work Plan:

Incorporation of the most current Title X Program Guidelines throughout the proposed service area as demonstrated by written
clinical protocols that are in accordance with Title X Requirements and QFP.

Efficiency and effectiveness in program management and operations;

Patient access to a broad range of contraceptive options, including long acting reversible contraceptives (LARC) and fertility
awareness based methods, other pharmaceuticals, and laboratory tests, preferably on site;

Use of performance measures to regularly perform quality assurance and quality improvement activities, including the use of
measures to monitor contraceptive use;

Establishment of formal linkages and documented partnerships with comprehensive primary care providers, HIV care and
treatment providers, and mental health, drug and alcohol treatment providers;

Incorporation of the National HIV/AIDS Strategy (NHAS) and CDC’s “Revised Recommendations for HIV Testing of Adults,
Adolescents and Pregnant Women in Health Care Settings;” and

Efficient and streamlined electronic data collection {such as for the Family Planning Annual Report (FPAR)), reporting and
analysis for internal use in monitoring staff or program performance, program efficiency, and staff productivity in order to
improve the quality and delivery of family planning services.
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Attachment C, Amendment #1

AGENCY NAME:
WORKPLAN COMPLETED BY:

Goal 1: Maintain access to family planning services for low-income populations across the state.

Performance INDICATOR #1:
SFY 20 Outcome
Through June 2020, FPP delegate agencies will provide services to: la. ___ Clients served
la. clients will be served b Clients <100% FPL
b __  clients <100% FPL will be served le. ____ Clients <250% FPL
le. __  clients <250% FPL will be served Ild. __ Clients<20
Id. __ clients <20 will be served le. __ Clients on Medicaid
le. ___  clients on Medicaid will be served If. ____ Clients—Male »
If. male clients will be served lg. ___ Women <25 years positive for
— Chlamydia

Through June 2021, FPP delegate agencies will provide services to: SFY 21 Outcome

la clients will be served ta.____ Clients served
. . <1000
Ib clients <100% FPL will be served b~ Clients <100% FPL
—_— . . lc. Clients <250% FPL
lc. clients <250% FPL will be served — .
d —_— I <0 will b d 1d. Clients <20
Id. __ clients <20 will be serve | le. Clients on Medicaid
le. clients on Medicaid will be served — .
' _ le oli il b 4 If. Clients — Male
—— male clients will be serve ~lg. Women.<25_years positive.for.
. Chlamydia
Lamprey Health Care Atachment C, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-06-A01

Page 3 of 11 Date /7‘



Attachment C, Amendment #1

Goal 2: Assure access to quality clinical and diagnostic services and a broad range of contraceptive methods.

Performance Measure #5: 100% of sub recipient agencies will have a policy for how they will include abstinence in their education of
available methods in being a form of birth control amongst family planning clients, specifically those clients less than 18 years

Sub-recipient provides grantee a copy of abstinence education policy for review and approval by August 31, 2019 (or within 30
days of Governor and Council Approval).

Goal 3: Assure that all women of childbearing age receiving Title X services receive preconception care services through risk
assessment (i.e., screening, educational & health promotion, and interventions) that will reduce reproductive risk.

Performance Measure #6: By August 31, 2019, 100% of sub recipient agencies will have a policy for how they will provide STD/HIV
harm reduction education with all family planning clients.

:I Sub-recipient provides grantee a copy of STD/HIV harm reduction education policy for review and approval by August 31,
2019 (or within 30 days of Governor and Council Approval).

Goal 4: Provide appropriate education and networking to make vulnerable populations aware of the availability of family
planning services and to inform public audiences about Title X priorities.

Performance Measure #7: By August 31%, of each SFY, sub recipients will complete an outreach and education report of the number
of community service providers that they contacted in order to establish effective outreach for populations in need of reproductive
health services.

Sub-recipient provides grantee a copy of completed SFY20 outreach & education report by August 31, 2020.

Sub-recipient provides grantee a copy of completed SFY21 outreach & education report by August 31, 2021.

Lamprey Health Care Anachment C, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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Attachment C, Amendment #1

Goal 5: The NH FPP program will provide appropriate training and technical assistance to assure that New Hampshire
service providers are fully aware of federal guidelines and priorities and of new developments in reproductive health and that
they have the skills to respond.

Performance Measure #8: By August 31%, of each SFY, sub recipients will submit an annual training report for clinical & non-clinical
staff that participated in family planning services and/or activities to ensure adequate knowledge of Title X policies, practices and
guidelines.

Sub-recipient provides grantee a copy of completed SFY20 annual training report by August 31, 2020.

Sub-recipient provides grantee a copy of completed SFY21 annual training report by August 31, 2021.

Clinical Performance:
The following section is to report inputs/activities/evaluation and outcomes for three out of six Family Planning Clinical Performance
Measures as listed below:

+ Performance Measure #1: The percent of all female family pianning clients of reproductive age (15-44) who receive preconception
counseling

s Performance Measure #2: The percent of female family planning clients < 25 screened for Chlamydia infection.
e Performance Measure #4: The percent of women aged 15-44 at risk of unintended pregnancy that is provided a long-acting
reversible contraceptive (LARC) method (Implant or TUD/IUS)

[ TITLEX
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Attachment C, Amendment #1

INPUTS/RESOURCES ACTIVITIES PERFORMANCE PRIORITY
MEASURE OUTCOMES
(OUTPUT) (GOAL)

Performance Measure #1: Goal 3:
The percent of family planning Assure that all
clier]ts-of reproducti.ve age who women of
receives preconception childbearing
counseling. age receiving
Title X
SFY 20 Agency Target: services
SFY 21 Agency Target: receive .
preconception
i _=_| care services
SFY 20 Outcome - | through risk
T _zs °_..| assessment
Numerator ) 1Ges
Denominator: ;=% .. < |Screening,
A= T L T educational &
A R _ health
SFY 21 Outcome: . " | promotion,
EVALUATION ACTVITIES T L e YR ) fmd .
Numerator: interventions)
Deénominator: * % -+ | that will
A reduce
-_| reproductive

| risk.

273 om .- WORKPLAN PERFORMANCE.QUTCOME (To be completed at end of, SFY)

Lamprey Health Care
RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-06-A01
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Attachment C, Amendment #]

]

SFY 20 Outcome: %o
Target/Objective Met

Numerator: %

Denominator: % Target/Objective Not Met
Narrative: Explain what happened during the year that contributed to success i.e. PDSA cycles etc. OR Explain what happened during
the year, why measure was not met, improvement activities, barriers, elc.

Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently) to achieve target/objective for SFY21

Revised Workplan Attached (Please check if workplan has been revised)

SEY 21 Outcome: Insert your agency's data/outcome results here for July 1, 2020-June 30, 2021

SFY 20 Outcome: %

Target/Objective Met
Numerator: %

Denominator: % Target/Objective Not Met

Narrative: Explain what happened during the year that contributed to success i.e. PDSA cycles etc. OR Explain what happened during
the year, why measure was not met, improvement activities, barriers, elc.

Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently) to achieve target/objective for SFY22

Lamprey Health Care Attachment C, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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Attachment C, Amendment #1

TITLE X
INPUTS/RESOURCES ACTIVITIES PERFORMANCE PRIORITY OUTCOMES
MEASURE (GOAL)
(OUTPUT)
Performance Measure #2: Goal 3: Assure that all
The percent of female family | women of childbearing age
planning clients <25 screened | receiving Title X services
for Chlamydia infection. receive preconception care
. o, | services through risk
State Minimum Target: 70% assessment (i.e., screening,
SFY 20 Target: educati?nal & health
promotion, and
SFY 21 Target: interventions) that will
reduce reproductive risk.
SFY 20:Qutcome =~ =
.Numerator:..x
Denominator:
SFY 21 Qutcome:. F
EVALUATION ACTVITIES ’ B

Numerator:. .. _ e du fe

Denominator:

Ay

.+ .:..- . 'WORKPLAN PERFORMANCE OUTCOQOME.(To be complet¢d at end of SFY)".

Lamprey Health Care
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Attachment C, Amendment #1

SEY 20 Qutcome: Insert your agency's data/outcome results here for July 1, 2019-June 30, 2020
SFY 20 Outcome: %
Target/Objective Met

Numerator: %
Denominator: % Target/Objective Not Met

Narrative: Explain what happened during the year that contributed 1o success i.e. PDSA cycles etc. OR Explain what happened during the
year, why measure was not mel, improvement activities, barriers, efc.

Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently) to achieve target/objective for SFY21

Revised Workplan Attached (Please check if workplan has been revised)

SEY 21 Outcome: Insert your agency's data/outcome results here for July 1, 2020-June 30, 2021

SFY 21 Outcome: ___ %

Target/Objective Met
Numerator: %
Denominator: % Target/Objective Not Met

Narrative: Explain what happened during the year that contributed to success i.e. PDSA cycles etc. OR Explain what happened during the
year, why measure was not mei, improvement activities, barriers, elc.

Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently) to achieve target/objective for SFY22

Lamprey Health Care Attachment C, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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TITLE X
INPUTS/RESOURCES ACTIVITIES PERFORMANCE PRIORITY OUTCOMES
MEASURE (GOAL)
(OUTPUT)
Performance Measure #4: Goal 3: Assure access to a
The percent of women aged | broad range of acceptable
15-44 at risk.of unintended and effective family
pregnancy that is provided a | planning methods,
long-acting reversible including LARC.
contraceptive {LARC)
method (Implant or [UD/IUS)
SFY 20 Target:
SFY 21 Target:
SFYZO-(—)utcome E -
Numerator:
.Denominator:
-SFY 21 Outcome: 7
EVALUATION ACTVITIES

- — — ——y

“Numerator: -~
Denominator:

-

" WORKPLAN PERFORMANCE QUTCOMEX(To be ¢

6.1{;pl§ted‘at end of SFY)

Lamprey Health Care
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Attachment C, Amendment #1

SFY 20 Qutcome: Insert your agency's data/outcome results here for July 1, 2019-June 30, 2020
SFY 20 Outcome: %
Target/Objective Met
Numerator: %
Denominator: % Target/Objective Not Met
Narrative: Explain what happened during the year that contributed to success i.e. PDSA cycles etc. OR Explain what happened during the
year, why measure was not mel, improvement activities, barriers, etc.

Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently) to achieve target/objective for SFY21

Revised Workplan Attached (Please check if workplan has been revised)

SEY 21 Qutcome: Insert your agency's data/outcome resuits here for July 1, 2020-June 30, 2021

SFY 21 Outcome: ___ %

Target/Objective Met
Numerator: %
Denominator: % Target/Objective Not Met

Narrative: Explain what happened during the year that contributed to success i.e. PDSA cycles etc. OR Explain what happened during the
year, why measure was not mel, improvement activities, barriers, elc.

Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently) to achieve target/objective for SFY22
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Attachment D, Amendment #2

Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1

Indicators: SFY Out
la. ___ clients will be served la.
1b.___ clients < 100% FPL will be served Ib. |
le._ clients <250% FPL will be served le.
ld.___ clients <20 years of age will be served d. |
le._ clients on Medicaid at their last visit will be served | le.
If___ maleclients will be served :f- -
g___

’:ome

clients served

clients <100% FPL
clients <250% FPL
clients <20years of age
clients on Medicaid
male clients

women <25 years
positive for Chlamydia

Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1 b

Indicator:  The percent of clients under 100% FPL in the family planning caseload.
Goal: To increase access to reproductive services by low-income residents.
Definition: Numerator: Total number of clients <100% FPL served.

Denominator: Total number of clients served.

Data Source: Region 1 Data System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1 ¢

Indicator:  The percent of clients under 250% FPL in the family planning caseload.
Goal: To increase access to reproductive services by low-income residents.
Definition: Numerator: Total number of clients <250% FPL served.

Denominator: Total number of clients served.

Data Source: Region | Data System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1 d

Indicator:  The percent of clients under 20 years of age in the family pl
Goal: To increase access to reproductive services by adolescents.
Definition: Numerator: Total number of teens served.

Lamprey Health Care Attachment D, Amendment #1
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Data Source: Region 1 Data System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1 ¢

Attachment D, Amendment #2

Denominator: Total number of clients served.

Indicator:

Goal:

Definition:

Data Source: Region 1 Data System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1 f

Indicator:

Goal:

Definition:

Data Source

Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1 g

: Region 1 Data System

The percent of clients served in the family planning program that were Medicaid

recipients at the time of their last visit.

To improve access to reproductive services by Medicaid clients.
Numerator: Number of clients with Medicaid as payment source.

Denominator: Total number of clients served.

The percent of clients who are males in the family planning caseload.
To increase access to reproductive services by males.
Numerator: Total number of male clients served.

Denominator: Total number of clients served.

Indicator:  The proportion of women <25 screened for Chlamydia and tested positive.

Goal: To improve diagnosis of asymptomatic Chlamydia infection in the age group with
highest risk for this STD.

Definition: Numerator: Total number of women <25 that tested positive for C ydia.
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Attachment D, Amendment #2

Denominator: The total number of women <25 screened for Chlamydia.

Data Source: Client Health Records

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #1

Measure: The percent of family planning clients of reproductive age who receives preconception
counseling.
Goal: To assure that all women of childbearing age receiving Title X services receive

preconception care services through risk assessment (i.e., screening, educational &

health promotion, and interventions) that will reduce reprod

| ' -
uctive risk.

Definition: Numerator: Total number of clients of reproductive age who receive preconception

health counseling.

Denominator: Total number of clients of reproductive age.

Data Source: Client Health Records

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #2

Measure: The percent of female family planning clients < age 25 screened for Chlamydia
infection.
Goal: To improve diagnosis of asymptomatic chlamydia infection |in the age group with

highest risk for this STD.
Definition: Numerator: Total number of chlamydia tests for female cl
Denominator: Total number of female clients < age 25.

Data Source: Region 1 Data System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #3

ients <25.

Measure: The percentage of women aged 15-44 at risk of unintended pregnancy that is provided a
most effective (sterilization, implants, intrauterine devices or systems (IUD/IUS)) or moderately
effective (injectable, oral pills, patch, ring, or diaphragm) contraceptive method

Goal: To improve utilization of most and most effective contraceptive methods to reduce

unintended pregnancy.

Lamprey Health Care Attachment D, Amendment #1 Contract
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Definition:

Data Source: Region 1 Data System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #4

Attachment D, Amendment #2

Numerator: The number of women aged 15-44 years at rlsk for unintended pregnancy
that is provided a most or moderately effective contraceptlve method.

Denominator: The number of women aged 15-44 years at risk for unintended
pregnancy

Measure:

Goal:

Definition:

Data Source: Region |1 Data System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #5

Measure:

Goal:

Definition:

Data Source: Client Health Records

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #6

Measure:

The percentage of women aged 15-44 years at risk of umntended pregnancy that is
provided a LARC (implants or intrauterine devices or systems (TUD/IUS)) method.

To improve utilization of LARC contraceptive methods to reduce unintended
pregnancy. '

Numerator: The number of women aged 15-44 years at risk of pregnancy that is
provided a long-acting reversible contraceptive (LARC) method (implants or IUD/IUS).

Denominator: The number of women aged 15-44 years at risk for unintended
pregnancy.

The percent of family planning clients less than 18 years of age who received education
that abstinence is a viable method/form of birth control.

To improve access to a broad range of effective contraceptive methods including
abstinence to prevent unintended pregnancy, STD and HlVIlmDS.

Numerator: Total number of clients under the age of 18 whlo received abstinence
education.

Denominator: Total number of clients under the age of 18.

The percentage of family planning clients who received STD/HIV reduction education.
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Attachment D, Amendment #2

Goal: To ensure that all clients receive STD/HIV reduction education.
Definition: Numerator: The total number of clients that received STD/HIV reduction education.
Denominator: The total number of clients served.

Data Source: Client Health Records

Family Plannin Performance Measure #7

Community Partnership Report

Definition: This measure calls for face-to-face meetings with agencies or individuals intended to
increase linkages between the family planning program and key partners in the community. Outreach
efforts should include: (1) learning about the partner agency (2) informirllg the partner agency about
family planning services and (3) identifying areas where linkages can |be established. The most
effective outreach is targeted to a specific audience and/or purpose and is directed based on identified
needs. All sites are required to make one contact annually with the local DCYF office. Please be very
specific in describing the outcomes of the linkages you were able to establish.

TR T Qutreach Plan -t Ty, C 2 [ . Qutreach Report
Agency/Individual Purpose Contact Outcome — Linkages
Partner Contacted Date Established

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure‘#B

Annual Training Report

Definition: This measure calls for the FP delegate to submit an annual trairlling report for clinical &
non-clinical staff that participate in family planning services and/or activities to ensure adequate
knowledge of Title X policies, practices and guidelines.

Lamprey Health Care Autachment D, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-06-A01
Page 5 of 5 Date __ Kc'\
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New Hampshire Title X Family Planning Program

Family Planning Annual Report (FPAR) Additional Data Elements

. ata Elements:
Effective July 1, 2017

Proposed for FPAR 2.0:

Age

Annual Household Income
Birth Sex

Breast Exam

CBE Referral

Chlamydia Test {CT)
Contraceptive method initial
Date of Birth

English Proficiency

Ethnicity

Gonorrhea Test (GC)

HIV Test — Rapid

HIV Test — Standard
Household size

Medical Services

Office Visit — new or established patient
Pap Smear

Patient Number

Preconception Counseling
Pregnancy Test

Primary Contraceptive Method
Primary Reimbursement
Principle Health Insurance Coverage

Clinical Provider Identifier
Contraceptive Counseling
Counseling to Achieve Pregnancy
CT Test Result |
Date of Last HIV test
Date of Last HPV Co-test
Date of Pap Tests Last 5 years
Diastolic blood pressure
Ever Had Sex

Facility Identifier

GC Test Result
Gravidity

Height

HIV Referral Recommenqed Date

HIV Referral Visit Completed Date

How Contraceptive Method(s) Provided at Exit
HPV Test Result
Method(s) Provided At Exit
Parity

Pregnancy Intention
Pregnancy Status Reporting
Reason for no contraceptive method at intake
Sex Last 12 Months

Procedure Visit Type Sex Last 3 Months

Provider Type Smoking status

Race Systolic blood pressure

Reason for no method at exit Weight

RPR

Site

Visit Date

Zip code
Lamprey Health Care Attachment E, Amendment #1 Contractor Initlals
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Attachment F, Amendment #2

Family Planning R ine Calendar SFY 20-2]

D hin 30 d [G&C T
- 2019 Clinical Guidelines signatures
SFY 20-21 FP Work Plans

SEVR207(TaIV T 2019-Jue 30,-2020)" ®ik . an ™ T TWEst T T g T R T T
Due Date: Reporting Requirement:
October 4, 2019 Public Health Sterilization Records (July-September)

January 17, 2020 - FP Source of Revenue foi' FPAR
Clinical Data for FPAR (lHlV & Pap Tests)

Table 13: FTE/Provider Type for FPAR

April 3, 2020 Public Health Sterilization Records (January-March)

released from HRSA)

Late April — May (Official dates shared when | 340B Annual Recertification|
(http://ow.ly/NBJG30dmcF7)

Outreach and Education Report
Annual Training Report
Work Plan Update/Outcome Report

Data Trend Tables (DTT)

May 1, 2020 Pharmacy Protocols/Guidelines
May 29, 2020 - 1&E Material List with Advnsory Board Approval Dates
- Federal Scales/Fee Schedulcs
June 26, 2020 Cllnlcal Gutdelmes Slgnaturesiei’fectwe July 1 2020)
ISRV [ulv 1520205 June:30; 2021)..". 77 e ol o dv . 10 4. RN
Due Date: Reporting Requlrement. |
August 31,2020 + Patient Satisfaction Surveys

Clinical Data for FPAR ('HIV & Pap Tests)
Table 13: FTE/Provider Type for FPAR

October 2, 2020 Publlc Health Sterilization Records (July-September)

January 8§, 2021 Public Health Sterilization Records (September -
December)

January 15, 2021 . FP Source of Revenue for FPAR

April 2, 2021 Public Health Sterilization Records (January-March)

released from HRSA)

Late April — May (Official dates shared when | 340B Annual Recertificationl
(http://ow. ly/NBJG30dmcF7)

May 7, 2021 Pharmacy Protocols/Guidelines
May 28, 2021 . I&E Material List with Advisory Board Approval
Dates
Federal Scales/Fee Schedules
June 25, 2021 Clinical Guidelines Signatures (effective July 1, 2021)
Lamprey Health Care Attachment F, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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Attachment F, Amendment #2

Patient Satisfaction Surveys
Outreach and Education Report

Annual Training Report
Work Plan Updatc/Outcome Report

Data Trend Tables (DTT)
2021 FPAR Data |

August 31, 2021

TBD

All dates and reporting requirements are subject to change at the discretion of the N|H Family Planning Program and

Title X Federal Requirements.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

Exhibit B, Amendment #1

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8
of the Form P-37 General Provisions, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to
Exhibit A - Amendment #1, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded from State General Funds and Federal Funds from the Office of
Population Affairs, CFDA #93.217, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN),
FPHPAQ06407 and US DHHS Administration for Children and Families, CFDA #93.558,
FAIN #1701NHTANF.

3. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the Contract
funding.

4. The Contractor shall submit a detailed budget to the Department for review and approval no
later than ten (10) business days from the contract effective date. The Contractor shall:

4.1.

4.2

4.3.

4.4,

Utilize budget forms as provided by the Department.

or's current and/or future

Submit a budget for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 that does not exceed funding
available for each state fi scal year for Department review and approval

Submit a budget narrative and staff list for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 in
accordance with the budgets submitted, as approved by the Depadment in accordance

with Subsection 4.2, above.

Agree that budget forms, budget narratives and staff lists proviged and approved by the
Department in accordance with this Section 4 shall be mcorporated by reference into this
agreement no later than thirty (30) days from the date of Governor and Executive Council

approval,

5. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

5.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the

52.

5.3.

5.4,

fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with th
items, as detailed in Section 4, above.

e approved budget line

The Contractor shall submit monthly invoices in a form satusfactory to the State by the
tenth (10™) working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for

authorized expenses incurred in the previous month. |

The Contractor shall ensure each invoice is completed, signed,
Department in order to initiate payment.

dated and returned to the

The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and only if sufficient funds are

available,

5.5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed

Lamprey Health Care Exhibit B, Amendment #1
RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-08-A01

to: DPHScontractbiling@dhhs.nh.gov

Page 1 of 2

Contractor inilals



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

Exhibit B, Amandment #1

5.6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports and deliverables identified
in Exhibit A - Amendment #1, Scope of Services.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompllance with any State or
Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have
not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of ithis Agreement.

8. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits
within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years may be
made by written agreement of both parties and may be made wﬂhout obtaining approval of
the Governor and Executive Council.

Lamprey Health Care Exhibit B, Amendment #1 Contractor Inltials
RFA-2018-DPHS-03-FAMIL-08-A01

Page 2 of 2 Date
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State of New Hampshlre
Department of State

CERTIFICATE.

"L Willidn M Gardneis Scerctary of Siate.of it SIdte of New Hanipsliire, do heceby ceriify that LAMPREY HEALTH CARE,

INC. is-a:NewiHumpshire:Nonprofit Corporaiion,regisiered.to transact,business in'New Hampshire on August 16, 1971, 1 further

certily What oll.fees and‘documents reguiired by the: Sc(.n:tary ‘of State's: office-have'beeii recvivied and i in good stariding es far as

this:, oﬂ'u: isconcerned.”

BusinessTID::66382
Ceriilfcate Number ;0004496055

IN.-TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my- ‘hand anil cabse 1o be- uﬂ'tcd
. the Seal of. thc‘Statc of. Ncw Hampshm:.

thistl 1th da\I' ot April A D ,20!9

9//5«2/

“Williafn. M:Gm;dnc{
Sterctary of|Stule:

——iam

——— e . =



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

i, T. Christopher Drew, do hereby certify that;
1. I am a duly elected Officer of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on mN 21 Zolq

RESOLVED: That the res.den; of the Board, Mark Howard, ¢+ ] ¢e ?Q{\deb\,{" mes G“’“ SP“A
is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to

execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,

or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.
3. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in fullforce and effect as of

the 3 | day of MGZ\/ . 2019

4. T. Christopher Drew is the duly elected Secretary of the Agency.

(Signature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Rockingham ’

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this g\ day of MO\H , 2019,

By T. Christopher Drew, Secretary, Lamprey Health Care, Inc.  KATELYN SUUP“AKHOT NmmyPuDﬂc

(f}fame of Elected Officer of the Agency) \1? State oém; W“ 2023
5‘\\ '-""“E ".: .'-..,' T ! Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal
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ACORDr
V.

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LAMPHEA-01 LHANNO

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
5/31/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE| COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:

It the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certaln policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate heolder in lieu of such endorsement(s). |

Holliston, MA 01746

propucer Llcense # 1780862

HUB International New England
100 Central Street, Sulte 201

| SJfACT Dan Joyal |

PHONE  (774) 233-6208 | FA% oy

| ip¥ikes. dan.joyal@hbubirternational.com

{
INSURER[S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

imsyrer 4 : Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Com pany |18058

INSURED

Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
207 South Main Street
Newmarket, NH 03857

msurer B ; Atlantic Charter Insurance Company 44376

INSUYRER C ;

INJURER D :

INSURERE ;

INSURER F :

COVERA

CERTIFICATE NUMBER;

_REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

iy TYPE OF INSURANCE oan et POLICY NUMBER A ST )| AR T uMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LABILITY M AREN s 1,000,000
| cLamsmane [ X ] occur PHPK1842105 07/01/2018 | 07/01/2019 | DAMAGE TO RENTED . 1,000,000
| MED EXP (Any one person)__| § 20,000
| PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
| GEN'L AGGR LIMIT APPLIES PER: | GENERAL AGGREGATE s 3,000,000
POLICY i PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | $ 3,000,000
QTHER; $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY fﬁm‘smcm LT s 1,000,000
| X | any auTo PHPK1842110 07/01/2018 | 07/01/2019 | aopILY INJURY (Per person)_| §.
OWNED SCHEDULED
|| AUTOS ONLY AUTOS BODILY INJURY {Par sccident) | §
| X | RS omwy ~ [ X | NGHGRUND [Fer accidanty ¢ s
3
A [ X |umsrerauas | X | occur EACH OCCURRENCE $ 5,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE PHUBG35714 07/01/2018 | 07/01/2018 AGGREGATE s 5,000,000
pep | X | revenmons 10,000 .
B |WORKERS COMPENSATION X | PER I | CTH-
AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY STATUTE ER
Ay PROPRIETORPARTNEREXECUTIE I‘ﬁl | [WeAoos45408 07/01/2018 | 07/01/2018 [, oo\ sccompent . 500,000
Bf.n'%. i EEF L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE) §. 500,000
DESCAPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 500,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedute, may be attached if more epace Is required)
Evidence of Coverage
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Attn: Mr. Nathan D White, Director
Reglonal Public Health Network Services
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATEITHEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

77

ACORD 25 {2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Our Mission

LAMPREY
- HEALTH CARE

|
Where Excellence and Caring go Hand in Hand

The mission of Lamprey Health Care is to provide high quality primary medical care and health related
services, with an emphasis on prevention and lifestyle management, to all individuals regardless of

ability to pay.

*

Our Vision

*

Our -Values

We seek to be a leader in providing access to medical and health services that improve the health status
of the individuals and families in the communities we serve.
Our mission is to remove barriers that prevent access to care; we strive to eliminate such barriers as
language, cultural stereotyping, finances and/or lack of transportation.

‘Lamprey Health Care’s commitment to the community extends to provndmg and/or coordinating access

1

to a full range of comprehensive services.
Lamprey Health Care is committed to achieving the highest level of patlerllt satisfaction through a personal
and carlng approach and exceeding standards of excel[ence in quallty and service.

We wili be the outstandmg primary care choice for our patients, our communities and our service area,
and the standard by which others are judged.
We will continue as pacesetter in the use of new knowledge for lifestyle 1mprovement quality of life,
We will be a center of excellence in service, quality and teachmg
We will be part of an integrated System of care to ensure accéss to medical care for all 1nd1v1duals and
families in our communities. )

We will be an innovator to foster.development of the best primary care practices, adoption of the tools of
technology and teaching.
We will establish partnerships, linkages, networks and referrals with other organizations to provide
access to a full range of services to meet our communities’ needs.

We exist to serve the needs of our patients. -
We value a positive caring approach in delivering patient services.
We are committed to improving the health and total well-being of our communities.

We are committed to being proactive in identifying and meeting our communities’ health care needs.
We provide a supportive environment for the professional and personal growth, and healthy lifestyles
of our employees.

We provide an atmosphere of learning and growth for both patlents and employees as well as for those
seeking training in primary care.

. We succeed by utilizing a team approach that values a positive, constructive commitment to Lamprey

Health Care’s mission.

Affirmed 12/19/2018 .




- LAMPREY
HEALTH CARE

Where Excellence and Caring go Hand in Hand

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
and

REPORTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS AND THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

September 30, 2018 and 2017

With Independent Auditor's Report




B BerryDunn

Board of Directors
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.

|
i
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT '
i
Report on Consolidated Financial Statements '

|
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financia! statements lof Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc., which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of
September 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net
assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements. .

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting prindiples; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the prepération and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
efror.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated ﬁnarlicial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,-issued by the -
Comptroller_of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement, '

FoN

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement :of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk asseslsments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in|the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entityis internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by managément, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and a;?propriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion. |

| |

Bangor, ME » Portland, ME » Manchester, NH * Glastonbury, CT * Charleston, WV ¢ Phoenix, AZ
berrydunn.com



Board of Directors
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc
Page 2 .

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above| present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends| of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, and the results of their operat[ons changes in their net assets
and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. . ’

'
-y I

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying consolidating balance sheets as of September 30, 2018
and 2017, and the related consolidating statements of operations and changes in net assets for the
years then ended, are presented for purposes of additional analysis rather than to present the financial
position and changes in net assets of the individual entities, and are not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expendltures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Reguiations Part 200, Uniform lAdmrmstratlve Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial- statements Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates d:rectly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements The.information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolldated financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to
the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional p:rocedures in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the mformatlon is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Reqmred by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also |ssued our report dated December
19, 2018 on our consideration of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Fnends of Lamprey Health Care,

Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of thelr compliance with certain .
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an op|n|on on the effectiveness of
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. s||nterna| control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Lamprey Health Care, |Inc. and Friends of Lamprey
Health Care, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Berry Darn MVl | Fuides, LeC

Portland, Maine
December 19, 2018




Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 30, 2018 and 2017

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, less allowance for uncollectible
accounts of $254,097 in 2018 and $233,455 in 2017
Grants receivable
Other receivables
Inventory
Other current assets

Total current assets
Investment in limited liability company
Assets limited as to.use
Property and equipment, net
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue
Current maturities of long-term debt .

- “Total current liabilites -——— - - - +—

Long-term debt, less current maturities
Market value of interest rate swap

Total liabilities
Net assets
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

.
|

LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.
| ;

'
i
\
1
|
]

208 2017

$ 1,341,015 $ 1,196,504

1,330,670 1,071,115
228,972 476,151
172,839 ° 85357

72,219 63,579
139,568 160,946

3,285,283 3,053,652

22,590 20,298
3,205,350 3,425,833

7,584,923 7,870,894

$14.098,146 $14.370.677

$ 438,830 $ 396,284
919,690 880,477
117,696 89,040
102,014 97,502

© 1,578,230 - 1.463,303--

2,134,337 2,243,338
13,404 13,769

3,725,971 3,720,411

9,951,659 10,176,258

: 420,516 474 008

- 10,372.175 10,650,266

$14,098,146 $14.370677

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-3-



|

LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREYi HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

. Years Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue
Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue

Grants, contracts and contributions
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restrictions for operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services
Facilities
Other operating expenses
Insurance
Depreciation
Interest

Total operating expenses
Deficiency of revenue over expenses

Change in fair value of financial instrument
Net assets released from restrictions for capital acquisition

Decrease in unrestricted net assets

1
|

|
|

i

2018 2017

$ 9,426,185 $ 8,906,722
(354, 460) (274 770)

9,071,725 8,631,952

5,638,925 5,262,945
769,240 877,054
118,447 75,190

15,498,337 14,847 141

9,941,188 9,361,791
1,688,571 1,860,717 -
715,862 | 593,252
1,669,327 1,626,562
594,355 589,108
537,414 590,580

143,338 137,232
459,716 444,584
— 96,431 117,623

15,746,202 15.221,449

(247,865)  (374,308)

365 31,004

22.901 175,595

$__(224,599) $_ (167,709

The accompanying notes are an iritegral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND-FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

" Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Agsets

|
Years Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Unrestricted net assets _
Deficiency of revenue over expenses o J $ (247,865) $ (374,308)
Change in fair value of financial instrument 365 31,004
Net assets released from restrictions for capital acquisition 22,901 175,695
Decrease in unrestricted net assets {224.599) {(167,709)
Temporarily restricted net assets
Provision for uncollectible pledges - (1,100)
Contributions 71,205 77,771
Grants for capital acquisition i 16,651 166,366
Net assets released from restrictions for operations ! (118,447) (75,190)
Net assets released from restrictions for capital acquisition J (22 .901) (175,595)
Decrease in temporarily restricted net assets (53,492) (7.748)
Change in net assets . {278,091) (175,457)
Net assets, beginning of year o o | 10,650,266 1 0.825.723

Net assets, end of year

|
$10,372176 $10,650.266

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ende_d September 30, 2018 and 201

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets

_ Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided (used)} by operating activities
Provision for bad debts
Depreciation
Equity in earnings of limited liability company
Change in fair value of financial instrument
Grants for capital acquisition -
Write off of uncollectible pledges
(Increase) decrease in the following assets:
Patient accounts receivable :
Grants receivable
Other receivable
Inventory
Other current assets
Increase in the following liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accrued payroll and related expenses -
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Cash flows from in\/esting activities
Increase in designated funds
 Release of designated funds
Capital acquisitions ’
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Grants for capital acquisition
Principal payments on long-term debt
Net cash (used) provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, ehd of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for interast

HEALTH CARE, INC.

o

| 2018 2017

$ (273,09~1) $ (175,457)

354,460 274,770
459,716 444,584
(2,292) (4,094)

(365) (31,004),
i (16,651) (166,3686)
| - 1,100

{614,015) . (267,849)
247,179  (245,998)

(87,482) © 61,277
(8,640) (63,579)
21,378 . (69,874)

| _ 42,548 169,240
i 39,213 64,025
28,656 4517

185,612 © __ (4.708)

(155,880)  (591,411)
376,363 740,479
(173.745) _ (320.244)

46,738 (171.176)

- 16,651 166,366
(104,490} {91,817)

(87,839) _.__ 74549
144,511 (101,335)

1,196,504 1,297,839

1

$_1,341,015 $_1,196,504

is 96,431 3 117,623

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017
I

Organization !

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (LHC) is a not- for-proft corporation organlzed in the State of New

. Hampshire, LHC is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) whoselpnmary purpose is to provide

high quality family health, medical and behavioral heaith services to residents of southern New

Hampshire without regard to the patient's ability to pay for these services.

Subsidiary

Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (FLHC) is a not-for-profit corporatlon organized in the State of
New Hampshire. FLHC's primary purpose is to support LHC. FLHC is also the owner of the property
occupied by LHC's administrative and program offices in Newmarket New Hampshire. LHC is the sole

member of FLHC.

1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Prlnciples of Consclidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of LHC and its subsidiary, FLHC
(collectively, the Organization). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation, i

Use of Estimates

The preparatuon of financial statements in conformuty with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumphons that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could dtffer from those estlmates

- Income Taxes- -~ -~ ~— — = s o o- S J e e

i

Both LHC and FLHC are public charities under Section 501(c)(3) of tihe Internal Revenue Code. As
public charities, the entities are exempt from state and federal mcome taxes on income earned in
accordance with their tax-exempt purposes. Unrelated business mcome is subject to state and
federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Organlzatlons tax positions and concluded
that the Organization has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax posmons that require
adjustment to the consolldated financial statements.

Cash and Cash Eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits and petty cash funds.




LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Patient accounts recewable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible
accounts. In evaluating the collectibility of patient accounts receivable, the Organization analyzes
its past collection history and identifies trends for all funding sources’ in the aggregate. In addition,
patient balances in excess of 120 days are 100% reserved. Management regularly reviews
revenue and payer mix data in evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for uncollectible
accounts. Amounts not collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted are

applied against the allowance for uncollectible accounts.
A reconciliation of the allowance for uncollectible accounts follows: |
| 201 L2017
Ballance, beginning of year : $ 233,455 $ 278,061
Provision 354,460 274,770
Write-offs . (333,818) {319,376)
Balance, end of year $| 254,097 $___ 233,455

~

The provision for bad debts increased primarily as a result of the regulatory environment related
to challenges with credentlalmg of providers and timely filing limits. !

Grants and Other Receivables

Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. All such amounts are considered collectible.

Investment in Limited Liability Company i

The Organization is one of elght partners who each made a capital contnbutlon of $500 to Prlmary
Health Care Partners (PHCP). The purposes of PHCP are: (i) to. engage and contract directly with
the payers of health care to influence the design and testmg of emerging payment
methodologies; (i) to achieve the three part aim of better care for individuals, better health for
~ populations and lower growth in expenditures in connection with Iboth governmental and non-
governmental payment systems; (iii) to undertake joint activities to offer access to high quality,
cost effective medical, mental health, orai health, home care and other community-based services,
based upon the medical home model of primary care delivery, that promote ‘health and well-being
by developing and implementing effective clinical and admlnlstratlve systems in a manner that is
aligned with the FQHC mode!; and to lead collaborative efforts to manage costs and improve the
quality of primary care services delivered by health centers operated throughout the state of New
Hampshire; and (iv) to engage in any and all lawful activities, mcludmg without limitation the
negotiation of contracts, agreements and/or arrangements (with payers and other parties). The
Organization's investment in PHCP is reported using the equity| method and the investment
amounted to $22,590 and $20,298 at September 30, 2018 and 2017/ respectively.




LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.
. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

Assets Limited as To Use

. Assets limited as to use include assets set aside under loan| agreements for repairs and
maintenance on the real property collateralizing the loan, assets designated by the board of
directors for specn" ic projects or purposes and donor-restricted contnbutlons

Progem and Equipment '

Property and equipment acqursrtlons are recorded at cost, Iess accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of each class of depreciable asset and is
computed on the straight-line method.

Gifts of long-lived assets, such as land, buildings, or equipment, are reported as unrestricted
support unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated|assets must be used. Gifts of
long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of
cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as temporarily
restricted net assets. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets
must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported iwhen the donated or acquired
long-lived assets are placed in service.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets include contributions and grants for which donor-imposed
restrictions have not been met. Assets are released from restnctlons as expenditures are made in
line with restrictions called for under the terms of the donor. Grants restrlcted for capital acquisition
which were received prior to 2000 are released from restriction over the life of the related acquired
assets, matching depreciation expense, | -

Patient Service Revenue

—Patient-service-revenue-is -reported-at the .estimated net realizablé amounts-from -patients,. third-.
party payers, and others for services rendered, including estrmated retroactive adjustments under
‘reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the pericd the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as
final settlements are determined. - il

|

|

3408 Drug Prlcing Program.

LHC, as an FQHC, is eligible to participate in the 3408 Drug Pricing Program. The program
requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHCs and other identified entities at'a
reduced price. LHC contracts with local pharmacies under this program The local pharmacies
dispense drugs to eligible patients of LHC and bills Medicare and commercial insurances on behalf
of LHC. Reimbursement received by the pharmacies is remitted {to LHC net of dispensing and
administrative fees. Revenue generated from the program is |ncluded in patient service revenue
net of third party allowances. The cost of drug replenishments and contracted expenses incurred
related to the program are included in other operating expenses.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC, AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

P

September 30, 2018 and 2017

Charity Care

' |
The Organization provides discounts to patients who meet certailn criteria under its sliding fee
discount program. Because the Organization does not pursue collef:tion of amounts determined to
qualify for the sliding fee discount, they are not reported as patient sEervice revenue.

Donor-Restricted Gifts

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to give are reported
at fair value at the date the gift is received and the conditions are jmet. The gifts are reported as
either témporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that
limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated
time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), tempérarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated statements of operations
as "net assets, rl::-Ieased from restrictions." l

|

Functional Expenses

The Organization provides health care and wrap around services,
management, to residents of the greater Newmarket, Raymond,
communities. Expenses related to providing these services are cla
as follows:: f

including translation and care
and Nashua, New Hampshire
ssified by their general nature

2018 2017

Program services $ 13,407,871 '$ 12,484,460

Administrative and general ! 2,338,331 2,736,989
|

Total $

Deficiency of Revenue Over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations reflect the deﬁciencylf of revenue over expenses.
Changes in unrestricted net assets which are excluded from this méasure, consistent with industry
practice, include contributions of long-lived assets (including assetls acquired using contributions
which, by donor restriction, were to be used for the purposes qf acquiring such assets) and
changes in fair value of an interest rate swap that qualifies for hedge accounting.

15,746,202 $_15221.449

i
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREYI HEALTH CARE, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

Subsequent Events | .

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements, imanagement has considered
transactions or events occurring through December 19, 2018 the date that the financial
statements were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated subsequent events after
that date for inclusion in the financial statements. : r

L

Assets Limited as to Use
Assets limited as to use are composed of cash and cash equivalent's and consist of the following:
A 2018 2017
United States Department of Agriculture, Rural
Development {Rural Development) loan agreements $ 142092 $ 142,587
-Designated by the governing board o 2,752,113 2,924 858
Donor restricted, temporarily 311,145 358,388
Total $_3,205,350 $_3.425833
Property and Equipment !
Property and equipment consists of the following:
|
018 2017
Land and improvements ' | $ 1,154,763 $ 1,146,784
Building and improvements | 10,943,714 10,829,267
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,723,627 1.685,928
Total cost 13,822,094 13,661,980
“Less accumulated deprecnatlon o o 6:237,171— —-5,791,086
Property and equipment, net $_7.584923 $_7.870.894

The Organization has made renovations to certain buildings wrth federal grant fundmg In
accordance with the grant agreements, a Notice of Federal Interest (NFI) was filed in the
appropriate official records of the jurisdiction in which the property is located. The NFI is designed
to notify any prospective buyer or creditor that the Federal Government has a financial interest in
the real property components acquired un